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FOR THE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED  YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER
2018 2017
BEZF-/\& BE-Z-tF
+=A=+-8A +=A=+-A

MERE

LEE ILFE
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) CHANGE IN
(AR#FT) (ARMF ) BE)
Revenue & 56,078 89,822 -37.6%
Other revenue Hi s 4,964 2,983 66.4%
Profit before taxation MRAL A ER 23,181 32,343 -28.3%
Profit for the year FREF 5,281 15,651 -66.3%
Total comprehensive FEZHEIMAZLE
income for the year 8,003 11,522 -30.5%
Basic earnings per share BREARER
(RMB per share) (BRRAR#T) 0.01 0.03 -66.7%
AS AT AS AT
31 DECEMBER 31 DECEMBER
2018 2017
RZFE-/N\E R=ZZ2—+F
+—A=+—H +=HA=+—H
(RMB’ 000) (RMB’000) CHANGE IN
(AR¥FT) (AR®FT) BE)
Total assets EERE 1,938,278 1,037,051 86.9%
Total equity REREE 978,237 959,915 1.9%
FERE
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AFMBHE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=t+—HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—F-\F —E2—+tH ZE-XF —ET-1F —T-MNF
Profitability data (RMB’ 000) BRgENER
(AR¥FT)
Revenue Wz 56,078 89,822 90,331 72,599 58,901
Profit from operation FEG=rny S| 5,674 32,542 32,416 30,009 32,588
Profit before taxation BRI ARR 23,181 32,343 32,023 35,216 39,814
Profit for the year FREF 5,281 15,651 19,045 24,333 26,354
Basic earnings per share BRERER

(RMB per share) (BRARKT) 0.01 0.03 0.04 0.06 0.06

Profitability ratios (%) BEFILE (%)
Operating profit margin (Note 1) R (1) 41.3 36.0 35.5 48.5 67.7
Net profit margin (Note 2) HRIR(frat2) 9.4 17.4 21.1 33.5 44.7
Effective tax rate (Note 3) BERBIRHZ3) 77.2 51.6 40.5 30.9 33.8
Return on total assets (Note 4) EEBEORMT4) 0.3 15 1.9 2.8 3.6
Return on shareholders’ equity IREREREIIR(HEES)

(Note 5) 0.5 16 2.0 2.9 3.8
Cost to income ratio (Note 6) AW A LE (f72E6) 93.6% 58.5% 62.1% 60.9% 53.0%
Operating ratios REME(HEER

(as percentage of turnover) (%) B%#tt) (%)

Staff costs BIRAK 43.0 30.7 28.0 25.6 24.8
Assets and liabilities data EERABERE

(RMB'000) (AR#FT)

Total assets BEERE 1,938,278 1,037,051 991,100 878,939 733,621
Total liabilities BERE 960,041 77,136 34,784 36,112 42,209
Net assets EEFE 978,237 959,915 956,316 842,827 691,412
Assets and Working EEREEELERE (%)

Capital data (%)

Return on assets (Note 7) BERRAZ7) 0.3 1.6 2.0 2.8 3.6
Return on equity (Note 8) B (Hrit 8) 0.6 1.7 22 3.2 3.8

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF



Notes:

Operating profit margin is calculated based on dividing profit before
taxation by revenue and multiplied by 100%.

Net profit margin is calculated based on dividing the profit for the year by
revenue and multiplied by 100%.

Effective income tax rate is calculated based on dividing the income tax
by the profit before taxation and multiplied by 100%.

Return on total assets is calculated based on dividing profit for the year
by the total assets and multiplied by 100%.

Return on shareholders’ equity is calculated based on dividing profit for
the year by the total equity and multiplied by 100%.

Cost to income ratio is calculated based on dividing operating expenses
after deducting tax and surcharges by revenue and multiplied by 100%.

Return on assets is calculated based on dividing profit attributable to
equity shareholders of our Company by total asset and multiplied by
100%.

Return on equity is calculated based on dividing profit attributable to
equity shareholder of our Company by the weighted average balance of
total equity as at the beginning and end of the relevant year and multiplied
by 100%.

AFMBHRE

AR R 2R T 1R BRBE AT 88 FUBR LA YK 25 5
LL100% 5T &

AR 2R T 12 F 35 I BR A U 5 3R B
100% 5t &
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FEFLA100% 51 &

PR EIR IR E RRRI RS E
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ARAUA L T3 LU BRBE & 2 T A fY A8 &
B BRI ZE TR 100% 5T E
BERRDRAD GRS R RENER
BRUAEEMEERLL100% 5T &

FERS B3] TR AR D B R i IR SR A 5 A
BRUAERBEREBF IR FREME
FHIEEERTREL100% 5T E
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of China Success
Finance Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “China Success
Finance”), | am pleased to present the audited annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

In 2018, the global economic and political instability, such as the
elevated protectionism, the extended China-U.S. trade war, the
indefinite results of Brexit, as well as the returning interest rate hike
cycle, brought uncertainties to the global economy. As a result, the
global economy showed signs of slowdown, polarising performances
among countries and heightened downside risks. Multiple unfavourable
factors created negative impacts to global economic development,
thus leading to persisting anxiety over the global economic prospects.
Fortunately, China and the U.S. were back at the negotiating table
since the end of year, gradually alleviating the negative externalities.

China’s economy made significant progress in refining structure,
shifting dynamics and enhancing efficiency while continuing to
strengthen the supply-side structural reform and expanding effective
demand, as well as maintaining production, employment, income and
price at stable levels. China’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) grew at a
reasonable level by 6.6% year-on-year in 2018.

Leveraging the development of the country, the Group actively grasped
the market opportunities and steadily advanced business operations in
the year, while timely reallocating resources and continuously improving
the business structure. During the reporting period, The Group steadily
developed the traditional businesses and drew the layout for business
transformation, gradually propelling the development of the innovative
business.
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Capitalising on the remarkable results of the Group’s financial services
business and the increase in the fair value of its financial assets, the
financial performance of the Group for the second half of 2018 generally
improved and recorded a turnaround to profit, as compared with the
first half of the year. However, there were additional interest expenses
due to the issuance of the convertible bonds during the period. As the
Group strived to transform its business, its income from both interest
penalty and financial consultancy service declined as compared with
the same period of last year, whilst part of the income from the financial
technology business and commercial guarantee business remained to
be recognized as deferred income and could not be fully reflected in
the profits of the Group in 2018. Therefore, the Group’s total revenue
and profit for the year decreased to approximately RMB61.0 million and
RMB5.3 million respectively. Meanwhile, the Group’s cash and various
bank deposits almost doubled from 30 June 2018 to 31 December
2018.

For guarantee business, Guangdong Success Finance Guarantee
Company Limited (“Success Guarantee”) pursued healthy,
standardised and professional development by continuously providing
credit enhancement services to small and medium sized enterprises, in
response to the state’s supportive policies for them.

Grasping the development trend of technology, the Group actively
reallocated its resources to explore financial technology business
with an innovative mindset, thereby realising a major breakthrough.
Capitalising on the technical team’s advanced technology, the Group
accelerated innovation and enhancement of product structure with
a data-oriented approach, to provide customers with professional,
personalised and efficient products and guarantee services.
Moreover, the Group collaborated with reputable and sizable high-
quality platforms, expanding its business scope beyond geographical
limitations to grow rapidly across the entire country with the help of
internet technology, whilst widening customer base, thus creating
a new growth impetus of the business. During the reporting period,
the number of new business partners and customers increased
substantially. Although such achievement was not reflected in the
income statement of 2018, it brought a huge cash flow to the Group,
lending a great support to the Group’s continued endeavour to
explore new businesses and extend its business scope to meet the
growing market demand. During the year, the increasing of registered
capital further elevated Success Guarantee’s financial strength, thus
presenting opportunities for large-scale business cooperation and
laying a solid foundation for new business development.
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During the reporting period, Shenzhen Success Financial Leasing
Company Limited (“Success Financial Leasing”) optimised its
product structure of the financial leasing business and maintained a
stable development of the factoring business. For asset management
business, the professional team in Mainland China continued to
provide asset value appreciation services to clients, while the team
in Hong Kong made use of asset management license to offer asset
management services to Hong Kong and overseas investors, forging
synergistic development of asset management operations in both
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Drawing on its resources in Mainland
China and Hong Kong, the Group bolstered its cooperation mechanism,
set up a framework for inclusive financial services, cooperated with
reputable companies and refined the risk management mechanism,
as well as provided data-oriented service to enhance long-term
cooperation between enterprises and maintained customer relationship.

Looking forward to 2019, upon enjoying a relatively strong recovery in
global economy, with uncertainties of macroscopic policies looming
large and financial risks piling up, the global economic growth is set to
be hampered. However, China will continue to focus on the supply side
reform, further deepen the marketisation reform, widen the opening
up of the economy, and speed up the establishment of a modern
economic system, meanwhile support the business development of
micro, small and medium sized enterprises by propelling the rapid
development of financial inclusion, in order to ensure rational economic
development.

With new policies pertaining, the Group will continue to ensure a
steady development of its traditional businesses, whilst further evolving
the financial technology business by new means. The Group will
provide integrated financing services to micro, small and medium
sized enterprises to accommodate the demands of the market through
launching innovative products. Meanwhile, it will also continue to
strengthen other businesses such as traditional guarantee and financial
leasing, as well as developing greater competence of the Group
through investing in merger and acquisitions, thereby fostering a rapid
development and further enhancing its core competitiveness.
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Following the unveiling of the Greater Bay Area Integrated Financial
Service Scheme, the Group will also seize the development
opportunities and offer comprehensive and diversified financial service
to enterprises in the Bay Area according to the national development
policy, making contributions to the construction of the Bay Area.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all shareholders, clients and business partners
for their strong support. The Group will endeavour to continuously
strengthen its core competitiveness and expand businesses, meanwhile
exploring new business growth impetuses, and ultimately maximising
returns for investors and shareholders.

Zhang Tiewei
Chairman and Executive Director

29 March 2019
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Overview

In 2018, the world economy witnessed a mild growth while showed
signs of deceleration. While certain economies, such as the U.S.,
enjoyed a stronger growth, Eurozone and other economies suffered
a slowdown at various levels. On the whole, the global economic
and political turmoil and further escalation of protectionism brought
uncertainties to the global economy and slowed down the global
economic growth, with a greater division among countries and
heightened downside risks; which led to persisting anxiety over the
global economic prospects.

In 2018, China remained rational economic development despite being
impacted by unstable external economic environment. The total GDP
exceeded RMB 90 trillion, an increase of 6.6% over previous year. In
2018, China’s economy made significant progress in refining structure,
shifting dynamics and enhancing efficiency while continuously
strengthening the supply-side structural reform and expanding effective
demand, as well as maintaining production, employment, income and
price at stable levels. Meantime, the central government built a better
business environment for the small and medium sized enterprises
through implementing devolution of power, reduction of taxes and
fees and providing guidance to finance sector for supporting the real
economy. In particular, in response to the rising financing costs and
difficulties in financing, the government lowered the required reserve
ratio four times, which effectively alleviated the pressure of rising
financing costs, to address the capital shortage issue faced by private
companies and small and micro sized enterprises with multi-pronged
approach.

In order to actively seize market opportunities, the Group adhered
to the operation philosophy of “strategic planning, close connection
and balanced development”. In response to China’s economic
condition in the 40th anniversary of the economic reform, the Group
gradually propelled the strategic transition of financial services in the
prevailing trend. The Group concentrated its efforts in four aspects,
namely steadily developing traditional businesses, developing asset
management business, innovating financial services for development
of enterprises in the Greater Bay Area, and reinforcing cooperation
mechanism. Meanwhile, the Group promptly reallocated resources to
charting a new path unflaggingly and improving its financial structure
continuously, with a view to developing itself into an excellent credit
platform that serves the real economy, with pursuing reciprocity and
mutual development with clients.
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During the reporting period, the financial performance of the Group
generally improved and recorded a turnaround to profit. The Group
drew the layout for business transformation and moderately invested
in resources, thereby the Group’s net income from financial guarantee
services in 2018 increased by approximately 365.5% as compared
with 2017. However, there were additional interest expenses rose due
to the issuance of the convertible bonds during the period. As the
Group strived to transform its business, its income from both interest
penalty and financial consultancy service declined as compared to
the same period of last year, whilst part of the income from financial
technology business and commercial guarantee business remained to
be recognized as deferred income and could not be fully reflected in
the profits of the Group in 2018. The Group’s total revenue and profit
for the year decreased to approximately RMB61.0 million and RMB5.3
million respectively. Meanwhile, the Group’s cash and various bank
deposits increased by approximately 105.7% from 30 June 2018 to
31 December 2018. It does not only reflect the Group’s significantly
improved financial condition, but also supports the Group’s new
customers development and expansion in its business scope.

Industry and Business Review

Guarantee Business

The four supporting rules of the “Regulation on the Supervision
and Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies” newly
promulgated in April 2018 regulated the types of financial guarantee
business and incorporated internet loan guarantee as part of these
governed businesses. Banks and licensed guarantee companies
started guarantee business with a focus on small and micro sized
enterprises and the “Three Rural”, thereby offering preferential terms
on aspects including risk tolerance, financing costs and fee rates.
With the Regulation and the four supporting rules in effect, stringent
supervision on financial guarantee organisations led to reduced number
of financial guarantee organisations. Companies not fulfilling the rules
and regulations will gradually be eliminated from the market, and
creating a better environment for qualified guarantee companies. In
view of the continued fine-tuning of the pertinent law system, guarantee
companies are to step up their efforts in innovating business, expand
the scope of guarantee business, construct an established self-
protection mechanism, forge multi-parties cooperation, and build a
more reasonable partnership model with banks.
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During the reporting period, Success Guarantee pursued healthy,
standardised and professional development by continuing to provide
credit enhancement services to small and medium sized enterprises,
adjusting to the development trend of the industry and actively
allocating resources, with a view to expanding business operation with
innovative mindset.

During the reporting period, the Group actively explored the field of
financial technology. Success Guarantee devoted more resources and
put together a talented technical team to actively develop financial
technology business. Success Guarantee collaborated with large and
reputable platforms to expand its business scope beyond geographical
limitations and bolster its business to the entire country utilising
internet technology, in order to provide professional and efficient
financial guarantee services to clients. During the reporting period, as
the number of new business partners and customers grew significantly,
the Group realised satisfactory income which laid solid foundation
for future business development. In addition, Success Guarantee
actively responded to the government’s policy in supporting small and
medium sized enterprises, through maintaining traditional operations
and sustaining volume. It also proactively initiated multi-parties’
cooperation, innovated and improved product structure in order to offer
customised products to clients. Capitalising on the well developing
big data environment, the Group developed new business model by
applying technology, and enriched product chains in the guarantee
segment, thereby further enhancing its core competitiveness and
expanding market share. On the other hand, faced with the increasingly
stringent market compliance requirements, Success Guarantee
increased the registered capital by RMB100 million to RMB 430 million
for business expansion. This further enhanced the financial strength
of Success Guarantee, thus providing opportunities for large-scale
business cooperation and laying a solid foundation for new business
development.

Financial Leasing and Factoring Business

With gradually growing penetration in the financial leasing market
in China, Success Financial Leasing gave full play to its integrated
development advantages to optimise product structure, and provided
professional and customised financial leasing services to clients.
Success Financial Leasing established its factoring business in 2016,
which further enriched the product chain of financial leasing.
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Financial Consultancy and Housing Financing Business

In response to the macro trend, the Group reduced its financial
consultancy business and gradually retreated from its housing financing
business, while promptly diverting its development and concentrating
on further development of new businesses.

Developing Asset Management Business

2018 was a year of reform for the asset management industry in
Mainland China. The overhaul of the regulatory system reshaped the
industry chain of the asset management industry. With the promulgation
of the new regulations and related rules on asset management in
Mainland China, control measures such as maturity matching and
limited management were imposed on non-standardised debt assets.
For product management, implicit guarantee was clearly stated as
illegal with explicit punitive standard, asset management businesses
that are deemed illegal and non-compliance were regulated. With the
stringent principles in place, the asset management market gradually
moved towards standardisation.

The Group seized the opportunities brought by the reform and
leveraged the distinct edge in terms of resources from Mainland China
and Hong Kong to propel the development of its asset management
business. Its professional team in Mainland China continued to
provide asset value appreciation services to clients, while the team in
Hong Kong made use of asset management license to provide asset
management services to Hong Kong and overseas investors; bringing
synergistic development between Mainland China and Hong Kong
operations.

Innovating Financial Services for Development of Enterprises in the Bay
Area

According to the Greater Bay Area Integrated Financial Service
Scheme issued by the Central Bank in July 2018, the Group made use
of the resources of Mainland China and Hong Kong to actively provide
professional and high-quality resource allocation services, contributing
to the construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay
Area.

Reinforcing Cooperation Mechanism

During the reporting period, the Group strived to explore new business
models by tapping financial technology whilst preserving traditional
business channels, and establishing solid partnership with various
technological platforms, thereby enhancing the core competitiveness of
the Group.
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In 2018, the Group strived to set up a framework for inclusive
financial services and cooperate with famous insurance agencies and
financial technology enterprises to expand business channels. The
Group designed customised business model for different clients and
obtained quality customers, which significantly enhanced quality of
the new business. On the other hand, leveraging its financial big data
analysis team, the Group persistently improved the risk management
platform, and utilised the analysing capability of financial big data to lay
foundation for maintaining long-term cooperation with clients.

Building on its listing status in Hong Kong, the Group issued convertible
bonds of an aggregate principal amount of HK$154 million in early
2018. By the end of 2018, the Group prepaid principal of convertible
bonds of HK$10 million and issued convertible bonds of HK$84
million and interest-bearing bills of HK$60 million. Such issuance
bore significant strategic importance to the future development of the
Group, as it explored new financing channels for the Group, supported
its business development, and strengthened its position in the capital
market.

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB56.1 million (year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB89.8 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 37.5%. Detailed analysis of the Group’s revenue is as
follows:

Financial guarantee services

Revenue from the Group’s financial guarantee services was mainly
generated from the service fees charged for our financial guarantee
services. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s net
revenue generated from financial guarantee services was approximately
RMB27.0 million (year ended 31 December 2017: approximately
RMB5.8 million), representing an increase of approximately 365.5%.
Revenue from financial guarantee business significantly increased
in 2018, mainly attributable to the Group’s efforts in exploring and
developing financial technology, and innovating guarantee business
operations, while steadily developing traditional financial guarantee
business.
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In 2018, the Group received interest income of approximately RMBO0.4
million from receivables (year ended 31 December 2017: approximately
RMB17.0 million), representing a decrease of approximately 97.6%.
Compared with the same period of last year, the decrease in interest
income from receivables was due to the one-off interest on payment on
behalf of customer charged by the Group in 2017.

Non-financial guarantee services

Revenue from the Group’s non-financial guarantee services was mainly
generated from the service fees charged for providing customers with
performance guarantees in relation to the performance of payment
obligations and litigation guarantees. For the year ended 31 December
2018, the Group’s revenue generated from non-financial guarantee
services decreased by approximately 18.9% to approximately RMB4.3
million (year ended 31 December 2017: approximately RMB5.3 million).

Success Guarantee continued to develop the relatively low risk non-
financial guarantee services while innovating new guarantee business
operations, thereby developing revenue from non-financial guarantee
business as a stable impetus of the Group s revenue.

Financial consultancy business

Revenue from the Group’s financial consultancy services was mainly
generated from the service fees charged for providing customers
with financial consultancy services by the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue generated from financial
consultancy services was approximately RMB5.6 million (year ended
31 December 2017: approximately RMB29.2 million).

Revenue from the Group’s financial consultancy services experienced
a relatively significant decrease in 2018 mainly because existing
businesses within financial consultancy services were completed, and
new businesses decreased as compared with last year, thereby leading
to a decrease in revenue.
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Financial leasing and factoring business

Revenue from the Group’s financial leasing services was mainly
generated from the rental fees charged by the Group in its provision
of financial leasing services to customers. For the year ended 31
December 2018, revenue from the Group’s financial leasing and
factoring business increased by approximately RMB2.0 million to
approximately RMB24.4 million (year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB22.4 million).

Meantime, revenue from factoring business was approximately RMB6.1
million in 2018.

In 2018, capturing the changes in market demand and satisfying
potential needs of the clients, the Group continuously provided
professional and customised financing leasing services and factoring
services to clients by giving play to its advantages, enhancing product
structure and strictly adopting risk management measures.

Interest income from down payments for investment

The Group’s interest income from down payments for investment was
mainly generated from interest of prepayments for potential acquisition
of projects under negotiation. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the revenue of the Group’s interest income from down payments for
investment was approximately RMB11.3 million.

Other Revenue

The Group’s other revenue comprised interest income from bank
deposits, interest income from related parties, government grants,
gain on sale of non-current assets and others. For the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group’s other revenue were
approximately RMB3.0 million and RMB5.0 million, respectively,
representing an increase of approximately 66.7%. The increase in
other revenue was attributable to the increase in interest income due
to the increase in cash and bank deposits of the Group in 2018, and
also the interest on loan from the financial subsidy towards the Group’s
associate - Success Credit.
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Impairment and Provision (Charged)/Written Back

Impairment and provision mainly represents the provision of guarantee
losses and the impairment provision for receivables from guarantee
payments, factoring receivable and finance lease receivable where it
is likely that the customers or other parties are in financial difficulties
and recovery was considered to be remote. In the event that any
impairment and provision was made in the previous years but
subsequently recovered, impairment and provision previously made will
be written back in the year in which the relevant amount is recovered.

Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s operating expenses
was approximately RMB53.1 million (year ended 31 December 2017:
approximately RMB53.2 million). The Group upheld the cost-efficient
principle, and managed to decrease operating expenses slightly as
compared with last year. In particular, salaries and rent decreased by
11.8% and 39.1% respectively as compared with last year. Meanwhile,
agency consultation fees and office expenses increased by 85.0% and
185.0% respectively as compared with last year. Among which, the
Group’s office expenses in 2018 recorded a relatively higher increase
as compared with last year, given the cost for information storage
significantly increased in order to facilitate the business growth of
Success Guarantee.

Share of Profits of Associates

The share of profits of associates amounted to a gain of approximately
RMB1.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an
increase of approximately RMB1.8 million from a loss of approximately
RMBO0.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The turnaround
from loss in the previous year to profit was because change in fair value
of the financial assets, which the Group’s associate Success Credit
owns, presents a profit/loss in the income statement. In 2018, fair value
of the financial assets recorded a significant rise leading to a net profit
of Success Credit.
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Profit Before Taxation

The Group’s profit before taxation decreased by approximately RMB9.1
million, or approximately 28.2%, from approximately RMB32.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB23.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2018. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to the year-on-year decrease in interest income and
financial consultancy services income; along with the interest expenses
generated from the issuance of convertible bonds by the Group in 2018
with maturity date in 2020.

Income Tax

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s income tax
amounted to approximately RMB17.9 million, representing an increase
of approximately 7.2% from approximately RMB16.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in income tax was mainly
because change in fair value of the financial assets held by group
presents a profit/loss in the income statement. In 2018, fair value of
the financial assets recorded a significant rise leading to the increase
in income tax for 2018. Such increase was also mainly attributable
to the increase of taxable profit and unused tax losses from some
subsidiaries.

Trade and Other Receivables - Receivables from
Guarantee Payments

Receivables from guarantee payments mainly represent the default loan
amount repaid by the Group on behalf of our customers. Upon default
by a customer in respect of repayment of a bank loan, according
to the relevant guarantee agreement, the outstanding balance shall
be firstly paid by the Group on behalf of our customers. The Group
will then subsequently request repayment from our customers or
take possession of the counter-guarantee assets provided by such
customers to recover the outstanding balance. Receivables from
guarantee payments were interest bearing and the Group holds certain
collaterals over certain customers. The net book value of receivables
from guarantee payments decreased from approximately RMB246.9
million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately RMB232.7 million as
at 31 December 2018.
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Treasury Management and Investment Policy

In order to more effectively utilise the Group’s financial resources for
obtaining a better return for the shareholders, it has been the Group’s
general approach that our management will seek for some alternative
investment opportunities which could provide a better return but at
minimum risk exposure.

Pledged Bank Deposits and Cash and Bank Deposits

As at 31 December 2018, the pledged bank deposits amounted to
approximately RMB86.2 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB95.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately RMB9.3
million as compared to the end of last year. Cash and bank deposits
amounted to approximately RMB719.1 million (31 December
2017: approximately RMB39.4 million), representing an increase of
approximately RMB679.7 million, as compared to the end of last year.
The increase in cash and bank deposits was mainly attributable to
the net cash inflow generated from the joint project between Success
Guarantee and a client, the funds raised from the Group’s issuance
of convertible bonds under the General Mandate on 1 February
2018, pledged deposits paid by new client of Success Guarantee for
collaboration in the new project and the increase of receipts in advance
from partner companies.

Interest Rate Risk and Foreign Exchange Risk

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s interest rate primarily related to
interest-bearing bank deposits and pledged bank deposits.

The Group’s businesses for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
principally conducted in RMB, while most of the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. As RMB is
not a freely convertible currency, any fluctuation in the exchange rate of
HKD against RMB may have an impact on the Group’s result. Although
foreign currency exposure does not pose a significant risk on the Group
and currently, the Group does not have hedging measures against such
exchange risks, the Group will continue to take proactive measures and
monitor closely the risk arising from such currency movement.
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Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio (total liabilities divided by total equity)
increased from approximately 8.0% as at 31 December 2017 to
approximately 98.1% as at 31 December 2018, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in total liabilities. The increase in total
liabilities was mainly caused by the rise in liabilities from guarantee
(deferred income), pledge deposits payable to partner companies,
liabilities from convertible bonds and receipts in advance from partner
companies.

The Group recruits personnel from the open market and enters into
employment contracts with them. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages to employees, including salaries, bonuses, food
allowance and festival bonus to qualified employees. The Group places
high importance on staff development and provides training to our staff
to enhance their knowledge of the financial products in the market and
the applicable laws and regulations in relation to the industry in which
the Group operates and professional skills. The Group offers a lot of
support to employees with its diverse resources to help boost their
self-esteem and leading to their personal development.

The Group maintained stable relationship with its employees. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had 38 full-time employees. Compensation
of the employees primarily includes salaries, discretionary bonuses,
contributions to five insurance and housing provident fund scheme,
accident insurance and retirement benefit scheme. The Group incurred
staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration) of approximately
RMB24.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.

On 26 February 2018, since the Directors intended to offer greater
support for our rapid development in 2018, the Board approved a
remuneration payment proposal recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Group, pursuant to which 50% of the remuneration
of each Director between 1 March 2018 and 31 December 2018 would
be withheld. While the 50% withheld remuneration of each of the non-
executive director and the independent non-executive directors had
been paid before 31 December 2018, the Board, after considering
the financial performance of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2018, resolved that the Group would not release the 50%
remuneration withheld from the executive Directors between 1 March
2018 and 31 December 2018.
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The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as an incentive to the Directors and
eligible employees.

While serving the local economic development and assisting small and
medium sized enterprises, the Group was also engaged in charitable
activities to fulfil social responsibilities. We were widely recognised
and appreciated for being a role model. Every year, Success Charity
Foundation (£ E 0 E £ ), which was voluntarily initiated by shareholders
and employees of the Group, gives help and support to employees in
need. It provides timely support and assistance to families of employees
who suffer from serious illnesses or accidental injuries, and goes through
difficult times with the employees and their families. In respect of poverty
alleviation efforts, Mr. Xu Kaiying, the Executive Director of the Group,
visited Butuo County, Liangshan State, Sichuan Province to exchange
views on poverty alleviation work, and donated funds supporting industry
development in villages under paired support policy to help Liangshan
State out of poverty. In addition, Mr. Zhang Tiewei, the Chairman of the
Group, has been teaching as an off-campus tutor of the master’s degree
of finance of Guangdong University of Finance and Economics to nurture
brilliant students in joint effort with higher institutions, assist students in
developing the habit and thinking that integrates both theories and practice
in learning, encourage students to tap into professional knowledge, train
up their leadership skills and foster innovation and high moral standards.

Macro Outlook

After a relatively strong recovery, the world economy is exposed to
downside risks in 2019, whereby great uncertainties in macro policies
and the increased financial risks are the main culprits of global
economic slowdown. As the emerging economies are stabilising while
developed economies are experiencing slowdown, such variation in
growth pattern might benefit the development of the emerging markets.
On the other hand, worsening labour shortage will bring a high level
of core inflation to developed economies, whilst that of other regions
is to remain at low levels. Meanwhile, the Federal Reserve temporarily
ceases the interest rate hikes, while central banks in Europe and other
regions are seeking normalised monetary policies. In general, the
economy is likely to continuously experience mild slowdown in 2019.
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In 2019, China will continue to focus on the supply side reform,
further deepen the marketisation reform, widen the opening up of the
economy, and speed up the establishment of a modern economic
system. China will also continuously work hard in the Three Critical
Battles, reinvigorate the micro economy while innovating and refining
macroeconomic regulations. China strives to propel stable economic
growth and reform, adjust economic structure, raise living standard of
people, prevent risks and maintain stability, to ensure rational economic
development.

The “2019 Government Work Report” introduced multiple measures to
revitalise the market and improve business environment, particularly
naming alleviating corporate’s difficulties in financing as one of the
top priorities; and encouraging financial inclusion services in hopes
of alleviating financing stress faced by small and medium sized
enterprises. On September 28 2018, the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission issued the first ever Financial Inclusion White
Paper pointed out that the rapid development of financial inclusion
indicates the financial industry’s contribution towards the construction
of a modern economic system and its improved ability in serving the
real economy. In particular, digital financial inclusion is the key towards
the sustainable development of financial inclusion. In addition, the
Ministry of Finance reiterated its will to reduce corporate taxes, and
established the National Financing Guarantee Fund to support the
business development of small and medium sized enterprises. These
will provide good business development opportunities to the Group.

In response to the new policy, the Group will continue to forge steady
development of traditional businesses, develop asset management
business, propel integrated services in the Bay Area and enhance the
strength of the Group by means of investing, mergers and acquisitions;
in order to achieve rapid development.

Steadily Developing Traditional Businesses, while Actively Innovating
Products

The Group will seize the opportunities brought by the development of
financial inclusion to maintain the steady development of traditional
businesses, safeguarding the operation channels such as guarantee,
financial leasing and factoring, in order to explore new markets and
enhance investment and financing services for micro, small and
medium sized enterprises.
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For guarantee business, Success Guarantee will continue to
maintain the quality of traditional guarantee business. With small and
medium sized enterprises as target clients, the Group will strive to
accommodate the demands of the clients and the market. Meanwhile
it will follow the latest market trend to devise new products, actively
develop financial technology and gradually reshape and refine the risk
management mechanism. Success Guarantee will also answer to the
national policy in forging cooperation between banks and guarantee
companies, while launching innovative products, and providing
integrated financing services to small and medium sized enterprises,
thus reinforcing the core competitiveness of the Group.

For financial leasing and factoring business, the Group will continue to
use its advantages in resource allocation and its professional expertise
in product design to provide diversified financial services to clients.

Developing Asset Management Business

The asset management industry experienced an overhaul in 2018,
with the process of opening up of the finance industry being further
accelerated concurrently. As the domestic asset management
companies face international competition, new stage of development of
the asset management industry begins. Capitalising on the advantages
of its listing status, the Group will pay close attention to market
demand, integrate its resources in Hong Kong and Mainland China and
furnish diversified asset portfolio management services to clients in
need.

Propelling Integrated Services for the Bay Area

With the promulgation of the “Outline Development Plan for the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area” on 18 February
2019, the Greater Bay Area will strive to further open up the finance
industry and give innovative investment and financing services to the
real economy within the region. The Group will grasp the opportunities
brought by the construction of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area, and harness the resources in Mainland China and
Hong Kong to offer full-scale and diversified financial services to
enterprises in the Bay Area, and actively participate in boosting the
development of the Bay Area.
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Strengthening through Investment, Mergers and Acquisitions

In 2019, the Group will adhere to its long-term development strategy,
to explore investment opportunities, expand business scope, obtain
customer resources, enhance business capability by share purchase
or acquisition; in order to adapt to a financial system that is more open
and with higher level of marketisation and technological advancement.
Through internal and external investment, along with enrichment and
refinement of its business model, the Group will optimise its own
development path in the prevailing trend, whilst pursuing mutual
development of diverse businesses.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE ISSUANCE OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS ON 1 FEBRUARY 2018

On 1 February 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of HKD154 million under general
mandate. The net proceeds, after deducting the administration fee
of HKD1,540,010, were HKD152,459,990, and had been utilised as
follows as at 31 December 2018:

REGIESZBI N E B EEE.

“E-AF ARESRBERBERESR
B USRIBBAASHAIBERE
e EREXKH@HE KRREFER-
HIREBRED - LERSEMSL &
MEMEMRBRNEHRER BEY
m-HIHINRE BF - BLEEER
EARBTESRECHBRRER  SEX
R - WEEER - HEEE -

RZZB-N\FZA-BRITARK
BENERIA

RZE—NEZA—H  AQBFRE—
AR IZRERL 1T AN & 4858 154,000,000 78 JTHY
AR ES - RFEE 1,540,01058 7T
% Fr8FIEFEEH 152,459,990 8 7T -
ZERESII—Z-N\E+=-BA=+—8
EAEUTAZE :

HKD’million

BEET

1. Acquisition of T. M. Management Limited 1.  UY8&T. M. Management Limited 5.53

2. Capital increase of Guangdong Success 2. ENEREXAMEERERITVESRS 73.18
Finance Guarantee Company Limited

3.  Prepayment of principle and 3. HWEREFELEAERIXGFE 15.04
interest payment of convertible bonds

4.  General working capital of the Group 4. KE—REEES 31.61

Total net proceeds unutilised RAMBRIBAFEE 27.10

The balance of the net proceeds was deposited with banks in Hong
Kong and will be used as general working capital of the Group and for
development of the existing and future projects of the Group.
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A fair review of the business of our Group as well as discussion
and analysis of our Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2018 and the material factors underlying its financial
performance are set out in the “Chairman Statement” and the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” sections of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of our Group are the provision of financial and non-financial
guarantees services, financial leasing and financial consultancy
services in China.

The results of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and the state of our Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 288 of this annual
report.

The cash flow position of our Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out and analysed in the consolidated cash flow statements
set out on pages 106 to 108 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare a final dividend by the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For any taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of,
dealing in the shares of our Company, shareholders should consult an
expert.

Details of our Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018 are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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The Company’s register of members will be closed from 17 May 2019
to 23 May 2019 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 16 May 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of the distributable
reserves of our Company was approximately RMB406.3 million.
Movements in the distributable reserves of our Group during the year
are set out in note 28(j) and note 32 to the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of our Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 104 to 105
of this annual report.

Details of the movements of equipment of our Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

Details of the movements in Company’s share capital for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 28(c) to the financial
statements.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

AARBE=ZE-—NFEAT+EREZ
Z-AERAZ+=ZEH(BEEEMX)
FERERRETTFE HESTgE
TARRBRMHNBEER - BFEHE
REBEFAEERELREWNER AT
BEENEZWRMBE REEREE
BREER-ZE-NAEFERBA+AAABTFHOE
BT XERAQATEEBHNRMGE
FEEEEBPRESFZLERAT (M
WAEBEFERKBRI18IFEEHF
71817121716 F ) » LUPHEE T F

4= o

=%

RZEBE-NEFE+ZB=+—H ' X2F
WHE D REFEBEBENAARYE406.3EE
T REEREANADIRFHEEZEH
AR RS 2R 3R MTEE 28(1) B2 FfitzE 32 ©

FRANEBRFENEBHENAFERE 104
Z105 B EREEX -

REBABZE-ZE—N\E+=-A=+—
ALEFENRESBFFTRNMERR
MiEE17 -

KAFRBE-_E—N\E+=-F=+—
BLEFENRASBFBFHANTBRE
HizE 28(c) °



Our Company maintains two share option schemes, namely the Pre-
IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and the Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme”, together with the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the “Share
Option Schemes”) for the purpose of recognising the contribution
of the employees of our Group and retaining them for the continual
operation and development of our Group. Both schemes were adopted
pursuant to a written resolution of all the then shareholders of our
Company passed on 18 October 2013 (the “Adoption Date”).

Under the Share Option Schemes, our Board may, at its discretion,
offer any employee (including any executive Directors) of our Group,
options to subscribe for shares in our Company subject to the terms
and conditions stipulated in the Share Option Schemes.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

a)  Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to enable
our Company to grant options to the participants as incentive or
rewards for their contributions to our Group.

b)  Total number of shares available for issue and vesting period

The total number of shares subject to the options under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 10,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 1.91% of the issued Shares, as at the date of this
annual report, which shall vest to the relevant option holder in
tranches in the following manner:

() 50% of the options shall vest and become exercisable on 30
June 2014;

(i)  30% of the options shall vest and become exercisable on 30
June 2016; and

(i) 20% of the options shall vest and become exercisable on 30
June 2018.

EEEHE

DB R IRRE R ERT S (A ER AR
BRENBREAS(ERAHBEENE
BRESE DEERARBEERBRES
S(EHERAFABEERBREE ] EF
BAXAMBEBRETS - SE BR
B DLESEAKEESFH
BB YRESBEAFAKENTELEE
RERMN - ZWMEAEHIR=-F—=
FTATNB(HEABHDREARRF
ERNZERRBENEERZZERM -

RIBBRENS ESETHBERLSE
BEAEE(BEEMATES)REER
RELIRBARARARE - EAZBRE
ST &I FTaT B RV RER R AR A AR PR

BEXARBRENEREE

BRAAHBENBRENEEMRAB
T

a) alEBIERY

BRAHBENBRETESER
RATESEATEHBRE
RREHAEEFFERAVERRN

#

il 3

b) HFEITHIRGBER B

REBXRXAMZEEABERES
EMERESENROAES
10,000,000 f% (18 & A A< F 3} H 2
ERITIRMN1.91%) » BRUT
FROWUFEBTFEEBERERSE
A

i) S0%MEREAR-Z=—MH
EANB=1TBEBRAFTIT
i ;

(i) SONMEBBREANRZ-ZT—
FARA=1THEBRUFIT
£, %

(i) 20%MEREAR=-Z=—N
FAB=+THEBRTUFIT
EO

FERE

29



30

EEEHE

)

a

Amount payable upon acceptance of options

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant of an option is required to be paid by each of the grantees
upon acceptance of the granted option.

Remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 6 November 2013, our Company granted 10,000,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had no outstanding options
granted at the end of the financial year ended 31 December
2013. Nevertheless, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in force and effect and
options which are granted during the life on the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme may continue to exercise in accordance with the
respective terms of issue. No options granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme had been exercised by the grantees in the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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During the twelve-month period ended 31 December 2018, the
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REBEEZE-Z-NF+ZA=+t—HL

movements of the options which have been granted under the Pre-IPO  +={A 8 #if » RIBEE X AR EATE
Share Option Scheme are set out below: RESTERENBRESEEHRINOT !
Outstanding
as at Balance as at
1 January 31 December
Category and 2018 Exercised Lapsed Cancelled 2018
name of RZE-\% during during duing  RIE-\%
participants Vesting Date Exercise period -A-H the period the period the period +ZA=+-H
SmERRRES BB (i R ATE HR{TE HR%y Himat s e
Category 1 - Director
Bh1-£%
Li Bin 6 November 2013 - 30 June 2014 - 500,000 — — — 500,000
£ 30 June 2014 5 November 2023
—E-ZF “E-NF
+-A~HEZ ~AZTHE
“E-{F —2-=
~AZTA +-AEA
6 November 2013- 30 June 2016 - 300,000 — — — 300,000
30 June 2016 5 November 2023
—E-ZE —E-RE
+-A~HZ ~AZTHE
“E-RE “E-=
~A=TH +-AEA
6 November 2013 - 30 June 2018 - 200,000 — — — 200,000
30 June 2018 5 November 2023
—E-=F —E-N\F
+-A~HEZ ~A=THZE
“E-N\% -
~A=TH +-AEA
Dai Jing 6 November 2013- 30 June 2014 - 450,000 = = 3 450,000
HE 30 June 2014 5 November 2023
—E-ZF —2-MF
+-A~HZ ~B=tHZ
“E-IE ~EBC=
~A=TH +-AEA
6 November 2013- 30 June 2016 - 270,000 = o = 270,000
30 June 2016 5 November 2023
“E-=F “E-NE
+-A~EZE ~B=tHZ
ZE-RE —E-=E
~A=TH +-AEA
6 November 2013- 30 June 2018 - 180,000 = = = 180,000
30 June 2018 5 November 2023
—E-=f ZE-\E&
+-A~EZE ~B=tHZ
2\ —2_=
~A=TH +-AEA
Sub-Total 1,900,000 = - — 1,900,000
I
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Outstanding
as at
1 January Balance as at

Category and ‘ 2018 Exercised Lapsed Cancelled St Decer;\(l))1e8r
name of RZE-\& during during during - j\&
participants Vesting Date Exercise period —B—H the period the period theperiod +-p=+-A
SMERRRES BB TlES & {76 BT HR%H BN 3
Category 2 - Employees under continuous employment contract
BRI2- BEEAL RN AONES

6 November 2013 - 30 June 2014 - 2,183,000 — — = 2,183,000

30 June 2014 5 November 2023

~E-Zf it Sit2

+-A~HZ ~AZTHZE

—Z-mE b St 2

~A=TH +-AEA

6 November 2013 - 30 June 2016 - 1,452,000 — (3,000) — 1,449,000

30 June 2016 5 November 2023

—E-=F —E-RE

+-A~HZ ~AZTHE

ZE-RE —E-ZF

~NA=TH +-AEA

6 November 2013 - 30 June 2018 - 966,000 — — — 966,000

30 June 2018 5 November 2023

—E-=f —E-N\%

+-A~HZ ~AZTHE

—E-N\F b St 2

~A=TH +-AEA
Sub-Total 4,601,000 — (3,000) = 4,598,000
it
Total 6,501,000 — (3,000) — 6,498,000
- h
Notes: Viorzan
1. The date of grant of the options is 6 November 2013. 1. BRENEFHBEE=-E—=1+—A8

<H e

2. The options have an exercise price of HK$1.90. 5 B FERE 1 1T B 5 1.90 58 7T o
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The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or service providers of our Group and to promote the success
of the business of our Group.

The aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
our Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company as from the Adoption
Date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable upon exercise of
options which have been granted but which have lapsed in accordance
with the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of our Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all
the shares in issue upon the Listing Date (i.e. 414,044,000 shares after
over-allotment option has been exercised). The limit of 10% may be
refreshed at any time by approval of the shareholders of our Company
in general meeting provided that the total number of the shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of our Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshed limit.

Unless approved by shareholders of our Company in general meeting,
the total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of our Company in any 12-month period
up to date of grant must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.
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A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an
option.

Pursuant to the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of our Company on the exercise of an option
at the price determined by our Board provided that it shall be at least
the higher of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date on which an option is
offered to a participant, which must be a business date (the “Offer
Date”); (b) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (c) the nominal value of
a Share on the Offer Date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as our Board
may determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

As at the date of this interim report, no options had been granted or
agreed to be granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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The directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei

(re-elected on 19 May 2017)
Mr. LI Bin

(re-elected on 18 May 2018)
Ms. DAI Jing

(appointed on 18 May 2018)
Mr. XU Kaiying

(re-elected on 19 May 2017)
Mr. PANG Haoquan

(re-elected on 19 May 2016)

Non-executive Director

Mr. HE Darong
(re-elected on 18 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei
(re-elected on 18 May 2018)
Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur
(re-elected on 19 May 2016)
Mr. XU Yan
(re-elected on 19 May 2016)
Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang
(re-elected on 19 May 2017)
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Pursuant to Article 108 of the articles of association of our Company (the
“Articles of Association”) and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), one-
third of our directors will retire by rotation at the annual general meeting
of our Company and will be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Pang Haoquan, Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur and Mr.
Xu Yan will retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Ms. Dai Jing was appointed as an executive Director for a term of three
year with effect from 18 May 2018.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any directors of
our Company appointed by our Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election.

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of our
Company are set out at pages 80 to 87 of this annual report.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of the
directors’ information of the Company since the date of our 2018
interim report until the date of this annual report are as follows:

1. Mr. HUNG Hoi Ming Raymond has resigned as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 20 September 2018.
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As at 31 December 2018, (i) Mr. Zhang Tiewei entered into a service
agreement commenced on 13 November 2016 as supplemented
by a supplemental service agreement commenced on 1 October
2017; (iiy Mr. Li Bin entered into a service agreement commenced on
13 November 2016 as supplemented by two supplemental service
agreements commenced on 1 October 2017 and 18 May 2018; (iii)
Ms. Dai Jing entered into a service agreement commenced on 18 May
2018; (iv) Mr. Xu Kaiying, entered into a service agreement commenced
on 4 July 2016, as supplemented by a supplemental service agreement
commenced on 1 October 2017; and (v) Mr. Pang Haoquan, entered
into a service agreement commenced on 6 January 2017, as
supplemented by a supplemental service agreement commenced
on 1 October 2017. Such service agreements may be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service agreements.

Except for Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang, whose service agreement commenced
on 4 July 2016, each of the non-executive director and the independent
non-executive directors was appointed to our Board pursuant to
their respective letters of appointment, for an initial term of three
years commencing on 13 November 2016, as supplemented by a
supplemental service agreement commenced on 1 October 2017, and
such appointment may be terminated in accordance with the terms of
the letters of appointment.

As at 31 December 2018, none of our directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM of our Company has a service contract with
members of our Group that is not determinable by our Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The emoluments of our directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee, and decided by our Board, having regard to
our Company’s operating results, individual performance, experience,
responsibility, workload and the prevailing market practices. No
director is involved in deciding their own remuneration.
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On 26 February 2108, since the Directors intended to offer greater
support for our rapid development in 2018, the Board approved a
remuneration payment proposal recommended by the remuneration
committee of our Company, pursuant to which 50% of the remuneration
of each Director between 1 March 2018 and 31 December 2018 would
be withheld. While the 50% withheld remuneration of each of the non-
executive director and the independent non-executive directors had
been paid before 31 December 2018, the Board, after considering the
financial performance of our Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2018, resolved that our Company would not release the
50% remuneration withheld from the executive Directors between 1
March 2018 and 31 December 2018.

Our Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as an incentive to our directors
and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are set out under the
section headed “Share Option Schemes” of this annual report.

Details of the emoluments of our directors and the five highest paid
individuals of our Group during the year under review are set out in
notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable laws
and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
throughout the financial year. Our Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in
the Shares and underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and as recorded in the
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register required to be kept by our Company under section 336 of the

B 1R P 56 336 1R B 17 B 1Y &= ;T i A T 8%

SFO: MRERSAR !
Long Position in shares RGO HNER
Approximate
Number  Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity Notes of Shares Shareholding Mete?
BR R4
BEE/ 285 =10) i & B ER A
Expert Depot Limited Beneficial interest 1,6 250,132,000 47.68%
BnkR
Bliss Success Investments Limited Beneficial interest 2,6 250,132,000 47.68%
BinfEn
Novel Heritage Limited Beneficial interest 3,6 250,132,000 47.68%
BifEs
Mr. Chen Guoxian Interest in a controlled corporation 4,6 250,132,000 47.68%
BREIEE £ & REZRHEENER
Insider Solution Limited Beneficial interest 4,6 250,132,000 47.68%
BifEn
New Maestro Investments Limited Beneficial interest 5 45,000,000 8.58%
BifEs
1. Expert Depot Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI 1.  Expert Depot Limited & — =X 1£ &

whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,
our Chairman and an executive Director. Out of the 250,132,000
Shares held by Expert Depot Limited, 1,638,000 Shares are held
by Mr. Zhang Tiewei for his own beneficial interest.

BREZHEHESMA LN AR H
EHMEBRITRABEFERITE
ERYBILEIFH - Expert Depot
Limited 3% & #9 250,132,000 A% i% 19
A+ 1,638,000 B% B 12 T3 B R 8 2
GSERBERGHNEREREER °
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2. Bliss Success Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Xu
Kaiying, an executive Director.

3. Novel Heritage Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Pang Haoquan,
an executive Director.

4. Insider Solution Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Chen Guoxian.

5.  New Maestro Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVl whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. He
Darong, the non-executive Director.

6. Pursuant to an acting in concert confirmation dated 31 May 2015,
Mr. Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr.
Chen Guoxian confirmed they have been acting in concert, in
exercising and implementing the management and operation of
the Group with each other and reached consensus before making
any commercial decisions (including financial decisions and
business operation decisions) on an unanimous basis. Hence, Mr.
Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr. Chen
Guoxian are deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

7. Calculated with reference to the number of issued Shares
(524,635,000) as at 31 December 2018.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2018, there was no other
person so far as was known to the directors or chief executive of our
Company, other than the directors or chief executive of our Company
as having an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of our Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by our Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
director and chief executive of our Company and their respective
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of our
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to our Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he was taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or were required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) to be notified to our Company
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and the Stock Exchange, are set out below: A %DQZIK RERXNERR AR W
T
Long Position in shares RRGHEFE
Approximate
Number of  Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Notes Shares Shareholding MNote®
R4
EEns =10 Mzt gty 4= B e
Mr. Zhang Tiewei (1) Beneficial Interest 1,7 1,638,000 47.68%
REEELE (1 Exks
(2) Interest in a controlled corporation 248,494,000
() REZEFEE A ER
Mr. Xu Kaiying Interest in a controlled corporation 2,7 250,132,000 47.68%
i REZHEEN#ER
Mr. Pang Haoquan Interest in a controlled corporation 3,7 250,132,000 47.68%
FEREE REEF B #ER
Mr. He Darong Interest in a controlled corporation 4 45,000,000 8.58%
EREsE REEFEEMNER
Mr. Li Bin Beneficial Interest 5 1,000,000 0.19%
£ Bnfkn
Ms. Dai Jing Beneficial Interest 5 900,000 0.17%
HEzL EnfEn
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Expert Depot Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei, our
chairman and executive Director.

Bliss Success Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVI whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Xu
Kaiying, our executive Director.

Novel Heritage Limited is a company incorporated in the BVI
whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Pang Haoquan,
our executive Director.

New Maestro Investments Limited is a company incorporated
in the BVl whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. He
Darong, our non-executive Director.

Our Company granted 1,000,000 and 900,000 options under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to Mr. Li Bin and Ms. Dai Jing on
6 November 2013. None of the options granted to Mr. Li Bin and
Ms. Dai Jing had been exercised from 13 November 2013 (the
“Listing Date”) to 31 December 2018.

Calculated with reference to the number of issued Shares
(524,635,000) as at 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to an acting in concert confirmation dated 31 May 2015,
Mr. Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr.
Chen Guoxian confirmed they have been acting in concert, in
exercising and implementing the management and operation of
the Group with each other and reached consensus before making
any commercial decisions (including financial decisions and
business operation decisions) on an unanimous basis. Hence, Mr.
Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan and Mr. Chen
Guoxian are deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates had any interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein; or were required
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Exercise Period Exercise price
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Number of
shares subject to
outstanding Approximate
options as at percentage of
Exercised during 31 December our Company’s

Name of director Date of grant (subject to vesting period)  per share RMB the period 2018 issued capital
RZE-\&
+ZA=+-H EART
T BRITEE ERITERRE BRTRE
£ B aY (ZBBUFR) AR# BNGE S RNRHHE HRAE
Li Bin 6 November 2013 30 June 2014 - 1.9 Nil 1,000,000 0.19%
5 November 2023
N “E-=Ft+-AR~H “Z-MEAB=THE &
ZZ-=%+-HA1H
Dai Jing 6 November 2013 30 June 2014 - 1.9 Nil 900,000 0.17%
5 November 2023
HE “Z-=f+-A~A —E-MEXA=THE &
“E-=f+-AAH

Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate; and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right during the reporting period.
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No contracts, other than a contract of service with any director or
any person engaged in the full-time employment of our Company,
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of our Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

No contract of significance in relation to our Group’s business to which
our Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated company was a
party and in which any director of our Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year, nor had there been any contract of significance
entered into between our Group and a controlling shareholder of our
Company in the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no directors had interest
in any business which directly or indirectly competes, or is likely to
compete, with the business of our Group.

Exercise of share options

Prior to the listing of shares in the share capital of our Company
(“Shares”) on the Stock Exchange, our Company granted options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 10,000,000 Shares (the “Pre-IPO Share
Options”) pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 18 October
2013. None of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted have been exercised
during the year ended 31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018,
the Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 6,498,000 Shares remained
unexercised and the Pre-IPO Share Options to subscribe for 813,000
Shares were forfeited. Save for the Pre-IPO Share Options, our
Company has not granted any options to subscribe for Shares.
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Shares repurchase

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company purchased
6,170,000 shares of its own ordinary shares of the Company at
the highest and lowest prices of HK$1.13 and HK$0.72 per share
respectively (“Shares Repurchase”). The Shares Repurchase is in
the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Such repurchases may, depending on market conditions and funding
arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net asset
value per Share and/or earnings per Share and will only be made when
such repurchases will benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

Detail information of the purchase, sales or redemption of the listed
securities of the Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2018 were disclosed in note 28(c)
of the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, neither our Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of our Company’s
listed securities.

On 1 February 2018, our Company issued convertible bonds under
general mandate in an aggregate principal amount of HK$154,000,000.
A total of 70,000,000 conversion shares may be issued pursuant to
the convertible bonds at the initial conversion price of HK$2.20 per
conversion share. Details of the alterations on the terms and conditions
of the convertible bonds are set out on page 49.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under our Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which oblige
our Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Our Group’s customer base is diversified. The relationship between
our Group and our customers has been stable. For the year ended 31
December 2018, our Group'’s five largest customers accounted for 42.87%
(2017: 75.58%) of our Group’s revenue and our single largest customer
accounted for 12.70% (2017: 29.48%) of our Group’s revenue. Our Group
did not have regular or significant suppliers in view of its business nature.
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None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares, had any interest in our
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

Based on the information that is publicly available to our Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this annual
report, our Company maintains the prescribed percentage of public
float under the Listing Rules.

Mr. Zhang Tiewei, Mr. Xu Kaiying, Mr. Pang Haoquan, Expert Depot
Limited, Bliss Success Investments Limited and Novel Heritage
Limited, each a controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules), entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) in favour of our Company on 18 October 2013 pursuant
to which they have undertaken to our Company (for itself and for the
benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he would not, and would procure
that its or his associates (other than any member of our Group) would
not, directly or indirectly, carry on, participate or be interested or
engaged in or acquire or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder,
partner, principal, agent, director, employee or otherwise) any business
which is or may be in competition with the current businesses of our
Group during the restricted period.

An annual confirmation has been received from each of the above
mentioned controlling shareholders on compliance with each of their
respective undertaking under the Deed of Non-competition.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition by the above mentioned controlling
shareholders and confirmed that the Deed of Non-competition is fully
complied with and duly enforced in the year ended 31 December 2018.

Our Group commits to fulfil social responsibility, promote employee
benefits and development, protect the environment and giving back to
community and achieve sustainable growth.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

ESPHAMBEBRBARBES IR
HERARD R BT 5% A EBEM
REBERAEELAREEER TS
BEEEMER -

REAQNFUXFRENENERKE
EEMA RAFHRAHY  ARR%ER
LHRAIFRETAN A RERET DL ©

REELLE - BRYKRLE  BEERELE
Expert Depot Limited * Bliss Success
Investments Limited X Novel Heritage
Limited (B A EBRRR(EER LHH
B)R=ZZF—Z=ZF+ A+ N\BFTZUE
RARZTHANTHRBEZB(TIHF R
w1l Bl BFEEAARAR(RELRS
RARKREMBRRNF ) A RER
FIHERETSLAREEBEA(KRE
BEARERRRMN TEEEREEE
THSHEINEFEEERREEIWE
IEE(EEBRATTITREEURR - &
BAESA RE EF - EEHHM
517) IRk O] pe B AR S B B A SE B A
RIS -

AR CERER LHERRRAEST
BERBETRESANAGABLNF
FERERDER

BUFATESCHEMLMEZERRRE
FARFRENER  UEAFHRFRZ
BEREE-F-/\F+-A=t—HL
FERZHEBITREZEHNT -

ARBRNBETHRER  KDHESE
AREE RERSEOELS  1HE
BABERE -



Given the services-oriented business nature of our Group, minimal
hazardous and toxic waste will be generated in our Group’s ordinary
course of business. Our Group upholds the principles of waste
management and is committed to the proper handling and disposal
of all wastes from our business activities. The direct impact to the
environment is immaterial.

Our Group does not have significant emissions and discharges into
water except those generated in our offices during our operations.
Business commutes of employees, electricity consumption, which is
mainly attributed to the lighting and air conditioning of our Group’s
office premises and the utilisation of office equipment, and the usage
of papers represented most of our Group’s carbon footprint. Water
consumption is also immaterial as our Group’s business model does
not rely heavily on water usage.

Our Group implemented various energy saving measures and
environment friendly initiatives in workplaces including the following:

e maintaining optimal room temperature on the air-conditioning at
26 degrees Celsius in the office;

® encourage complete power-off for computer equipment and other
office equipment when not utilized; and

e employees are encouraged to read and edit documents on the
computer and duplex printing is preferred if printing of which is
necessary.

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to environmental
laws and regulations for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Directors and the senior management of our Group regularly
assess the environmental risks of our business and adopt preventive
measures as necessary to reduce the risks and ensure compliance of
the relevant laws and regulations.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report”, which are set out on pages 69 to 79 of
this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had complied
in all material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under an array
of laws, including the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Partnership Enterprise Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Wholly Foreign-owned Enterprise Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Sino-foreign Equity Joint Venture Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Guarantee Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Regulations on the Supervision and Administration of
Financing Guarantee Companies and its four supporting systems,
the Measures for Supervision and Administration of Finance Leasing
Enterprises, the Interim Measures for Supervision and Administration of
Private Investment Funds, the Administration Measures for Micro-credit
Companies of Guangdong Province, the Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
as well as other applicable regulations, guidelines and policies issued
or promulgated pursuant to or in respect of these laws and regulations.
In addition, the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
the Companies Ordinance and the Employment Ordinance are also
applicable to the Group. The Group ensures compliance with such
requirements by taking various measures such as establishing internal
control and approval procedures at all levels, improving the training
mechanism and conducting post-event random inspections. The Group
attaches great importance to the compliance of its businesses and
operations, despite the fact that such measures will incur additional
operating costs.
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The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

Alterations of the terms and conditions of the convertible bond

Our Company prepaid to the Purchaser a partial principal amount
of the Convertible Bonds, which were issued on 1 February 2018,
of HK$10,000,000 and the Purchaser waived the Purchaser’s right
of conversion on the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$60,000,000. Upon the completion of the above, Convertible Bonds
were then adjusted to an aggregate outstanding principal amount
of HK$84,000,000 with 77,064,200 Conversion Shares which may
be allotted and issued upon the exercise of the Conversion Rights
in full at the Adjusted Conversion Price of HK$1.09 per Share. For
details, please refer to the announcements of our Company dated 27
December 2018, 31 December 2018 and 11 January 2019 in relation to
the alterations of the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds

Our Group did not enter into any discloseable connected transaction in
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by our Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 51 to 68 on
this annual report.
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While serving the local economic development and assisting small and
medium sized enterprises, the Group was also engaged in charitable
activities to fulfil social responsibilities. We were widely recognised
and appreciated for being a role model. Every year, Success Charity
Foundation (£ E/ 0 E £ ), which was voluntarily initiated by shareholders
and employees of the Group, gives help and support to employees in
need. It provides timely support and assistance to families of employees
who suffer from serious illnesses or accidental injuries, and goes through
difficult times with the employees and their families. In respect of poverty
alleviation efforts, Mr. Xu Kaiying, the Executive Director of the Group,
visited Butuo County, Liangshan State, Sichuan Province to exchange
views on poverty alleviation work, and donated funds supporting industry
development in villages under paired support policy to help Liangshan
State out of poverty. In addition, Mr. Zhang Tiewei, the Chairman of the
Group, has been teaching as an off-campus tutor of the master’s degree
of finance of Guangdong University of Finance and Economics to nurture
brilliant students in joint effort with higher institutions, assist students in
developing the habit and thinking that integrates both theories and practice
in learning, encourage students to tap into professional knowledge, train
up their leadership skills and foster innovation and high moral standards.

KPMG, the auditors of our Company, will retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company and be eligible
to offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted
to the AGM to be held on 23 May 2019 to seek shareholders’ approval
on the appointment of KPMG as our Company’s auditors until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting and to authorise our
Board to fix their remuneration.

By order of our Board
Zhang Tiewei
Chairman and Executive Director

Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
29 March 2019
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Our Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high
standards of corporate governance consistent with the needs
and requirements of its business and the shareholders. Save as
disclosed below, our Company has adopted and complied with the
code provisions (the“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2018. In respect of Code
Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, an exective director appointed a proxy
to attend the annual general meeting, an independent non-executive
Director was not able to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 May 2018 due to other business commitment. The
corporate governance principles of our Company emphasise a quality
board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

Our Directors will review our Company’s corporate governance policies
and compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.

The Board

Our Board, led by the Chairman of our Company, is responsible for
leadership and control of our Company and overseeing our Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. Our Board has
delegated to the senior management of our Company the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of our
Group. In addition, our Board has established Board committees and
has delegated to these Board committees various responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.

Our Board reserves its decision for all major matters of our Company,
including: approving and monitoring all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

Daily management and administration functions are delegated to the
management. Our Board delegates various responsibilities to the
senior management of our Company. These responsibilities include
implementing decisions of our Board, directing and coordinating day-
to-day operation and management of our Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by our Board,
formulating and monitoring the operation and production plans and
budgets, and supervising and monitoring the control systems.
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In the year ended 31 December 2018, our Board held 13 formal
meetings. Attendance of individual directors at our Board meetings
and our general meeting for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as
follows:

Name of Director EENA

Executive Directors: HITESE :

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei (Chairman) REELE(FE)

Mr. LI Bin (Chief Executive Officer) IR (7T B4 )

Ms. FU Jie ERL L (BEFHTTHAER -
(the then Chief Executive Officer, R-ZE-N\F
resigned on 18 May 2018) s A+ /\BEHE)

Ms. DAI Jing (appointed on 18 May 2018) &Ei&Z+t (R=F—N\FH A

+N\BEZEE)
Mr. XU Kaiying HEYEEE
Mr. PANG Haoquan BEEREE
Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond ABA%E
(resigned on 20 September 2018) (R=B—N\#F
A=+ HBEHE)
Non-Executive Director: HPITESE
Mr. HE Darong fER K-
Independent Non-Executive Directors: ~ BV IEZ/TEE :
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BEELE
Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur BRIFRLE
Mr. XU Yan HERE
Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang BNSIRE

In the year ended 31 December 2018, apart from the meetings of our
Board, consent/approval from our Board was also obtained by written
resolutions on a number of matters.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman and executive director, Mr. Zhang Tiewei, provides
leadership for our Board and ensures that our Board works effectively
and all important issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Li Bin,
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), takes the lead in our Group’s
operations and business development. The positions of the Chairman
and the CEO are held by separate individuals to maintain an effective
segregation of duties.
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Board composition
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Currently, our Board comprises ten directors, including five executive =~ EBERKEHA T EESAN ' BFEEE
directors, one non-executive director and four independent non- iﬂﬁ%% —® 'a'FiﬂfTié%&\%EE
executive directors. The current composition of our Board is as follows: FPATES - EFRHRAARNT

Name of Director

EEna

Executive Directors:
HITEE -

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei (Chairman)
REEEE(FE)

Mr. LI Bin (Chief Executive Officer)
IR (7T E)

Ms. DAl Jing

BHELL

Mr. XU Kaiying

R EESE

Mr. PANG Haoquan

B R
Non-Executive Director:
FEHITESE -

Mr. HE Darong

R LA
Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BUIFEHITESE -

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei
BRELE

Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur
BXRIFEE

Mr. XU Yan
HEXE

Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang
BNIRE

Membership of board committee(s)
EEZEENE

Chairman of nomination committee
REZEEXE
Member of remuneration committee

FHESERE

Chairman of audit committee
ENEERTE

Member of nomination committee
REZEENKE

Member of remuneration committee
FEEERE

Member of audit committee
ENEEBRE

Chairman of remuneration committee
FNEEREE

Member of nomination committee
REZEENE

Member of audit committee

BEREEERE
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Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number of
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third of
the board and at least one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei is admitted as a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Our Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. To the best of the
knowledge of our Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
none of the independent non-executive directors failed to meet any of
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Our Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive directors and considered that all the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

The biographies of our directors are set out on pages 80 to 85 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies of the directors,
our Board members do not have any family, financial or business
relationship with each other. The list of directors has been published on
the website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange,
and is disclosed in all corporate communications issued by our
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of directors

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
our Company, and each of the non-executive director and independent
non-executive directors has signed a letter of appointment with
our Company. Except for (i) Mr. Lin Bin, whose service agreement
commenced on 13 November 2016, as supplemented by supplemental
service agreements commenced on 1 October 2017 and 18 May 2018;
(ii) Ms. Dai Jing, whose service agreement commenced on 18 May
2018; (iii) Mr. Xu Kaiying, whose service agreement commenced on
4 July 2016, as supplemented by a supplemental service agreement
commenced on 1 October 2017; and (iv) Mr. Pang Haoquan, whose
service agreement commenced on 6 January 2017, as supplemented
by a supplemental service agreement commenced on 1 October 2017;
and (v) Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang, whose service agreement commenced on
4 July 2016, as supplemented by a supplemental service agreement
commenced on 1 October 2017; the terms of the directors’ service
contracts are for an initial term of three years commencing on 13
November 2016, as supplemented by supplemental service agreements
commenced on 1 October 2017, and is subject to the re-appointment
of each of our directors by our Company at an annual general meeting
upon retirement by rotation.
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The Articles of Association provide that any director appointed by our
Board (i) to fill a casual vacancy in our Board shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of our Company and shall be subject
to re-election at such meeting; and (ii) as an addition to our Board shall
hold office until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

In addition, every director should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. At every annual general meeting, one-
third of our directors for the time being, or if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation according to Article 108(a) of
the Articles of Association.

Non-executive directors

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. Pursuant to
the letters of appointment, as supplemented by supplemental service
agreements commenced on 1 October 2017, of our non-executive
directors (including our independent non-executive directors), the term
of appointment of each of such directors is three years commencing on
13 November 2016, or 4 July 2016 in the case of Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang,
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice.

Our Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 15 March 2019. A summary of this Board Diversity Policy,
together with the measurable objectives set for implementing this
Board Diversity Policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below:
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Summary of our Board Diversity Policy

Our Company acknowledge its board of directors should have a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of our Company’s business. Our Company believes
that board diversity enhances decision-making capability and a diverse
board is more effective in dealing with organisational changes and less
likely to suffer from group thinking. Board diversity is recognised as an
essential element contributing to the sustainable development of our
Company by enabling it to attract, retain and motivate employees from
the widest possible pool of available talent. Our Company sees diversity
as a wide concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
gender, age, cultural and educational background or professional
experience, skills, regional and industry experience, background, race,
and other qualities etc. In forming its perspective on diversity, our
Company will also take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time. Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy and contribution that the candidates will
bring to the Board. Candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. The
Board believes that such merit-based appointments will best enable
our Company to serve its shareholders and other stakeholders going
forward.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and educational background or professional experience.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to our Board.

Implementing and monitoring

The nomination committee is responsible for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of our Board and, in carrying
out this responsibility, will give adequate consideration to our Board
Diversity Policy.
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In addition, the nomination committee will also review the Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness, will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Our Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for our directors relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director. Our Company Secretary from time to time updates
and provides training materials to our directors, and organises seminars
on the latest development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules
and regulations relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities.
Our directors participated in courses relating to the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company directors by reading written training
materials. Our directors may request our Company, pursuant to the
policy for directors to seek independent professional advice, to provide
independent professional advice at the expense of our Company to
discharge their duties to our Company.

Directors’ securities transactions

Our Company has adopted the standard set out in the Model Code,
in relation to the dealings in securities of our Company by our
directors. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, each director
has confirmed that he/she has complied with the standard set out
in the Model Code since 1 January 2018 (or on the date of his/her
appointment) and up to the date of this annual report.

Board Committees

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of our Company was established on 18
October 2013 with written terms of reference, which was amended on
15 March 2019, in compliance with the Listing Rules. The duties of
our nomination committee include (but without limitation) (a) to review
the structure, size and composition of our Board on regular basis; (b)
to identify and recommend suitable individuals to our Board as Board
members; (c) to assess the independence of our independent non-
executive directors; and (d) to make recommendations to our Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors. ; and (e) to review, make recommendation to the Board
on and monitor the progress of the Board Diversity Policy adopted
by the Board on a regular basis Current members of the nomination
committee are Mr. Tsang Hung Kei and Mr. Xu Yan, both of whom
are independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Zhang Tiewei, an
executive director. Mr. Zhang Tiewei is the chairman of the nomination
committee.
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The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain a high standard of corporate governance and
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the composition of
the Board.

After considering the characteristics of the Group’s business model
and other relevant factors, such as skills, knowledge, gender or age,
the nomination committee considered that the current composition
of the Board reflects the balance of skills, educational background,
experience and diversity of perspectives desirable for effective
management of the Company. The nomination committee will continue
to review the diversity policy of the Board from time to time to ensure
its continued effectiveness and to identify qualified candidates on a
merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the nomination committee
held 2 meetings. Attendance of individual members of the nomination
committee for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Director EEpA

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei REEEE

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BEELE

Mr. XU Yan RFERE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not an
alternate.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are available on
the website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The work performed by the nomination committee during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is summarised as follows:

1.  reviewed structure, size and diversity of the Board;

2. reviewed the independence of the independent non-executive
directors;

3. made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Ms.
Dai Jing as executive director; and

4. made recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
redesignation of directors and the nomination of directors for re-
election at the annual general meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of our Company was established on
18 October 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The duties of our remuneration committee include
(but without limitation) (a) making recommendations to our Board
on our policy and structure for all remuneration of our directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(b) determining the specific remuneration packages of all our executive
directors and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments; (c) making recommendations to
our Board of the remuneration of our directors; and (d) reviewing and
approving performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate
goals and objectives resolved by our Board from time to time. The
existing members of the remuneration committee include Mr. Zhang
Tiewei, Mr. Xu Yan and Mr. Tsang Hung Kei. Both Mr. Xu Yan and
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei are independent non-executive directors and
Mr. Zhang is an executive director. Mr. Xu Yan is the chairman of the
remuneration committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration committee
held 5 meetings. Attendance of individual members of the remuneration
committee for the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Name of Director EENA
Mr. XU Yan REELE
Mr. ZHANG Tiewei ERE LA
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei HFEXE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not an
alternate.

The terms of reference of the remuneratin committee are available on
the website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The work performed by the remuneration committee during the year
ended 31 December 2018 is summarised as follows:

1.  made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages and policy of directors, senior management and
employees; and

2. evaluated the performance of all directors and senior
management.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee of our Company was established on 18 October
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The duties of our audit committee include (but without limitation)
(a) making recommendations to our Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor; (b) monitoring
integrity of our financial statements, our annual report and accounts,
half-year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained
therein; and (c) reviewing our financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems. The existing members of the audit committee
include Mr. Tsang Hung Kei, Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur and Mr. Xu Yan,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors. Mr. Tsang Hung
Kei is the chairman of the audit committee.

As certain amendments to the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code became effective starting from the 1 January 2016
(the “Amended Code Provisions”), our Company amended the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee to ensure compliance with the
Amended Code Provisions. Our Directors will use their best endeavors
to ensure our Company’s continued compliance with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code, as amended from time
to time.

The Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report and the
consolidated financial statements of our Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Audit Committee is of the view that
the consolidated financial statements of our Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and statutory
provisions, and sufficient disclosures have already been made.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the audit committee held 2
meetings. Attendance of individual members of the audit committee for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:
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Name of Director EENA
Mr. XU Yan HFERE
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur BXRIFE%E
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BRELE

Note: The meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, not an
alternate.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on the
website of our Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The work performed by the audit committee during the year ended 31
December 2018 is summarised below:

1. reviewed the Group’s annual and interim results statements and
the related result announcements, documents and other matters
or issues raised by external auditors;

2. reviewed the findings from external auditors;

3. reviewed the independence of the external auditors and
engagement of external auditors for annual audit;

4. reviewed the audit plans, internal control plan, the development
in accounting standards and its effects on the Group, financial
reporting matters and risk management;

5. reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience of
staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

6. approved the current year external audit plan, reviewed
and monitored internal control performance as well as the
effectiveness of the internal control system; and

7.  reviewed the corporate governance compliance.
Corporate governance function

Our Board is responsible for, amongst other things, the development
and review of the policies and practices on corporate governance of
our Group and monitoring the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
and reviewing the corporate governance compliance with the Code
Provisions and disclosure in the annual report.
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This corporate governance report has been reviewed by our Board in
discharge of its corporate governance function.

Accountability and audit financial reporting

Financial results of our Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

All directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of our Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Currently, our Company’s external auditors are KPMG (the “Auditors”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees paid or payable to
KPMG comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit EEEX
Review of interim results EHPHIEE
Others Hit

The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of our Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 88 to 99 of this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Risk management and internal controls

Our Board recognises that sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems are important to safeguard our shareholders’
investment and our Company’s assets, and recognises that its
responsibility to ensure that our Company maintains a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system. Our Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorised disposition and to manage
operational risks.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, review of our Group’s internal
controls covered major financial, operational and compliance controls,
as well as risk management functions. The controls that were built into
the risk management system are intended to manage significant risks
in our Group’s business environment.
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Our Group’s risk management framework includes the following
elements:

° identify significant risks in our Group’s operation environment and
evaluate the impacts of those risks on our Group’s business;

o develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and
o monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of our Group was
assisted by our Group’s risk management department, so that our
Group could ensure new and emerging risks relevant to our Group’s
operation are promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the action plans. These are on-going processes
and our Audit Committee reviews periodically our Group’s risk
management systems. Our Audit committee reported to our Board the
implementation of our Group’s risk management and internal control
policy which, among other things, included the determination of risk
factors, evaluation of risk level our Group could take and effectiveness
of risk management measures.

Based on the reports from our Group’s internal control department and
compliance management department and risk management department
and our Audit Committee, our Board considers that our Group’s risk
management and internal control system is adequate and effective
and our Group has complied with the provisions on risk management
and internal controls as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Delegation by our Board

In general, our Board oversees our Company’s strategic development
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies of our Group.
Our Board also monitors and controls operation and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies for risk management in
pursuit of our Group’s strategic objectives. Our Board delegates the
implementation of strategies and day-to-day operation of our Group to
the management.
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Company secretary

The company secretary is Mr. Pang Chung Fai Benny (“Company
Secretary”). Please refer to his biographical details set out on page
87 of this annual report. All Directors have access to our Company
Secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable law, rules
and regulations, are followed. During the year, our Company Secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours relevant professional training as
required under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Effective communication with shareholders

Our Board recognises the importance of maintaining a clear, timely
and effective communication with our shareholders. Our Board also
recognises that effective communication with our Company’s investors
is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract new
investors. Therefore, our Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure our shareholders and the investors
of our Company will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of our Group through the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars.

Moreover, the Company’s AGM encourages face-to-face
communication with shareholders. Members of the Board and
chairmen of various board committees will attend the forthcoming AGM
of the Company to be held on 23 May 2019. The directors will answer
questions on the performance of the Group raised by shareholders.

Shareholders’ rights

1. Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, extraordinary
general meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of our
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to our Board or our Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by our Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, our Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of our
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by our Company.
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Procedures for raising enquiries

Shareholders may direct their queries about their shareholdings,
share transfer, registration and payment of dividend to our
Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited:

Address: 17M Floor Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai Hong Kong

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Shareholders may raise enquiries in respect of our Company at
the following designated contact, correspondence address, email
address and enquiry hotlines of our Company:

Attention: Mr. Li Bin

Address: Office Units Nos. 10 and 11

11th Floor, Harbour Centre

No. 25 Harbour Road, Hong Kong
Email: hkinfo@chinasuccessfinance.com
Tel: (852) 2180 7189
Fax: (852) 3152 2010
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3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

a)

b)

Proposal for election of a person other than a director as a
director:

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, a
shareholder who wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election to the office of director at any
general meeting should lodge (i) notice in writing of the
intention to propose that person for election as a director;
and (i) notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected, at either (a) our Company’s Hong Kong office
Office Units Nos. 10 and 11, 11th Floor, Harbour Centre No.
25 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, or (b) the registration office of
our Company in Hong Kong at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong. The period for lodgment of the notices mentioned
above will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices to our Company may be
given will be at least seven days.

Other proposals:

If a Shareholder wishes to make other proposals (the
“Proposal(s)”) at a general meeting, he may lodge a written
request, duly signed, at our Company’s Hong Kong office
Office Units Nos. 10 and 11, 11th Floor, Harbour Centre No.
25 Harbour Road, Hong Kong.

The identity of the Shareholder and his/her request will be
verified with our Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and
upon confirmation by the share registrar that the request
is proper and in order, and is made by a Shareholder, our
Board will in its sole discretion decide whether the Proposal
may be included in the agenda for the general meeting to be
set out in the notice of meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the
nature of the Proposal as follows:

i. Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting of our
Company.

ii. Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of our Company.

iii. Notice of not less than 14 days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of an ordinary resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting of our Company.

Constitutional documents

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders passed on 18
October 2013, the Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association were adopted with effect from the Listing Date. The
Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of
our Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange.
For the year ended 31 December 2018, there is no change in the
Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of
our Company.
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China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter referred to as “the Group” or “we”) upholds the attitude
of responsible operation and is committed to integrating the concept
of sustainable development into our daily operation and management.
The Group highly values good corporate governance, environmental
protection and community investment and performs its corporate social
responsibilities effectively.

This report describes the performance and results of the Group in
respect of the environmental, social and governance aspects in 2018.
The report covers the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018 (hereinafter referred to as the “Reporting Period”), which is in line
with the Group’s 2018 annual report. We have prepared this report in
accordance with Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report aims to promote the
sustainable development of the Group and enhance the confidence
and understanding of the stakeholders of the Group.

The Group understands that the participation of stakeholders is
beneficial to improving the operating performance of the Group
continuously. The Group has always valued the opinions of its
stakeholders. Through various channels, it communicates with
stakeholders to understand their expectations and comments. This
helps us objectively review the planning, management, implementation
and evaluation of the Group’s corporate social responsibilities and
sustainable development.

For the Group, stakeholders refer to the groups and individuals who
have material impact on the Group’s business, or those who are
influenced by the Group’s business:

Internal stakeholders External stakeholders

- Board - Shareholders
- Management - Investors

- Administrative staff - Customers

- General staff - Partners

- Government/regulatory authorities

- Banks/financial institutions

- Industry associations

- Media

- Non-governmental organisations
and local communities
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During the Reporting Period, the Group generally communicated with
its stakeholders by means including email, meetings, telephone, daily
presentations, the Company’s website, the annual meeting, etc. The
Group places strong emphasis on information disclosure with a view
to enhancing the understanding of its stakeholders of the Group. In
2018, there were 1 general meeting, 2 disclosures of annual report
and interim report, 1 circular, 12 monthly returns on securities, and 48
announcements and notices. In addition, in 2018, the Group conducted
1 staff performance appraisal, participated in 5 industry trainings, 9
industry-related forums and seminars and made dozens of site visits to
customers, and the government visited the Group for 4 times.

The Group is a comprehensive financial service group mainly providing
diversified and comprehensive financial services to customers,
including guarantee, financial lease, asset management, etc. Our main
business activities do not have material impact on the environment
and natural resources. However, as a responsible enterprise, we are
well aware of the importance of environment protection to global
sustainable development. Environmental protection starts from
small steps. By enhancing the efficiency of the use of resources
and promoting business behaviors which are responsible for the
environment, we strive to reduce the impact of our operations on the
environment.

Emissions

The Group strictly complies with regulations in relation to environmental
protection and pollutant control, such as the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law, the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control
Law and the Regulations on Urban and Rural Household Garbage
Disposal in Guangdong Province in Mainland China and the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance and
the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong.

The Group does not discharge a large amount of hazardous substance
in water, on land and in the atmosphere as it is engaged in financial
services. The emissions of the Group are mainly carbon emissions
generated from the use of business vehicles and energy consumption
in daily operation and domestic wastes.

During the Reporting Period, there was no non-compliance in relation
to emission of hazardous or non-hazardous waste in water, on land and
in the atmosphere or its generation.
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Air emission

The air emissions of the Group are mainly greenhouse gases
generated directly or indirectly form the use of business vehicles
and electricity consumption in office operation. During the
Reporting Period, the Group generated greenhouse gases of
approximately 55.81ton CO2e and the emission intensity per
employee was 1.47ton CO2e.

Scope of greenhouse gases Emission (in ton CO2e¢)

2018
Source 1: Travel of business vehicles 20.04
Source 2: Purchase of electricity 35.77
Total 55.81
Intensity (ton/staff) 1.47

The Group has formulated relevant management
requirements for travelling and management measures for
use of vehicles for business purpose to reduce emission of
greenhouse gases:

° requiring our staff to make reasonable arrangements for
travelling and use of vehicles for business purpose and
encouraging them to use public transport for greener trips;

o reducing carbon emission of domestic and overseas
business trips by preferring communication means such as
conference calls and electronic communications;

o rail transport taking priority for short trips as it can lower the
operational costs and reduce the environmental impact of
the over-consumption of energy.

Measures to reduce electricity consumption will be listed in detail
below.

1.

Waste

As the waste generated by the Group is collectively handled by
the property management office of the office building where the
Group is located, there is no relevant data. In strict compliance
with the relevant regulations on waste treatment of Mainland
China and Hong Kong, the relevant property management office
sorts and passes the waste to relevant qualified professional
agencies for disposal.
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The Group is aware of the importance of waste control from the
source. Therefore, we have implemented the following measures
in reducing waste:

to purchase printers with high toner usage rate to reduce
consumables;

to promote the paperless office and replace printed copies
with electronic documents;

to select formats with high utilization efficiency of paper
for the documents that need to be printed, and to choose
duplex printing whenever possible to maximize the use of
space;

to place boxes to collect non-confidential papers for
recycling and reuse;

to reuse stationery such as folders and document bag;

to pass collected hazardous waste such as toner cartridge,
discarded electronics and accessories to relevant suppliers
for further treatment.

Due promoting the measures above, our staff have established
work practices that use resources with high efficiency.

During the Reporting Period, the paper consumption of the
Group amounted to approximately 459.45 kg and the average
consumption per staff member was 12.09 kg.
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Use of resources

Business activities of the Group do not involve a large quantity of
packing materials for finished products. Resources used mainly include
water and electricity. The Group also promotes green office operations
and strives to use all resources with high efficiency. Below is the
resource consumption of the Group during the Reporting Period:

Resources Unit

&R B

Electricity kWh

g T EREF

Water* m3

K+ M TR

Note: These figures only include water consumption at the place of operation

in Mainland China. As the water used at the place of operation in Hong
Kong is collectively handled by the property management office, there is
no data on water consumption.

In daily office management, the Group has fostered the awareness of
resources saving, energy conservation and emission reduction, and
has implemented corresponding management measures for energy
conservation.

In respect of the use of electricity:

we use energy-saving lighting equipment and prioritize the
purchase of office equipment with high energy efficiency;

indoor air-conditioners are kept at 26°c or above in summer,
and the air-conditioners of meeting rooms are not allowed to be
switched on for a long period of time;

staff are encouraged to set their computers to auto standby or
sleep mode;

office equipment, such as printers, fax machines, shredders, etc.,
is set in auto standby/sleep mode when left idle and is power off if
not in use;

Lightings are divided into different groups and should be switched
on according to actual needs to avoid excessive lighting;
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° lights should be switched off in meeting rooms or office not in
use;

o the last employee leaving the office after work is required to
check whether all office equipment, lights and air-conditioners are
switched off, ensuring that lights and machines are off when no
one is there.

In respect of the use of water:

° we put up water-saving signs in areas with water outlets, requiring
the staff to turn off the taps after use;

o we promote reusing water, raising the reuse rate of domestic
sewage to reduce the consumption of fresh water;

° we send designated personnel to check the water supply system
for leakage and repair on a regular basis;

By promoting the measures above, our staff have established the
practices of water and energy conservation. Lights and taps are
basically no longer turner on for a long period of time.

Environment and natural resources

The impact of the Group on the environment and natural resources
is insignificant. However, the Group is still committed to lessening
any potential negative impact of its operation on the environment and
reduces its reliance on natural resources through various means. In
addition, we give our employees environmental education and publicity
to encourage them to be responsible for the environment, which
prompts the staff and the Group to make joint efforts for environmental
protection.

Employment

The Group formulated its recruitment and employment policies strictly
in accordance with the Labour Law, the Labour Contract Law in
Mainland China and the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong as well
as other relevant laws and regulations, prohibiting the employment of
child labour or forced labour in any form. The Group has also signed
labour contracts with all fulltime staff to ensure the legal compliance in
employment.
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The Group has adopted a fair and open recruitment approach,
prohibiting discrimination by gender, age, geographical, ethnic, racial
and religious beliefs. The Group has also implemented equal pay for
equal work for men and women and has provided equal promotion
and demotion ladder for them. This ensures all our staff with equal job
opportunities to foster diverse development of staff.

Proportion of staff by gender, region and age group:

By gender
= RIS 5

Female
ztt
Male
B

By age
HERE S

30 years old and below
0B R EAT

31 to 40 years old

31m 2405k

41 years old and above

N E

In order to attract talents for business operations, we have formulated
employment package with market competitiveness, which includes
basic wages, bonuses, subsidies and benefits, as well as support for
our employees to communicate on and negotiate issues related to
salary and benefits through different channels.

The Group strictly complies with the relevant national requirements
in paying for our Mainland China employees in a timely manner with
sufficient amounts of their five social insurances, which include
pension, medical, work injury, fertility, and unemployment, and housing
provident fund, and buying labour insurance and Mandatory Provident
Fund for our Hong Kong employees. In addition, we buy accident
insurance for domestic staff to provide more comprehensive protection
for our staff. Maintaining the balance of life and work is a policy we
have long been adhered to. The current staff of our Group work 8
hours per day on a 5-day week basis. We also support our staff to
efficiently manage their work and daily life through marriage leaves,
maternity leaves, paternity leaves, breast feeding leaves, annual leaves,
bereavement leaves and so on.
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Comprehensive cessation procedures, including exit interview,
cessation formalities and salary and benefit settlement, have been
formulated by the Group to follow up cessation of employees. Rate
of turnover has been lowered thorough in-depth interviews with
employees with intention in resign, collection and integration of
feedback from ceased employees to make improvement in 6 major
aspects of the Group’s human resources procedures, inducing HR
planning, recruitments, trainings, salaries and benefits, performance
assessment and labour relationship. The Group prioritizes trainings
on expertise and techniques enhancement for employees not meeting
performance targets in fulfilling the role of their posts and encourages
self-enhancement of the employees.

During the Reporting Period, there had not been any non-compliances
with employment or labour laws and regulations in relation to
remuneration, recruitment and dismissal, promotion, working hours,
leave, diversity and anti-discrimination in Mainland China and Hong
Kong committed by the Group.

Occupational health and safety

The Group considers staff as corporate wealth and strictly complies
with laws and regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
in Mainland China and Hong Kong to safeguard the health and safety
of our staff.

With the Group’s engagement in the finance industry, there is no major
safety concerns in workplace. The Group provides a comfortable and
safe working environment for the staff by regularly cleaning water
dispensers, carpets and air-conditioners, decorating with green plants
and providing emergency medicines. The Group provides effective
protection to staff in case of illness or accidents and address their
potential worries by organizing annual physical examination and buying
medical insurance and accident insurance for staff. The Group has
proactively coordinated with the property management companies
to conduct the safety inspections for the fire safety passageways.
We participated in a variety of fire drills and escape drill to improve
safety awareness of staff, and foster their emergency escape capacity.
In addition, the Group organizes festive events from time to time
and sports activities such as yoga and personal fitness for our staff
participation, so that they may relieve work stress, nurture health
awareness and improve their health.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not commit any violation of
laws and regulations in relation to health and safety at workplace.
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Development and training

All Directors are provided with the latest developments in respect of
listing rules and other applicable regulations and regulatory systems,
industry information and the business environment. These facilitate the
Directors, understanding of the Company’s business and perform their
respective duties effectively.

The Group provides new recruits with regular trainings, which on
matters like the Group’s profile, rules and regulations as well as the
use of office facilities. Respective department offers new recruits with
trainings on professional skills according to the needs of their jobs and
roles in order to facilitate new recruits in adapting to the Company’s
environment as soon as possible.

The Group also provides the staff with opportunities of internal and
external trainings: the internal trainings are conducted in form of one-
on-one meetings, seminars or exchange sessions, whereas the external
trainings are conducted in form of external public courses, exchange
seminars or internal lectures given by external lecturers. These aim
to enhance the staff’s professional abilities and management skills.
Besides, through regular assessment of the performances of the staff
and in-depth interviews with them, the Group has jointly formulated the
performance goals and implementation plans to foster the staff to grow
with the enterprise.

During the Reporting Period, our staff took part in trainings in corporate
governance of listed companies, interaction between investment and
guarantee, interpretation of the Regulation on the Supervision and
Administration of Financing Guarantee Companies, the business of
project performance guarantee, legal expertise, Internet finance and
guarantee. The length of training was approximately 80 hours.

Labour standards

The Group strictly abides by the relevant provisions of the Labour
Law and the Employment Ordinance. There was no incident of
discrimination, employment of child labour, compulsion, forced labour
or infringement of employee benefits in the year. The Group also have
feedback system encouraging staff to communicate with the HR and
report on forced labour or non-compliance matters.

In the year, the internal control department did not receive any reports.
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Supply chain management

Our suppliers mainly comprised of suppliers of office supplies such
as drinking water, paper and stationery. The Group appreciated
the importance of green procurement and environmental friendly
and energy-saving products during procurement for office. We
also prefer local suppliers to reduce energy consumption caused
by transportation. In general, the Group procures products and
services based on their specifications, quality, pricing and applicable
environmental and social factors and by comparing prices of various
suppliers. Suppliers are required to comply with all relevant local and
national laws and regulations. Cooperation will be terminated in case
of any violations related to bribery, corruption and other prohibited
commercial activities. The Group conducts evaluation and feedback
regarding the performance of suppliers and maintains good and long-
term cooperative relationship with quality suppliers.

Product responsibility

As a financial group, the Group is committed to improving the quality of
products and services provided to our clients, and have implemented
the following measures:

1. Improving the quality of staff. We provide staff with regular
trainings on professional expertise for staff and encourage our
staff to take examinations for relevant professional qualifications
to provide more professional service to our clients;

2. Keeping customer information strictly confidential. The Group
abides by the relevant state laws and regulations, formulated strict
confidentiality requirements, and requires employees to strictly
implement the relevant provisions and strive to protect customer
privacy;

3.  Striving to improve product quality. With accountability to clients
in mind, we require strict compliance with standardized operations
by our staff in handling business, and listen to clients carefully,
promptly respond to the needs of clients, provide satisfactory
service to clients to the greatest extent and truly implement the
customer-oriented and customer-first service concepts;
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4. Optimizing product type and quality. The Group is actively
developing new business categories with the leverage of Internet
technology to meet diversified financing service needs of clients
and adapt to market changes in a legal way with risks under
control.

Anti-corruption

The Group is actively promoting clean corporate governance,
emphasizing the integrity training of employees; we incorporate the
integrity awareness into the daily management through improvement of
the rules, regulations and integrity norms.

The Group considers showing concern, serving and giving back in the
community as one of its responsibilities.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Zhang Tiewei, the Chairman of the
Group, has been teaching as an off-campus tutor of the master’s
degree of finance of Guangdong University of Finance and Economics
to nurture brilliant students in joint effort with higher institutions,
assist students in developing the habit and thinking that integrates
both theories and practice in learning, encourage students to tap
into professional knowledge, train up their leadership skills and foster
innovation and high moral standards.

In respect of poverty alleviation efforts, Mr. Xu Kaiying, executive
director of the Group, visited Butuo County, Liangshan State, Sichuan
Province to understand poverty alleviation work, and donated funds
supporting industry development in villages under paired support policy
to help Liangshan State out of poverty.

In addition, the Group encourages employees to enter the community
and encourages employees to be dedicated, responsible and
accountable volunteers and most of our employees have regarded the
volunteer activities as normal activities in their daily life. For example,
the Group encouraged employees to participate in marathons and
Foshan 50 km walking activities in order to actively respond to the low
carbon and healthy lifestyle, and promote regional development and
social image of the enterprise.

You share roses and get fun; you help the poor with borderless love.
The Group will continue to fulfil its social responsibilities in the future.

RE  #HE8KRE

b

wE

4 ELERERREAE - FEEED
$e%  ABAROAET « 5
EREHT - R R Al R
o LBRESS T RERS
ERAEEH SR -

RES

AEEBEEERIGER  BAHET
MERREEY BARESERE
EARB/TRRE SIS RAA R
HER -

FEEBLTHBLXENEE BHER
EEEA S ERNEL — -

BREHE AEEEFERBELEREE
ERMEREBNRIIEHBELENE
i EERBSEEESEY  BEYE
AREEREERAEONETHER
BHERN  HEBEREERNE - &
REBRES  BEAFBHERSBERE

* o

EHREIHF L AEEATESHRIR
FERBRMIIBRLUMNAEREZRKE W
EIT/E . THERBERNIBREXRE
BEES PHRUNTREERER

CE

o AEERBETEENE  HB
BIRBEERM AEANBEENE
BE  ZHETEREEEBHIIRER
MHERED - fl - AEEHEE
T2EFNMURFL0ARESEF
B LEBEERERRELE EEE
HERREENHLERR -

BAKKR  FERKRSE > KEBEEBER - XE
B AEERRBHREREHEITE
MMt EEE -

FERE

%)



80

EENSAREEEEBRE

Mr. ZHANG Tiewei, aged 56, is one of the founders of our Group. He
was appointed as our director on 16 January 2012 and redesignated as
the Chairman of our Board and executive director on 18 October 2013.
Mr. Zhang is responsible for our Group’s strategic planning and overall
business management.

Mr. Zhang has more than 21 years of experience in the financial
industry in the PRC during which Mr. Zhang has been acting as (i) the
director of Chancheng Futures Co., Ltd. since 1997 which engages
in commodity futures brokerages and financial futures brokerages;
(ii) the chairman of Success Credit since its establishment in 2009
which engages in the provision of small loans lending; (iii) the director
of Guangdong Success Insurance Brokers Company Limited since
2003 which engages in the provision of insurance brokerages; (iv) the
chairman of Guangdong Success Venture Capital Company Limited
since 2008 which engages in venture capital; (v) the Chairman of
Success Investment Holdings Group Company Limited (“Success
Investment Holdings”) since its establishment in 2005 which engages
in the investment in real estate, public utilities, medical and industrial
project; (vi) the director of Foshan Success Finance Group Company
Limited (“Foshan Finance”) which engages in the investment in
the modern financial industry, investment in the financial services
industry, capital management, asset management, business in the
sales of insurance products, etc; and (vii) the chairman of Guangdong
Jiayou Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiayou Network”). Mr. Zhang
accumulated relevant business and financial experiences which are
relevant to the business of our Group when acting as the director or
chairman of the above named companies. Mr. Zhang has also been
acting as the legal representative of Success Guarantee, our operating
subsidiary, since its establishment in 1996. Mr. Zhang is also a director
of each of Double Chance Developments Limited, China Success
Finance Holdings Limited, Guangdong Success Asset Management
Company Limited (“Success Asset”), Shenzhen Qianhai Success
Housing Wealth Management Company Limited, all being subsidiaries
of our Company.
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Mr. Zhang is a member of the 12th Foshan Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the vice president of the
14th executive committee of Foshan General Chamber of Commerce,
the standing committee member of the 11th executive committee of
Guangdong General Chamber of Commerce, and the chairman of the
1st council of Foshan Investment Chamber of Private Entrepreneurs.
Mr. Zhang has been awarded as an Outstanding Corporate Manager
in Guangdong Province in 2011 by the Guangdong Enterprises
Confederation and the Guangdong Entrepreneurs Association. He has
also been awarded as the top ten most influential persons in finance
in Guangdong in 2013. Mr. Zhang was obtained a master degree of
executive master of business administration after completing an EMBA
Programme in Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2012.

Mr. LI Bin, aged 46, is our executive director and the chief executive
officer of our Group. Mr. Li joined our Group in 2006 as an assistant to
the general manager of Success Guarantee and manager of the post-
guarantee management department. He was promoted to general
manager of Success Guarantee in 2009 and appointed as our executive
director and the chief executive officer of our Group on 18 October
2013. Mr. Li resigned as the chief executive officer of our Company
with effect from 15 September 2014 in order to focus his time and
effort on the development of the guarantee business of the Company
and continued to serve as an executive director of our Company. Mr. Li
was appointed as the chief operating officer of our Group on 31 August
2015 and is responsible for overseeing our Group’s operations and
internal management system. He was appointed as the vice chairman
of Success Guarantee in 2016. He has been resigned as chief operation
officer of our Group and appointed as chief executive officer of our
Group with effect from 18 May 2018.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li had worked at the Foshan branch
of Bank of China from 1993 to 2005 and was responsible for sales
and marketing activities in the bank and specialising in the provision
of loans and credits which are relevant to the business of our Group.
His last position in the bank was assistant manager of the sales
department.

Mr. Li obtained a master of business administration degree from Jinan
University in Guangdong, the PRC in June 2007.
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Ms. DAI Jing, aged 48, is an executive Director and chief operation
officer of the Company with effect from 18 May 2018. Ms. Dai joined
Success Investment Holdings in August 2006 as manager of the legal
department and was subsequently promoted to vice general manager
of Success Guarantee in January 2007. She was promoted to senior
vice general manager and general manager of Success Guarantee in
January 2010 and April 2016, respectively. Prior to joining our Group.
Ms. Dai worked at the Bank of China from 1993 to 2005 for handling
credit approval, credit management and asset protection. Her last
position with the Bank of China was assistant manager of the asset
protection department. Ms. Dai also worked with the China Merchants
Bank from 2005 to 2006 as a manager for handling bank management
matters. Ms Dai was admitted as a lawyer in the PRC in September
1995. Ms. Dai obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Wuhan
University in Hubei, the PRC in July 1993.

Mr. XU Kaiying, aged 55, was appointed as our non-executive director
on 18 October 2013 and re-designated as our executive director on 4
July 2016. Mr. Xu invested in our Group as a shareholder of Success
Guarantee in February 2001. Mr. Xu is the general manager of Foshan
Success Industry Investment Company Limited, the director of China
Success Capital (HK) Limited (“Success Capital (HK)”), the director
of Success Investment Holdings and the director of Jiayou Network.
Mr. Xu is also the director, the vice chairman of Success Asset and
Success Guarantee respectively, all being our Group companies.

Mr. Xu is a member of the 12th Foshan Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman of Foshan
Air-Conditioner Retail Industry Association, the standing committee
member of the 14th executive committee of Foshan General Chamber
of Commerce, and the executive chairman of Foshan Investment
Chamber of Private Entrepreneurs. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree
in finance management from Beijing Economic and Technological
College in July 2008. Mr. Xu has completed a post-EMBA degree at the
Peking University.

Mr. PANG Haoquan, aged 54 was appointed as our non-executive
director on 18 October 2013 and re-designated as our executive
director on 6 January 2017. Mr. Pang invested in our Group as a
shareholder of Success Guarantee in February 2001. Mr. Pang is also a
director of each of Success Investment Holdings, Success Capital (HK)
and Jiayou Network.
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Mr. Pang is also the chairman of Guangdong Yinhe Motor Group
Company Limited (ERIRAEFELEEBEHR A F]). Mr. Pang obtained a
diploma in automation from Guangzhou Open University in July 1982.

Mr. HE Darong, aged 59, was appointed as our non-executive director
on 18 October 2013. Mr. He invested in our Group as a shareholder
of Success Guarantee in July 2010. Mr. He also owns 9.09% equity
interests in Success Credit.

Mr. He is a the vice chairman of Success Asset and Foshan Lecong
Real Estate Square Company Limited. Mr. He is currently the general
manager of Foshan Tiefeng Industrial Investment Company Limited and
Foshan Shunde Shihai Industrial Investment Company Limited. Mr. He
obtained a master degree in business administration from the Tsinghua
University in 1998.

Mr. He was an NPC deputy of Lecong Town, Shunde District, Foshan
City in 2015. He was a member of the 10th Shunde Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and is the vice
president of The Steel and Iron Trade Association of Lecong Shunde
District Foshan City.

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei, aged 48, was appointed as our independent
non-executive director on 18 October 2013. Mr. Tsang has more
than 20 years of experience in financial management and reporting
and corporate governance. He is a Fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He had years of working
experience in an international accounting firm and is currently the chief
financial officer of Pak Fah Yeow International Limited, a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Main Board”), and an executive director of its major subsidiaries.
He is also an independent non-executive director of China Wah Yan
Healthcare Limited, a company listed on the Main Board. Mr. Tsang
holds a bachelor degree in computer science and accounting at the
University of Manchester, United Kingdom.
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Mr. AU Tien Chee Arthur, aged 46, was appointed as our independent
non-executive director on 18 October 2013. Mr. Au is a lawyer
with almost 20 years of legal and industry operations experience in
corporate and private practice settings. He is the Global Legal Director
for Strategic Projects and Operations at Byton, a global electric car
manufacturer headquartered in Nanjing with international footprints
in the U.S. and Germany. Previously Mr. Au has experience working
with multinational clients such as the Hong Kong Exchange, Sands
Group, Peninsula Hotel, Accenture, Hasbro etc. as well as technology
and biotech startups in Hong Kong both in both in-house and external
counsel capacities. Before returning to Hong Kong, Mr. Au worked in
Silicon Valley for almost 15 years. He was the Director of Intellectual
Property at Thoratec Corporation, an alumnus to the firms of Blakely,
Sokoloff, Taylor & Zafman LLP and Morgan Lewis, as well as being a
seasoned engineer with industry experience. Mr. Au has a bachelor
of science degree in engineering from Duke University, a master of
science degree in biomedical engineering from Case Western Reserve
University, and a degree of juris doctor from Santa Clara University
School of Law. He was admitted as a member of the State Bar of
California and registered to practise with the US Patent and Trademark
Office.

Mr. XU Yan, aged 46, was appointed as our independent non-
executive director on 18 October 2013. Mr. Xu has over 20 years
in the area of trade economy and banking. Mr Xu began his career
with the Foreign Affairs Department of the State Economic & Trade
Commission (the predecessor of the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council) as a deputy
director from July 1994 to August 2000. He then worked for Cazenove
Asia Limited as a manager, vice president and representative in chief
of Beijing representative office from May 2002 to February 2009. In
February 2009, Cazenove Asia Limited was taken over by the Standard
Chartered Bank and renamed as Standard Chartered Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited where Mr. Xu worked until he left in June 2012. Mr. Xu
served as the Chief Strategy Officer in China Minshen Future Holdings
Group Limited(H KR 2R jg &£ B B BR 2 &) from October 2015 to 31
December 2018. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from
Beijing Foreign Studies University in July 1994 and a master degree
in business administration from the University of Manchester in June
2002.
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Mr. ZHOU Xiaojiang, aged 56, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2016. Mr. Zhou has been a director in
Grandtopeak Land Consolidation Group Co,. Ltd. (EiZ= T ihZIEEEEF
PR2 7)), the chairman and legal representative of Beijing Zhong Di Land
Consolidation Co,. Ltd. (dt X & #h + ith 22 38 & BR X 7)), the chairman
and legal representative of Beijing Guotai Balance Land Layout and
Design Co,. Ltd. (It ZEZ= X F47 L # iR EIRFTBPR A |]), the chairman
and legal representative of Beijing Hongtai Entrepreneurial Land
Consolidation Co,. Ltd. (It R A L thEEIPHPR/A 7)), the chairman
and legal representative of Beijing Guoxing Weiye Land Consolidation
Co,. Ltd. (1t 2% L #h B H R 2 7)), the chairman and legal
representative of Beijing Guotai Pilot Sailing Boat Investment Co,. Ltd.
(Gt REREMMBEREBR 2 F), and the general manager and legal
representative of Guotai Jinglu Investment Holdings Co,. Ltd. (BHZ =&
REZEBR AR AT, since December 2007.

Mr. Zhou was the chairman and legal representative of Guoyu
Economic Development Corporation (Bl & £ 7% 2 & #2 2 7)) (formerly
China Three Gorges Economic Development Corporation (H = Ik
& B R 42 1\ 7)) from December 2004 to May 2007. He was also
the general manager and legal representative of Hualian Real Estate
Development Company (9 Bl £ 5 1th Z B 3% A §]) from March 2001 to
May 2007.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor degree of science, majoring in urban
planning, from Chongqging University (formerly known as Chongging
Construction Engineering College (EE &5 Tf22 %)) in August 1983
and an MBA from Murdoch University in Australia in 2001.
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Our senior management consists of our executive directors and the
following persons:

EMNSREEBHUITESRUATA
TR :

Director of Investment and Financing Committee

Name Age Position in our Group

i £ AEBERS

Mr. LIANG Tao 36 Chief financial officer of our Group
RisksE REEGHRE

Mr. ZHONG Zhigiang 45

ETmELE RRERESTE

Mr. PANG Chung Fai Benny 46 Company Secretary

TCHBEE RNEAME

Mr. LIANG Tao, aged 36, was appointed as the chief financial officer
of our Group on 18 October 2013 and is responsible for overseeing
the financial matters of our Group. Mr. Liang has over 10 years of
experience in financial management. Mr. Liang joined our Group in
December 2010 and was responsible for the initial public offering of the
Company in 2013. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liang has experience
for the listing of a mainland enterprise in NASDAQ. Mr. Liang has been
with L & L Energy, Inc., a US public company, and United Group Rail
(NZ) Limited, an Australian listed company responsible for financial
matters of the two companies. Mr. Liang holds Bachelor of Business
Studies of Massey University majoring in accounting.

Mr. ZHONG Zhiqgiang, aged 45, is the director of Investment and
Financing Committee and is responsible for the investment and
financing management of the Group. He is also the risk control director
of Success Guarantee and is responsible for overseeing the risk
management department of Success Guarantee. Mr. Zhong joined our
Group in October 2009. Prior to joining of our Group, Mr. Zhong worked
at the Bank of China from 1991 to 2009 for handling foreign exchange
settlement, provision of loans and credits and sales and personal
financing. His last position with the bank was assistant manager of the
personal financial department. Mr. Zhong obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics majoring in finance from Jinan University in Guangdong,
the PRC in January 2004.
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Mr. PANG Chung Fai Benny, aged 46, was appointed as our Company
Secretary on 18 October 2013. Mr. Pang is the founder and managing
partner of Benny Pang & Co, a firm of solicitiors in Hong Kong, since
February 2017. Between 1997 and January 2017, Mr. Pang practised
as a lawyer with several international law firms in Hong Kong and
Sydney. Mr. Pang received his bachelor’s degree in laws (with honors)
from Bond University in 1996. In 1997, Mr. Pang obtained his Graduate
Diploma in Legal Practice and master degree in laws from The College
of Law and The University of New South Wales, respectively. He was
admitted as a legal practitioner of the Supreme Court of New South
Wales in 1997 and as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in
2009. He is a member of both the Law Society of New South Wales and
the Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Pang is currently (i) an independent
non-executive director of Yuanda China Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board with stock code 2789; (ii) an independent non-
executive director of Sanbase Corporation Limited, a company listed
on the growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange with stock
code 8501; and (iii) a non-executive director of Huabang Financial
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Goldenmars Technology Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board with stock code 3638.

EENSAREEEEBRE

TZHhELE 465 R=ZE—=F1A
TNHEZEAARME - B=Z—t
F_RAB AERBEEMEKM
Benny Pang & CoV BRI AREEEH
A R—ANEEZZFT—tF—8>
TEERBEBREBEZEBEREMITE
R e EARER—NAARNFESHE
REEZZETREEN - R—Aht
F wEREDIREBEEERRFEE
BT AREBESLIFEEBMRENERE
Ty FHR— jULtEHR’E'%ﬁF'iFSZEE
TRESERHEZMER  IR-_FZ
NERMEBEBSELEREMERK - BA
FERETEMTESEREBREMS
SE -EALBAANEAPEHAERE
BRAB(—KRERLETHLT - BHK
IR 27T89) MBI FHITES ) (N HE
SEAR(—KRERXFRIZER LR
7o RHAI - 8501) B IHEHITE
=, R)EBEmMZRERA B (AB
EHEHERERARE  —XHRERL
MWAT - BRI - 3638) WIEHITE
=

FERE

87



88

B A BE R

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of China Success
Finance Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Success Finance Group Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 100 to 288, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flows statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”)
together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses

e SR IR iR SR AR R S 1R 1R

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157 and 190.
B EBIEIRFENT 12 13 - 14821 U RE 157 ERFE 190 EHIEFBZ

The Key Audit Matter
AREZER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

RMEZBEPMMEEZER

The Group has applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard No. 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)
since 1 January 2018 and developed a new expected
credit loss model (“ECL model”) for measuring
impairment losses on financial assets and provisions for
losses on financial guarantees issued by the Group.

The determination of loss allowances using the ECL
model is subject to a number of key parameters and
assumptions, including the identification of credit-
impaired stage, estimates of probability of default, loss
given default, exposures at default and discount rate,
adjustments for forward-looking information and other
adjustment factors. Management judgement is involved
in the selection of those parameters and the application
of the assumptions.
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Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
receivables and provisions for guarantee losses included
the following:

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls of financial reporting over the
approval, recording and monitoring of receivables
and financial guarantees issued, the identification
of the three stages of ECL model and the
measurement of impairment losses for receivables
and provisions for financial guarantees issued;
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

e S IR R (B SR RS R IR (A

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157

and 190. (Cont’d)

BRGREBEIRENE 12 13 - 14 R21URE 157 ERFE 190 EHIEHEUE ° (42)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
AREZEE BEMEZAEDPNNEEZSEE

In particular, the determination of the loss allowances and e
provisions for guarantee losses is heavily dependent on the
external macro environment and the Group’s internal credit
risk management strategy. The Group’s expected credit
losses and provisions for guarantee losses are derived from
estimates including the Group’s historical losses, internal
and external credit grading and other adjustment factors..
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assessing the reliability of the expected credit
loss model used by management in determining
loss allowances, including assessing the
appropriateness of the key parameters and
assumptions in the expected credit loss model,
including the identification of credit-impaired stage,
probability of default, loss given default, exposure
at default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-
looking information and other management
adjustments.

assessing the completeness and accuracy of data
used for the key parameters in the expected credit
loss model.
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

FES SR IR R (B SR RS 1R IR (A

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157

and 190. (Cont’d)

BRGREBERIREME12 - 13 - 14 R21URE 157 ERFE 190 BRI 5HBUE © (42)

The Key Audit Matter
AREBEZEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEZBEPNMAREEZER

Management also exercises judgement in determining
the quantum of loss given default based on a range of
factors. These include available remedies for recovery,
the financial situation of the debtors, the recoverable
amount of collateral, the seniority of the claim and the
existence and cooperativeness of other creditors.

Whilst the Group appoints external valuers for the
valuation of certain properties and other illiquid collateral,
the enforceability, timing and means of realisation of
collateral can also have an impact on the recoverable
amount of collateral and, therefore, the amount of
impairment losses and provisions for guarantee losses
as at the end of the reporting period.

We identified the impairment of receivables and
provisions for guarantee losses as a key audit matter
because of the inherent uncertainty and management
judgement involved and because of their significance to
the financial results and capital of the Group.

EEERETENERERTENSERRETHE X
PREANANBRERSR - EFANTBAMRR - EHE
mMAATREEHE  FRELAFUAREEFEEMEREA
REENEERRE -

HABEEZREIMIMEEMTGE TYER MRS
fim BREFARBEANTAFNITE KEARSALA
FEEFMNATREEE  EMZERREHROBERS
BEERERERRE -

RASEBYGRERER EREERERSBERELSH

RRRMPEEBHEFEERTREN  ANAHES
BEHNUBREREAMESREEX

For key parameters derived from internal data relating
to receivables or guarantees agreements, we compared
the total balance of the receivables grading report
and guarantee list, which contain information used
by management to assess impairment losses and
provisions for guarantee losses with the general ledger,
selecting samples and comparing individual receivables
and guarantee information with the underlying
receivables and guarantee agreements and other related
documentation to assess the accuracy of compilation
of the receivables grading report and of the guarantee
list. For key parameters derived from external data, we
selected samples to inspect the accuracy of such data
by comparing them with public resources.

° for key parameters involving judgement, critically
assessing input parameters by seeking evidence
from external sources and comparing to the
Group’s internal records including historical loss
experience and type of collateral. As part of
these procedures, we challenged management’s
revisions to estimates and input parameters
compared with prior period and on transition to
the new accounting standard and considered the
consistency of judgement.
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

FEM R IR (B iR R S 1R 4 48 (78

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157
and 190. (Cont’d)

B EBEIRFENT12 13 - 14R21 URE 157 ERFE 190 EHEFEE (18

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
AREZEER BMEZBEPNARIEZEE

We compared the economic factors used in the models
with market information to assess whether they were
aligned with market and economic development.

° evaluating the validity of management’s
assessment on whether the credit risk of the
receivables and guarantees have, or have not,
increased significantly since initial recognition and
whether the receivables and guarantees are credit-
impaired by selecting samples in industries more
vulnerable to the current economic situation. We
checked the overdue information, making enquiries
of the credit managers about the debtors’ business
operations, checking debtors’ financial information
and researching market information about debtors’
businesses.

o for receivables that are credit-impaired, evaluating
management’s assessment of the value of any
property collateral held by comparison with
market prices based on the location and use
of the property and the prices of neighbouring
properties. We also evaluated the timing and
means of realisation of collateral, evaluated the
forecast cash flows, challenged the viability of the
Group’s recovery plans and evaluated other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contract
terms.
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

FES SR IR R (B SR RS 1R IR (A

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 157

and 190. (Cont’d)

BRGREBERIREME12 - 13 - 14 R21URE 157 ERFE 190 BRI 5HBUE © (42)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
AREBEZEER BEMEZAEDPUNEEZSEE

recalculating the amount of credit loss allowance
for 12 month and life time credit losses using the
expected credit loss model based on the above
parameters and assumptions for receivables and
guarantees where the credit risk of receivables and
guarantees has not, or has, increased significantly
since initial recognition, respectively.

assessing the completeness and accuracy of
outstanding financial guarantees by inspecting
contracts, on a sample basis, and obtaining
confirmations from the beneficiaries of all financial
guarantees issued.

evaluating whether the disclosures on impairment
of receivables and provisions for guarantee losses
meet the disclosure requirements in Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard No. 7-Financial
Instruments: Disclosures (“HKFRS 77)
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

e S IR R (B SR RS R IR (A

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 111

and 145. (Cont’d)

BRGREBRIRENE12 - 13 - 14 R21URE 111 ERFE 145 BRI 5HEUE © (&)

The Key Audit Matter
AREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMEZBEPNMAREEZER

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9 has amended the previous classification
and measurement framework of financial instruments
and introduced a more complex expected credit loss
model to assess impairment. The Group is required to
retrospectively apply the classification and measurement
(including impairment) requirements and recognise any
difference between the original carrying amount and new
carrying amount at the date of initial application (i.e. 1
January 2018) in the opening retained earnings or other
component of equity.

We identified the transition adjustments and disclosures
in relation to the change of financial instruments
standards as a key audit matter, because of the
complexity of the transition process which involved
changes in internal controls of the financial reporting
process, accounting treatment, application of new data
and management judgement.
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Our audit procedures to assess the transition
adjustments in relation to the change in financial
instruments standards included the following:

o understanding and assessing the key internal
controls of the financial reporting process related
to the change of financial instrument standards.

° evaluating the accuracy of the classification of
financial instruments. We obtained information
on how management applied the classification
requirements of the new financial instruments
standards and the classification results. On a
sample basis we assessed the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets and relevant
documents in relation to the business model.

. for financial assets that are measured at fair value,
we obtained information on the valuation method
and key parameters used, selected samples to
evaluate the validity of the valuation method and
key parameters with the involvement of our internal
valuation specialists and in light of industry practice.
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Impairment of receivables and provisions of guarantee losses (Cont’d)

FES SR IR R (B SR RS 1R IR (A

Refer to notes 12, 13, 14 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 111

and 145. (Cont’d)

BRGREBTEIRENE 12 13 - 14 R21URE 111 ERFE 145 EHIE5HEUE © (48)

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
AREBEZEER BEMEZAEDPUNEEZSEE

assessing the reliability of the expected credit
loss model used by management in determining
loss allowances on transition and assessing the
completeness and accuracy of data used for the
key parameters in the expected credit loss model.

obtaining journal entries relating to adjustments
made on transition to HKFRS 9 and comparing
the list of classification of financial instruments,
the original carrying amounts, the list of journal
entries and new carrying amounts of the financial
instruments to assess if the journal entries have
been entirely put through the system accurately.
We selected samples to assess if the accounting
treatment is in accordance with HKFRS 9.

recalculating the new carrying amount of all
financial instruments and assessing the accuracy of
the opening balance at the date of initial application
(i.e. 1 January 2018).

assessing whether the relevant disclosures in
relation to the change in financial instruments
standards are in compliance with the prevailing
accounting standards.
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Choi Ching Hin.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—F—N\F+-A=+—ALLFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

2017
Note 2018 (Note)
Bt EE —E-)\F —E—+tF
(HizE)
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARBT T
Guarantee income EREWA 343,435 11,202
Less: guarantee service fee A ERREE (312,607) (1,356)
Net guarantee fee income EREWAFEEE 30,828 9,846
Interest income FEUA 36,099 50,990
Less: interest expenses SR (16,452) (263)
Net interest income FIEWAFEZE 19,647 50,727
Service fee from consulting services ARG TSRS E 5,603 29,249
Revenue U&= 3 56,078 89,822
Other revenue Hethu i 4 4,964 2,983
Impairment and allowances charged JE{E & & &% 5(a) (2,291) (7,016)
Operating expenses KERT (53,077) (53,247)
Net fair value gain on other HithemEE
financial assets ZAREBENGFE 15,885 -
Share of gains/(losses) of associates DG EE A T (EE) 1,622 (199)
Profit before taxation BREL A2 Al 5 23,181 32,343
Income tax FriE® 6(a) (17,900) (16,692)
Profit for the year FREF 5,281 15,651
Attributable to: DA & IEFELL -
Equity shareholders of the Company 2N A Bz IR R 5,662 16,301
Non-controlling interests R ER (381) (650)
Profit for the year FREF 5,281 15,651
Earnings per share (RMB per share) SRZBFN(ERARET)
Basic R 9(a) 0.01 0.03
Diluted s 9(b) 0.01 0.03

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January MIEE :
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

AEBRZZE-N\F-A—BHERXE
REBUBHREENFE15HRER
B EREXERIZE 95 - RIBPTEEM
BEAR  EBENTTEY - F2
BFIEE1(c) °

£109 £ 288 B FR & Mf st 48 AR 52 5 B 7%
RERP—D - FR - AR FEMSESR
JIR 3R FE AR5 R B IR B EE B A B EE 28(b) 3%

?é'.o

The notes on pages 109 to 288 form part of these financial statements.
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 28(b).
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA R#57T)

2017
Note 2018 (Note)

By &E —E-N\# —E—+tF

(MIEE)

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARBT T

Profit for the year FEWiEH 5,281 15,651

Other comprehensive income FREMETIIN
for the year (after tax and (BB REMOERAER)

reclassification adjustments)

ltem that may be reclassified AR EHTEZEENER :
to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation 25 1Bl KFE IR N ETS
of financial statements of operations 1 #5RRHIME X =48

outside the mainland China 2,722 (4,129)
Total comprehensive income FEZEBRANEEHE
for the year 8,003 11,522
Attributable to: LT EIHEWR :
Equity shareholders of the Company 2N Bz IR R 8,384 12,172
Non-controlling interests R ER (381) (650)
Total comprehensive income FELZEBNGE
for the year 8,003 11,522
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January ek AEBR-_ZFE—NF—-A—BEXE
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is AEBNKEREERE15FEREEY
not restated. See note 1(c). BHRELEAFEIF - IRIBFTEENB
BAR LBENTTFEY - F2H
MIEE1(c) °

The notes on pages 109 to 288 form part of these financial statements. 55109 £ 288 H T E Mt B N iz Z B 15 3R
Consolidated statement of financial position. RO—EBD °
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e PRI R

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA EB#5)7R)

31 December

31 December 2017
Note 2018 (Note)
—F-)\F —E—+F
M= +=-A=+—H +t=A=+—H
(FIEE)
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR®T T
Assets BE
Cash and bank deposits HERBITER 10 719,072 39,382
Pledged bank deposits EEIRITER 11 86,188 95,499
Trade and other receivables 25 R EHMERIRE 12 725,219 518,570
Factoring receivable {RIZ R FRIE 13 90,999 94,849
Finance lease receivable mERERKRRIE 14 186,906 176,183
Interest in associates REEE NS 16 91,602 101,466
Equipment g 17 1,420 1,912
Intangible assets BEEE 11 19
Other financial assets HitemEE 18 23,951 8,066
Deferred tax assets BEBIHERE 19(c) 7,215 1,105
Goodwill [EES 20 5,695 —
Total assets BEHE 1,938,278 1,037,051
Liabilities af&
Liabilities from guarantees ERERE 21 128,187 8,805
Pledged deposits received BERERRES 22 309,021 62
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEER 23 — 5,231
Liability component
of convertible bonds ABRBEESaEss 24 110,640 =
Accruals and other payables FEET & AR B A B FIE 25 393,937 48,217
Current taxation BIHEABI IR 19(a) 17,867 12,902
Obligations under finance leases mMEHEEE 26 389 506
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 19(c) — 1,413
Total liabilities =Lifab o] 960,041 77,136
NET ASSETS BEEFE 978,237 959,915

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF



e PRI R

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA EBH#5)7)

31 December

31 December 2017
Note 2018 (Note)
—E-)\f —E2—+t5F
M= +ZA=+—H t=A=+-—H
(Ffg=E)
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETT ARET T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B A R
Share capital i 28(c) 4,187 4,241
Reserves (] 28 972,179 953,359
Total equity attributable to equity = A</ R BRRHEE(LHE FAAEE
shareholders of the Company 976,366 957,600
Non-controlling interests JEdERE S 1,871 2,315
TOTAL EQUITY HESEE 978,237 959,915

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
March 2019.

SRR =5
Zhang Tiewei Li Bin
Director Director
EE EE

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(c).

The notes on pages 109 to 288 form part of these financial statements.

SEERIERERN =B —NF=]
—thBHE -

ek : AEBR=-_ZE—N\E—HF—HEKE
AEBH KR EEREASEREBY
HIMEEAFIN - RIBFARENB
EAR  EBERTTFEY - EFLH
FEE 1(c) ©

56109 2 288 HFT M s B A i 5 M #5 3
®E—#D -
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—F—N\F+-A=+—ALFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KOARERRER
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus  Regulatory ~ Exchange  Retained controlling
Note capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reseve  eamings Total interests  Total equity

et BE  RBER  RERE  BMGE  EERE  ERGE  REEN Bt FeREE  REgR
RMB'ODO  RMB'0O0  RMB'OJ0  RMB'OX  RMB'0J  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBER  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREER  ARRFR  ARBTR  AREER  ARRER ARRSR
(Note 28(c)  (Note28(d) ~(Note28(e) ~ (Note28(f) (Note 28(g) (Note 28(r)
(W2se) (Waose) (W2se)  (Wa2sf) (W2s) (W2

Balance at 31 December 2017 A-F-t%

TR +-AMER 4,241 47412 304,632 47128 18,126 7,106 128,8% 957,600 2,315 959,915

Impact on inital application ~ BREAEEHERE

of HKFRS 9 EZonnTE 2 = = 19 = = — (43 (1413 63 (14199
Adjusted balance at W-%-\£-5-H

1 January 2018 e S 4241 T AT 304,828 47128 18,126 7,106 114,564 943,465 2,262 5,117
Changes inequityfor 2018 —%-/\£#5%8
Proft for the year ERigA = = = = = = 5,662 5,662 (381) 5,281
Exchange differences on BETAREENER

translation of financial HERRNELZE

statements of operations

outside the mainland China - - - - - 2,122 - 2,122 - 2,122
Total comprehensive income ~ 2ENAE4 - - - - - 2722 5,662 8,384 (381) 8003
Purchase of own share BERSRE By (529 = = = = 5 (5352) = (5,352)
Regulatory reserve appropriation & i & 12E - = = = 12,862 = (12,862) = = =
Surplus reserve appropriation ~ B#RERE - = = 9,869 = = (9,869) = = =
Equiy settled share- WEREE IR

based transactions REBNRA 7 = = 174 = = = = 174 = 174
Convertible bonds TERESERRE

equity reserve = - 29,695 o - - - 29,695 - 29,695

Balance at 31 December 2018 H=%-/\&
+ZR=t+-BHER 4187 174 334,697 56,997 30,988 9,828 97,4% 976,366 1,871 978,237

104 FEESHZER (ER) AR2H



RERERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA R#57T)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KOARERRER
Non-
Share Share Capital Surplus  Regulatory ~ Exchange  Retained controlling
Note capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings Total interests Total equity

et BE  BBER  RARE  BMGE  EERE  ERGE  REEN Bt FeREE  RE4R
RMB'OD0  RMB'OOO  RMBOO0  RMBOX  RMB'OJ  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBER  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREER  ARRFR  ARBTR  AREER  ARRER  ARRR
(Note 28(c)  (Note28(d) ~(Note28fe)  (Note28(f) (Note 28(g) ~(Note 26(r)
(Wose) (Waose) (W2se) (Waosf) (W2sg) (W2

Balance at1 January 2017 RZF—tE—-F-A
HEg 4241 447472 302,280 43465 26,780 11,235 116,984 952,457 3,859 956,316

Changesinequity for 2017 —F—-t&##%8

Profitfor the year ERigR = = = = = = 16,301 16,301 (650) 15,651
Exchange diferenceson ~ BREREIRESNER

translation of financial HRERNENZR

statements of operations

outside the mainland China - - - - - (4129 - (4129 - (4129
Total comprehensive income ~ ENASE 3 - - - = (4,129) 16,301 12172 (650) 11522

Dividends approved inrespect M1 LERE

of the previous year - - - - - - (9,381) (9,381) - (9,381)
Regulatory reserve appropriation E&FERH - - - - (8,654) - 8,654 - - -
Surplus reserve appropriation - BERERH - - - 3,863 - - (3,663) - - -
Equity settled share- HERES R

based transactions BERNZS vl = = 393 = = = = 3 = 393
Waiver of debts from BHPHSER

related parties - - 1,054 - - - - 1,054 11 1,065
Capitalincrease of subsidiaries  MBATEE = = 905 = = = = 905 (905) -
Balance at RIF-tETZRZ1-R

31 December 2017 (Note) H () 4241 447472 304,632 47128 18,126 7,106 128,89 957,600 2315 959,915

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January ek AEBR-_ZE—N\F—-A—HEXE
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information is AEBEREERE15ERE B
not restated. See note 1(c). B ELERIZE IS - RIBFAEENA

ERN  BBRERTFEY - EF2H
MizE1(c) °

The notes on pages 109 to 288 form part of these financial statements. 26109 £ 288 H TSt s 8 A 5% 5 B IS R
RN—IH -
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—F—N\F+-A=+—ALLFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

2018 2017 (Note 1)
Note —F-)N\E —ET—+tF
Bt EE (FftsE1)
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT R
Operating activities R
Profit before taxation FREL AR A 23,181 32,343
Adjustments for: AT &IEFE :
Depreciation and amortisation EREHE 5(c) 605 857
Impairment and allowances charged  JE{E & B 1R 5(a) 2,291 7,016
Share of (gains)/losses of associates 7 {hBE A FEE, (W) (1,622) 199
Unrealised foreign exchange KREBBE HEE ()
losses/(gains) 510 (759)
Interest income FEUA 4 (4,877) (1,557)
Equity settled share-based LR EE R G
payment expenses BEBNEIREEX 5(b) 174 393
Interest expenses AMERIX 16,452 263
Net fair value gain on other HittemEE
financial assets ZARBERSFEE (15,885) —
Gain from disposal of EEFRBEERS
non-current assets 4 — (734)
Changes in working capital: EEESES:
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B & #RTERED 9,311 23,544
(Increase)/decrease in restricted ZREER
pledged deposits RES GG/ HD (308,959) 5
Increase in other restricted funds HittZRHEIE SN (174,390) —
Increase in trade and g 5 Kk H Y FRIEE M
other receivables (208,354) (179,780)
Decrease/(increase) in REFEWFIER D (3E1h0)
factoring receivable 1,943 (2,641)
Increase in finance lease receivable  FEFH S FEUFIEIE N (14,112) (10,989)
Increase/(decrease) in pledged BUHERRE SN, CRD)
deposits received 308,959 ®)
Increase in accruals FESHE A R HAth FE S FRIFIE AN
and other payables 342,719 38,310
Increase in deferred income FEFEY A N 112,984 67
Cash generated from/(used in) BERIME(MARE
operating activities 90,930 (93,468)
PRC income tax paid 2B ATEH 19(a) (15,725) (17,291)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RB&FEHRE (A REFHA
operating activities 75,205 (110,759)

106 FEHESHZER (ER) BRA7



—AN i —1
mEHERER
for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\F+-A=+—HLLFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

2018 2017 (Note 1)
Note —F-)N\E —ET—+F
Bt EE (BgEE1)
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARBT T
Investing activities HEE
Proceeds from capital withdrawal Wi [0 ¥4 — ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ’]
of an associate B 16 3,200 —
Proceeds from sales of equipment HE &ﬁﬁﬁ?%,*i 32 —
Payments for acquisition W kg — R BB A R FTIS RKIE
of a subsidiary (Note 2) (FF&EE2) (4,302) (1,078)
Payments for purchase of equipment & &R & RIS (48) -
Acquisition of financial assets BASREE 18 — (159)
Interest received 2WFE 4,273 1,380
Withdraw of bank deposit with TRRZEIBEA=EANUL
original maturity over three months ~ BVER1T1Z K — 1,600
Net cash generated from BRERHMEREFH
investing activities 3,155 1,743
Financing activities AL EE
Payments for repurchase of shares BB HIF5K (5,351) —
Dividends paid 2R E =S (9,381)
Interest paid 2FIE (4,350) e
Proceeds from new borrowings FEFPTERIE 23 — 5,000
Repayment of borrowings BEMEN 23 (5,000) —
Net proceeds from issuance BITARRES MERIEFE
of convertible bonds 122,116 —
Interest element of finance 2fRERERESNAEE D
lease rentals paid (171) (165)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREZEFERE () REFHA
financing activities 107,244 (4,546)
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mERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—F—N\F+-A=+—ALLFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (YA BH#5)7R)

2018 2017 (Note 1)
Note —E-N\£FE —E—+F
Bt EE (MgzE1)
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFRT  ARBFR
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERREEEY
and cash equivalents G2 185,604 (113,562)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HRERREEEY
at 1 January 10 39,320 156,173
Effect of foreign exchange SMNEEREH L
rate changes 10,737 (8,291)
Cash and cash equivalents R+—A=+—HH
at 31 December RERBAEEEY 10 235,661 39,320
Note 1: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1 January KizE1 . REBR-E—N\E—H—HEXE
2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative information AEBMBEREELEISERES
is not restated. See note 5(c). BIEIREERIFE 95K - IRIBATRIEN
BEFN  EBEERTTES - F2
RAMIEE5(c) °
Note 2: Net payment for acquisition of a subsidiary was RMB5,380,000. See MizE2 : WE—zxMBATINEZHAARKE

note 15.

The notes on pages 109 to 288 form part of these financial statements.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(a)

BREH

ZEMHRRERBEABEER
BRMBRELENCEETES
SRS R PTEEMHE
BEBMBREER HBE
FHERIRZRE BBLREE
R BB D ARG E R
BAERR - ZFMBHEET
BIBRBBMERZAERLH
& EHRRKNERKER
X o AEBRMNE RS T
RERT »

BREMAECBMHETR
AEBEEANSTHEERER
S AR RERAR AVHTR] R AEAER
BBMBHEER - MEE1(c)
I EEZ SV HRR AR
HASEENRBESTHE
BENEER - BEXERZ
ZREAMERSTHRERE
IZBHER -

FERE
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B RS ERAR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- equity investments (see note 1(g))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

(b)

B mRNERELE

BE-2-\F+-A=+-
AU FENGEHBREEE
A E R EME A (R A
SEDURAEEREE QT
YRR

BRUT R ARBEIRNEE
REEI - wmERIBERRAER
R EEERE L RA LN
T X P& St BERRRE) ¢

- BRERESHKHE
1))

BREBBUBEHREERRAEN
MBBRABAEEEFLH
B EETRRER - WL
R RBREFERREAR
FrERNEE - 8fF - AR
X &8 - WEMATHRAERER
RABEERRAEZTEBRT
HEASENSHAMERS
i - SR RIEHE
B AT R 5 BB M RRE
BHEERAERAENMRK
B BERERTEARRNLE
st e

RAAEHERNZEMTR
MEBARER - S EHEFAE
Rl ES BB ATV - B
BRI SR PE®ER %
fisl B BB A& =T S8 BN A K R 2R 23
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(0

Overview

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
financial statements:

()  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

(i) HK(FRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period, except for the amendments
to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation which have been adopted at the same
time as HKFRS 9.

c) &

()

BB H
%‘E

ERSTMASEHEM
ZHEHNAEBERN ST
HEERERZHETE
B BHREEAREE
Rl o HP TSR g3
REXREBMHBREE
g :

() BBHBHREEL
oW ERITA

(iy HEFKIREEA
F15% KRB X
IS e

(i) & B (BB Bt % ¥R
TREZES)R
B E22% . S
Ro RBANKE

ANERE AR AN E A
SETHIR R R
T ERHRE
RN B B IS R 5 2
RIS WEIRERE
7B B 35 3 & 2E A S 9 5%
Y5 BT = 160 6 1B AV 32 A1
BRAFEERID ©
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B RS ERAR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(0

Overview (Cont’ad)

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation
to classification of financial assets and measurement of
credit losses, and not materially impacted by HKFRS
15. Details of the changes in accounting policies are
discussed in note 1(c)(ii) for HKFRS 9 and note 1(c)(iii)
for HKFRS 15.

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group
recognises cumulative effect of the initial application
of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.
Comparative information is not restated. The following
table gives a summary of the opening balance
adjustments recognised for each line item in the
consolidated statement of financial position that has
been impacted by HKFRS 9:

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

(c) EFtBEREE (&)

(0

HEGE

AEBETERHEEND
HREEEFENGTER
HEEBUKREZEA
FOETE WXRZE
B IR EZERIZE 1555
BEAFE - BTHBEMN
% B 5F 15 1 M &E 1(c)(i)
(BB HEIRELERE
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

()  Overview (Cont’d)

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) EFBERESE (&)
) HEGE

Impact on
At 31 initial
December application of At 1 January
2017 HKFRS 9 2018
BRER
EBMH
RIE—tHE MR MIZTZE—)N\F
+ZA=+—H HoORHTE —A—H
(Note 1(c)(ii)
(P& 1(c)(ii))
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETT AR¥F T AR¥FIT
Assets BE
Factoring receivable {RIB EW TR 94,849 (1,120) 93,729
Finance lease receivable BB R E W RIE 176,183 (1,562) 174,621
Interest in associates REFE R RS 101,466 (8,284) 93,182
Deferred tax assets BEBIRERE 1,105 3,320 4,425
Other financial assets Hib &z 8,066 — 8,066
Total assets EEHE 381,669 (7,646) 374,023
Liabilities afE
Liabilities from guarantees ERER 8,805 7,965 16,770
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 1,413 (1,413) —
Total liabilities =REgbE 10,218 6,552 16,770
NET ASSETS & EBE 371,451 (14,198) 357,253
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A B
Reserves B 953,359 (14,135) 939,224
Total equity attributable to ANFEREER
equity shareholders of FE(GHE AR RR
the company 957,600 (14,135) 943,465
Non-controlling interests JEER I RE 2,315 (63) 2,252
TOTAL EQUITY S 959,915 (14,198) 945,717

Further details of these changes are set out in sub-sections (i) of

this note.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 January 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. The Group has
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening equity at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information continues to be
reported under HKAS 39.

The following table summarises the impact of transition
to HKFRS 9 on retained earnings and reserves and the
related tax impact at 1 January 2018.

(c) EFtBEREE (&)

(i)

BEMBHEEREI
K@M L ABEEEBEY
B & ER FE I HIE
5T R[] 8 18 HY 12 AT 28 74
o

ERAMKREERZE9
FHREBLTEDNSE
VELHMIE : BAR
FTE-HREREIRAR
TESREE . e@E
BEREEFSHMEEN
o EHEHRE -

FEECREBESRTE
HRZ=ZZ-NF-—F—
AEENEBEHEM
BEEMBMELEAEI
e ARBCEEBERE
RN RFZERIB/RN
—E-N\FE-HA—-HHN
HOERFE - Bt
ERENEEREE B

SR AERIZE 392, -

TREPLBEZEBY
%5 R oS E R
BRENR AN
KRZ=ZZ2-NF—-—F—

AREBER I
RMB’ 000
AR®BT T

Retained earnings REEF
Recognition of additional expected

credit losses on:

TP B IRERENM A EEEE

—factoring receivable —REBEWFIE 1,120

—finance lease receivable — R EHERWIE 1,562

—liabilities from guarantees -RBREE 7,965
Interest in associates REEE AR R 8,284
Related tax FERAT IR (4,733)
Net decrease in retained earnings R=ZE—N\F—HA—H

at 1 January 2018 REBRRDFEE 14,198

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF



B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
approach are set out below:

a. Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities
HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede
HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets
measured at FVPL. The classification of financial
assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

(c) EFBERESE (&)

(i)

BEMBHEEREI
RKE@M L ABEEBEY
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

Amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method;

FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss; or

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

- FVPL, if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) EFBERESE (&)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective. Where such an election
is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained earnings. It is
not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from
an investment in equity securities, irrespective
of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI (non-
recycling), are recognised in profit or loss as other
income.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

(c) EFtBEREE (&)
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

- Under HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in
contracts where the host is a financial asset in the
scope of the standard are not separated from the
host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.

- The following table shows the original
measurement categories for each class of the
Group’s financial assets under HKAS 39 and
reconciles the carrying amounts of those financial
assets determined in accordance with HKAS 39
to those determined in accordance with HKFRS 9.

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) EFBERESE (&)
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

(c) EFtBEREE (&)

(i)

BEMBHEEREI
K@M L ABEEEBEY
B & ER FE I HIE
5T R[] 8 18 HY 12 AT 28 74
1 (48)

HKAS 39
carrying HKFRS 9
amount at carrying
31 December amount at
2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 1 January 2018
RIE-t% RIF-\&
t=A=+-H —A-H
BEEER BEMBRE
#3FET ERE R
REE EEibk ] EfFE EHTREE
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Financial assets carried R R BEFA
at FVPL BREJIRNEHMEE
Non-listed equity I EmpRE = 8,066 = 8,066
Available-for-sale AHHESMEE
financial assets 8,066 (8,066) — —
8,066 — — 8,066

The measurement categories for all financial liabilities
remain the same, except for financial guarantee

contracts.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “liabilities from guarantees” at fair value.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. The Group monitors
the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract and recognises a provision when expected
credit losses (ECLs, see note 1(c)(ii)(b) on the financial
guarantees are determined to be higher than the
amount carried in “liabilities from guarantees” in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note

1(c)(i)(b) apply.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

The carrying amounts for all financial liabilities (other
than financial guarantee contracts) at 1 January 2018
have not been impacted by the initial application of
HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset or financial liability at FVPL at 1 January
2018.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

b. Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (ECL)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and loans to
associates);

(c) EFBERESE (&)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'a) (c) BFtERZE (&)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the (i) BEHBEHREZEREI
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with HEMT ABIEEEL
negative compensation (Cont’d) B EEREIH 15

7T R [0 7 18 #Y 12 5l 18 7
Frt (#8)
b. Credit losses (Cont’d) b. EEEEBGE)
- factoring receivables - REREKX
=0
- lease receivables; - MHERERHWR
18 ;
- financial guarantee contracts issued (see - B#LME
note 1(j)(ii)) EREHNR
BEEE 1) (i)
Financial assets measured at fair value, including BAREBHEFTEN
equity securities measured at FVPL, are not THREE  BER
subject to the ECL assessment. NAEETAEBR

HRARES - ~E
AEHEEBER
=2
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Loss allowances for trade receivables, finance lease
receivables and factoring receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs
unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for investments in debt
securities that are measured at FVOCI (recycling),
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair
value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income on credit-
impaired financial assets

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Opening balance adjustment

As a result of this change in accounting policy, the
Group has recognised additional ECLs amounting to
RMB18,931,000, which decreased retained earnings
by RMB14,135,000 and non-controlling interests by
RMB63,000 and increased gross deferred tax assets
by RMB4,733,000 at 1 January 2018.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

The following table reconciles the closing loss
allowance determined in accordance with HKAS 39 as
at 31 December 2017 with the opening loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1
January 2018.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) EFBERESE (&)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the (i)
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with

negative compensation (Cont’d)

The following table reconciles the closing loss
allowance determined in an associate, Success Credit,
in accordance with HKAS 39 as at 31 December
2017 with the opening loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018.
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at 1 January 2018 BRANEIMSEEE 40,492
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 R=—Z2—N\E—HA—H
under HKFRS 9 RIBEEBUBEREEL
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

c. Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 have been applied
retrospectively, except as described below:

- Information relating to comparative periods
has not been restated. Differences in
the carrying amounts of financial assets
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are
recognised in retained earnings and reserves
as at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017 continues to
be reported under HKAS 39 and thus may
not be comparable with the current period.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

c. Transition (Cont’d)

- The following assessments have been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at 1 January 2018 (the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9 by the Group):

- the determination of the business
model within which a financial asset is
held; and

- the designation of certain investments
in equity instruments not held for
trading to be classified as at FVOCI
(non-recycling).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Cont’d)

c. Transition (Cont’d)

- If, at the date of initial application, the
assessment of whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition would have involved undue cost
or effort, a lifetime ECL has been recognised
for that financial instrument.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale
of goods and rendering of services, and HKAS 11,
Construction contracts, which specified the accounting
for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to understand
the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

None of these developments has had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for
the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented in this annual report.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
on previous accounting policies are set out below:
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from construction
contracts and provision of services was
recognised over time, whereas revenue from sale
of goods was generally recognised at a point in
time when the risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods had passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. This may be at a single
point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies the
following three situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

A.  When the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
entity’s performance, as the entity performs;

B. When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced,;
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

a. Timing of revenue recognition (Cont’d)

C. When the entity’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the
entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to
date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that is considered in determining when
the transfer of control occurs.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont'a) (c) BFtERZE (&)
(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (i) BBUBEHEERE1S

(Cont’d) % REEFEH N

(#&)

b.  Significant financing component b. EXEEID
HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the BBMBRELER
transaction price for the time value of money F15FERER
when a contract contains a significant financing AEHNBEBEEKRR
component, regardless of whether the payments B o R e R
from customers are received significantly in BEERAEISE
advance of revenue recognition or significantly 1% ERBEE
deferred. FARREREA

BREERREAS
JEf% -
Previously, the Group did not apply such a policy B AEERRE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(i)  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Cont’d)

C.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right
to consideration. If the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 1(t)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for
the promised goods and services in the contract,
then the entitlement to consideration is classified
as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract liability,
rather than a payable, is recognised when a
customer pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the amount
is already due, before the Group recognises
the related revenue. For a single contract with
the customer, either a net contract asset or a
net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.
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(c) Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(iv) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and

aadvance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of the non-
monetary asset or liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the date of the transaction for each
payment or receipt should be determined in this
way. The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have
any material impact on the financial position and the
financial result of the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Cont’a)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)(iii)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or the
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if
any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
investment, and any direct investment into the associate
or joint venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see note 1(j)(iii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(e) Associates and joint ventures (Cont’d)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence or joint
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)(iii).
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(f)

(9)

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration transferred over the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note
29(d). These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(Cont’d)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method (see
note 1(t)(i)).

fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities (9) AEBRRAFZZNWHEM
(Cont’d) BEE)

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d) A BE=—ZF—-—NF—HF—H

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment
does not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in
the fair value of the investment (including interest)
are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(t)(iv).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Investments in securities held for trading were
classified as financial assets measured at FVPL. Any
attributable transaction costs were recognised in profit
or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value was remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Dated debt securities that the Group had the positive
ability and intention to hold to maturity were classified
as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities were stated at amortised cost (for impairment
see note 1(j)(i) — policy applicable prior to 1 January
2018).

Investments which did not fall into any of the above
categories were classified as available-for-sale financial
assets. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value was remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve (recycling). Dividend income from equity
investments and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method were
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policies set out in notes 1(t)(iv) and 1(t)(i), respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BA RS ER AR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (R # 5 E155 + ZRIUA BHS)R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES conte) 1 EXEFBUIR@E)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities (9) REBRRAESHHEA
(Cont’d) RE#E)
(B)  Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 B =FE—-NF—HF—HAF
B HRIBE

- Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from - BERESFFEEN
debt securities were also recognised in profit or ERBETNEDS
loss. When the investments were derecognised or TR BERLE
impaired (see note 1(j)(i) - policy applicable prior RZERESEH
to 1 January 2018), the cumulative gain or loss REHBRRMEG
recognised in equity was reclassified to profit or 2 B M sE10)0) -
loss. —E-NF-A—
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(h)

Equipment

Items of equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)(iii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Estimated

useful life
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Office and other equipment

3 - 5years

Where parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives,
the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(i)

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made
based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

()  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i)

Leased assets (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost or valuation of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(h). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out
in note 1(j)(iii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating lease, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets ()

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring 0

receivables and lease receivables

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and loans to

associates);

factoring receivables;

lease receivables;
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
equity securities measured at FVPL, are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

For undrawn loan commitments, expected cash
shortfalls are measured as the difference between
(i) the contractual cash flows that would be due
to the Group if the holder of the loan commitment
draws down on the loan and (ii) the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive if the loan is
drawn down.
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(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) ) EEBFEREEREGE)
()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring () XKEZzMITH-  REE
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d) W 1B R FH B e 5B
WIS BE#E (&)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d) A B=E-—N\F—H
—HRBERANEEK

(#&)
Loss allowances for trade receivables, finance B S EWFIE -
lease receivables and factoring receivables EHRERWFIER
are always measured at an amount equal to REEWRRIEZ
lifetime ECLs.ECLs on these financial assets are EiERE —RRE
estimated using a provision matrix based on the BIRZEFESRN
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted FHEEBENE

for factors that are specific to the debtors and
an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
of the financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

)

PESHER

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument (including a loan commitment) has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

For loan commitments, the date of initial
recognition for the purpose of assessing ECLs
is considered to be the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment.
In assessing whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition of a
loan commitment, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default occurring on the loan to
which the loan commitment relates.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont'd) ) EEBFEREEREGE)
()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring () XKEZzMITH-  REE
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d) W 1B R FH B e 5B
HIEEREE (&)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d) A B=E-—N\F—H
—HRBERANEEK

(#&)
ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to EHEEEREES
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit &R & B W EH T

risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 1(t)(i) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss”
model was used to measure impairment losses
on financial assets not classified as at FVPL
(e.g. trade and other receivables, available-
for-sale investments and held-to-maturity debt
securities). Under the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised only when there
was objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment included:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

FEBRREEREE)

FEEHMTE - IREEE
W% IE K B FE W R
RIS ERE1R (&)

—B-N\FE-A-
EhorelElp e

—B2-N\F-A—
BRI [EELERS
B IR ARETER
DEBBEANEE
SFABENERE
E(NEZ R HE
WkIE - AT E
RERFEERH
BRFEZ)RER
B REBEEELEE
B R REEE
EREFERENT
BEEBERATETU
- BENTE
"IEEE

- BERALBRE
SMHmE

- EREH M
N EE YN
EHAE

b -
TA s

- BEBARA
o] RE A%
ERNETH
b EA

- M -mH-
EBSOARIR
BHBREARS
g BEBA
BETRNEE
53

- RERAIAHN
BREMNAARE
BEARER RN
TR AR A
HEAR o

FERE

169



170

B RS ERAR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting was material.
This assessment was made collectively
where these financial assets shared similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and had not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which were assessed
for impairment collectively were based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective Group.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss was only recognised to
the extent that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit los

ses from financial instruments, factoring

receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

When the recovery of a trade debtor or
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost was considered doubtful but not
remote, associated impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group was satisfied that recovery was
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross carrying
amount of those assets directly. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account were reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly were recognised in profit or loss.
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(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments, factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

- For available-for-sale investments, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised
in the fair value reserve (recycling) was
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of
the cumulative loss that was recognised in
profit or loss was the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

()  Credit losses from financial instruments,factoring
receivables and lease receivables (Cont’d)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities were not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets was recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities were reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value could be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances
were recognised in profit or loss.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with
the estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)  Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (Cont’d)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group monitors the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract and recognises
a provision when ECLs on the financial
guarantees are determined to be higher than the
amount carried in “trade and other payables” in
respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes
in the risk of default of the specified debtor since
the issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor
will default has increased significantly since the
guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and
the same assessment of significant increase in
credit risk as described in note 1(j)(i) apply.
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(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued (Cont’d)

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Cont’d)

As the Group is required to make payments only
in the event of a default by the specified debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, an ECL is estimated based on the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that
the Group expects to receive from the holder of
the guarantee, the specified debtor or any other
party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to
the cash flows.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, a provision would be
recognised if and when it became probable that
(i) the holder of the guarantee would call upon the
Group under the guarantee and (ii) the amount of
the claim on the Group was expected to exceed
the amount carried in “trade and other payables”
in respect of the guarantee.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures in the Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Cont’d)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of other non-current assets (Cont'd)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Reversals of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Cont’d)

(iv)

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 1(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

(k) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(c)(iii)(c)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1())
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()

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(j)

().

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except
for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(j)(ii), other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(o) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
bonds is measured at fair value based on the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the prevailing market
rate of interest for similar non-convertible instruments. The
equity component is the difference between the initial fair
value of the convertible bonds as a whole and the initial fair
value of the liability component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated
to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the capital reserve, together
with the carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds
are redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.
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(p) Employee benefits

(0

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have
joined defined contributions for the employees,
such as basic pension scheme, housing fund, basic
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, injury
insurance and maternity insurance. The Group makes
contributions to the above mentioned schemes at the
applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated by
the government organisation. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(p) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(i)

Share-based payments (Cont’d)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised in share capital for the share issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
cost of the share-based payment granted to employees
of the subsidiary are recognised as cost of investment
in the subsidiary (see note 1(d)).
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(q)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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Income tax (Cont’d)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(@) Income tax (Cont’d) () Fri5®i(&E)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BEARL I AE SR R IR AEBL IR 45 8
movements therein, are presented separately from each EHESBHEIHIR  BAE
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset HKEH - WAREEEEATITERE
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets LABD AR IR & A 1K 85 B B B 18
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally 8f&  BRFETIIMERE
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current BIBNEAR IR E E RIELERIEE
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: EfoRKENHRIEEER
EERIBEE

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the - HMANPHREEERA
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to & AEBEEZRFER
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; HESRKEREER

or BEAE ;R
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they - MAEZEHEEERS
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation B IZEEEREE
authority on either: 7R B [5) — B 35 #E B 33 LA
THAR-—BHBWFRE

HER :

- the same taxable entity; or - [R—RHER; %
—  different taxable entities, which, in each future —  FrEIETEHIAEE
period in which significant amounts of deferred EEPN-EEEE
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled BEEREENTE
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax BARTHEE  BF
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net KA o [3) B 4 3R B R
basis or realise and settle simultaneously. BIEEEHEFERD
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Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

The Group issues performance guarantee and litigation
guarantee contracts, in which the Group agrees to provide
guarantees to its customers who entered into contracts
with third parties for services to be rendered, goods to be
supplied or obligation to fulfil within an agreed time period.
The Group is required to compensate the guarantee holder
if a specified uncertain future event adversely results in the
counterparties’ failure to delivery services and goods, or to
fulfil the obligation.

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
liabilities from guarantees. The fair value of guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.
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(r)

(s)

Guarantees issued (Cont’d)

The fair value of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
1(s) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in deferred income in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer
for more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using
the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.
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(t)

Revenue and other income (Cont’d)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(0

(i)

(i)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1())

(i)-

Rendering of services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services can be estimated reliably,
revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction based on the services performed to date as
a percentage of the total services to be performed.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of the costs
incurred that it is probable be recoverable.

Guarantee fee income

The amount of the guarantee is recognised when
guarantee contracts have been made whereby the
related guarantee obligation has been accepted, the
economic benefits associated with the guarantee
contracts will probably flow in, and the amount of
revenue associated with guarantee contracts can be
measured reliably. The fair value of the guarantee is
initially recognised as deferred income and is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
guarantee fee income (see note 1(r)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(t} Revenue and other income (Cont’d)
(iv)  Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

(u) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of
financial position initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Renminbi
(“RMB”) at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill
arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or
after 1 January 2005, are translated into RMB at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the
date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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(w) Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iliy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party.
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(w) Related parties (Cont’d)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont’d)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(v The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of services, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

During the reporting period, the directors have determined
that the Group has only one single business component/
reportable segment as the Group is principally engaged in
providing financing solutions to customers, which is the
basis to allocate resources and assess performance of the
Group.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal place of the Group’s operation is in the PRC. For
the purpose of segment information disclosures under
HKFRS 8, the Group regarded the PRC as its country of
domicile. All the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
are principally attributable to the PRC, being the single
geographical region.
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Notes 27 and 29 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of options and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expense required
to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses.
Such estimation is made based on the available information
as at the end of each reporting period and is determined
by the Group’s practical experience, default history of the
business, taking into consideration of industry information
and market data. It is possible that the practical experience
and default history is not indicative of future loss on the
guarantees issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment of trade and other receivables,
factoring receivable and finance lease receivable

As described in note 1(j), trade and other receivables,
factoring receivable and finance lease receivable that
are measured at amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is provided. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about loss events such as a
significant decline in the estimated future cash flow of an
individual debtor or the portfolio of debtors, and significant
changes in the financial condition that have an adverse effect
on the debtor. If there is an indication that there has been a
change in the factors used to determine the allowances for
impairment, the impairment loss recognised in prior years is
reversed or additional impairment charge is required.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

M7 R2OBEBRERTAMT
AERRBENBREEREE &

(a)

(b)

AT RERZENEMERRIRN
T

ERERRE

AEERITERREERE
i ABRTREARSHONERE
EFERAXEHSEME - &
EETDERZHMEHRTES
MEMKAEEMNEREER
ERENRTRED KR RIT
REMKRTSEE - BERER
K IEE L8R F] R A AAE R 2R
EREERBRNER - 8156
MRS ERREERN

a3 -

EZREMBKFIE - &
BERKFERBEEER
WK IERE

BOFRE () Pt - 1R 3% 3R 5 1
REHZBHERATENES
R HAREWRRIR - RIZAEWR
ERBERERKGRE - L&
ERBAEFBRERTE - i
FEEAZERE - BIFHRR
BEEERESE FHNRERE
BRAEERREREBESMH
AV AT R - AfERIERA
- AHEB AN RERE
REXRERD  BEBABT
NEENERFBARRNEE
e 75 BF SR BN A O TEE T R 1
BHEZ2E - SREBEF
ERANWREBENFETR
BINREER -



B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
guarantees, financial leasing, factoring and financial consultancy
services. The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised during the year is as follows:

AEENETEXBRRREMAER - &
EHE RERVEERRE - F

?Eﬁ‘%ﬁ’ﬂ%iﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬂ&éﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ
nF :

2018 2017
—E-)\f —E—+F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR¥T T
Guarantee fee income EREBWMA
— Income from financial guarantees —-REEREA 6,159 5,934
- Income from online financial guarantees - R EREEREA 332,976 =
- Income from performance guarantees -BHEREA 3,725 5,211
— Income from litigation guarantees —FFEAERUA 575 57
Gross guarantee fee income EREBEWR AL 343,435 11,202
Less: guarantee service fee W ERRESE (312,607) (1,356)
Net guarantee fee income EREBWAFEE 30,828 9,846
Interest income from receivables EWFERE S AREWA 416 16,981
Interest income from finance leasing MEEERE WA 18,295 14,797
Interest income from factoring RER B U A 6,067 7,562
Interest income from down REEBNRAEWA
payments for investment 11,321 11,650
Gross interest income FEUR A 4B ZE 36,099 50,990
Less: interest expenses A FERX (16,452) (263)
Net interest income FE U FHEE 19,647 50,727
Service fee from consulting services BHARIEFTERIEE 5,603 29,249
Total et 56,078 89,822

During the year 2018, the Group’s largest single customer
contributed 12.70% of the Group’s revenue (2017: 29.48%); while
the percentage of the Group’s top 5 customers’ revenue was

42.87% (2017: 75.58%).
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Note 2018 2017

MIzE —E-)\F —E—+tF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ET T AR®T T

Interest income from bank deposits RITERFEWA 2,846 1,557
Interest income from related parties B L RE A 31(c) 1,860 —
Government grants BUR D @) 120 663
Gain on sale of non-current assets HEFRBEERS = 734
Others Hith 138 29
Total HEt 4,964 2,983

(@)

Guangdong Success Finance Guarantee Company Limited
(“Success Guarantee”) received funding support mainly
from the Office of People’s Government of Nanhai District
of Foshan City. The entitlements of the government grants
were under the discretion of the relevant government
bureaus. The government grants were provided to the
Group for its support to small and medium enterprises. The
grants were unconditional and were therefore recognised
as income when received. For the year ended 31 December
2018, a government grant amounted to RMB60,000 (2017:
RMB274,000) was rewarded to Success Guarantee.

Foshan Success Financial Services Outsouring Limited
(“Success Financial Services”) received funding support
mainly from the Office of People’s Government of
Chancheng District of Foshan City. The entitlements of the
government grants were under the discretion of the relevant
government bureaus. The purpose of the government grants
was to grant financial assistance to financial enterprises
located in Chancheng. For the year ended 31 December
2018, a government grant amounted to RMB50,000 (2017:
RMB360,000) was rewarded to Success Financial Services.
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Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

(a)

(b)

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZBILA BHEF)F)

BRBLADRF D (FHA) IR

BHERER

Impairment allowances and provision - (written (a) BEEEKBE- (EE)
back)/charged Bk
Note 2018 2017
g —ZE-)\& —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARTF T ARETT
Provision written back FEBEHIER
for guarantees issued BERE (1,567) (441)
Impairment allowances BMUTREHR
charged for: BRI :
— receivables from —FEWEERN
guarantee payments ERAR 12(a)(i) 1,614 1,307
— factoring receivable —REBFEUNFRIE 13(b) 787 61
- finance lease receivable —BEREERRIE 14(b) 1,827 234
— interest in associates —REfE QTR 16(a) — 5,855
— intangible assets -BLEE 61 —
Recoveries of amounts e {EIP Y=g 6
previously written off 28 (431) —
Total @et 2,291 7,016
Staff costs (b) EIFA
2018 2017
—F-)\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARETT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEMBR 23,441 26,540
Contributions to defined EER GBI
contribution retirement plan 485 598
Equity settled share-based LR EE R
payment expenses ARERNAREX 174 393
Total et 24,100 27,531
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(b) Staff costs (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the local authority whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes based on
certain percentages of the eligible employees’ salaries.
The local government authority is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligations for payments of
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described above.

(c) Other items

(b)

(c)

BT (&)

RETEBEBESBHRARSA
Bl - hEIMELT 2T At
H RSN ERHRRKE
MerEI(TRErE]) - Hikp
BB A RAR AR ERE
ERESFEE —BOLED
R - tHBUTHES E @R
KMEEX N2 ERAE -

BRAEH LR IN - ANEEE

XAVRRE R E R SRR
BAILEHLMEAREE -

Depreciation and amortisation mER#E

Operating lease charges: KERERH -
minimum lease payments RIEBENR

Auditors’ remuneration A GEET)

— audit services — BRI

— other services — H PR

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) SNEEIE (RS ) FEE

HihEH
2018 2017
—E-)\f —E2—+t5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTE  ARBTR
605 857
4,132 6,789
2,407 2,857
1,710 1,554
697 1,303
4,094 (1,126)

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #4LG&HEZREIMER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) ZHREBHZXRAPFIESE :
or loss represents:
2018 2017
FiEE —F-)\& —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARMT T ARBT R
Current tax BIEA R IR
Provision for PRC income FAPEIMEHRE
tax for the year 20,665 20,065
Under-provision in respect BEFERETR
of prior years 25 65
19(a) 20,690 20,130
Deferred tax IEERIE
Origination and reversal
of temporary differences EERENERFER (2,790) (3,438)
Total HES 17,900 16,692
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) ZERAHRTEWHIER
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: THEESTHERN MY
2018 2017
—E-)\& —E=—+F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT ARBT T
Profit before taxation EREL B R A 23,181 32,343
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRBLADE A B RBIE
calculated at the rates applicable RETS R A EE AN
in the jurisdictions concerned BiERTtE 17,713 16,265
Effect of non-deductible expenses FAIHIBRBE & 162 362
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE 25 65
Actual tax expense BREIERX 17,900 16,692
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(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: (Cont’d)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, respectively.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the Company and the subsidiaries located in Hong
Kong as the Company and the subsidiaries had not
derived any income subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
during the year.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
Law that took effect on 1 January 2008, the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC income tax at the
statutory tax rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the CIT Law and its related regulations,
non-PRC-resident enterprises are levied withholding
tax at 10% (unless reduced by tax treaties/
arrangements) on dividends receivable from PRC
enterprises for profits earned since 1 January 2008.
Distributions of earnings generated prior to 1 January
2008 are exempt from such withholding tax. As a part
of the continuing evaluation of the Group’s dividend
policy, management considered that for the purpose
of business development, the undistributed earnings
from 1 January 2008 of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to RMB241,622,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB218,895,000) will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future. As such, no deferred tax liabilities
were recognised in respect of the PRC withholding tax.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

(b) BB RETEHHIRR

(i)

XESTHRNNERR : @)

REFSHERRABEZHE
HRAIR ARG - AEEBAE
HERENRABELHESAM
EAAFRSHL

RER » BHRARBREEE
HYB B 1~ B 3 R SR SRR A
MBEBRGHAIMA - HIER
HRARARMBRRTIRER
MEBEE -

RER-ZENF-A—B&%
MR EI R ZEFTE B ([ PR
BE )R - ANEEB BB
DA RIE25% K EE B R
MTPBEIFTEH -

RIEDEMRBBAREBBE
B FTEERCEARTH
TtER—ZTENF-A—H%
BREN A E R EEW AR 212 10%
BEHMIEINB (BRIEBIBER
BARK ZHARK) - R=F
ZNF—-—A—HAEEXNER
DIRER R BMERETEINR -
EAREER B BERIFENTL
H—E5n  EEBERAE A%
KEREW > FEMBARE
—EEN\F-A-—HBEZ=F
—-NEFE+=ZA=+—HWX
2R B R A R ¥ 241,622,000
T(ZE—-—ttF: ARH
218,895,000t ) T~ & 1 A &
BAREDIK - Hik - SWEHH
EIFE R ERIELERIEEE -



Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Group are disclosed as

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

REBESHMARRENT -

follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-§-\FtZAZ+-RALEE
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-based
Directors’  and benefits scheme payments
fees inkind contributions Sub-total (note (ii)) Total
& BRR RIRaTE PARR R AR
EEY kA EWER #3x NGt BRSO (i) &3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTL  ARMTL  ARMTR  ARMTT  ARMTR  ARMTR
Chairman and IRRUITES
executive director
Mr. Zhang Tiewei RERLE 1,773 — — 1,773 — 1,773
Executive directors BiTES
Ms. Dai Jing(note (i) HEL (M) — 652 30 682 24 706
Mr. Li Bin(note (i) TIRAE (W) — 846 31 877 28 905
Mr. Xu Kaiying el EEE 1,182 15 - 1,197 — 1,197
Mr. Pang Haoguan BEREE 591 — — 591 — 591
Non-executive director FurES
Mr. He Darong MEREE 203 = = 203 — 203
Independent non-executive EIFHITEE
directors
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei ERELE 203 = = 203 = 203
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur BRIFEE 203 = = 203 — 203
Mr. Xu Yan HERE 203 = = 203 = 203
Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang BNIERE 203 = = 203 = 203
Total @t 4,561 1,513 61 6,135 52 6,187
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BECE-tFt-A=T-HILEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’  and benefits scheme payments
fees inkind  contributions Sub-total (note (ii) Total
e RMR IR HROAER
g3 BNEAN % et IR R (i) @t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTr ARBTr ARBTr ARETn ARET:x

Chairman and IRRUTES

executive director
Mr. Zhang Tiewei REBEE 858 = — 858 — 858
Executive directors HrEE
Ms. Fu Jie (note (i) &2+ (M () = 2,567 = 2,567 — 2,567
Mr. Chen Hui WREE 4 896 102 22 1,020 - 1,020
Mr. Li Bin(note (i) FEAE (W) 130 273 28 431 58 489
Mr. Hung Hoi Ming Raymond i3 %54 29 1,919 — 1,048 — 1,948

(note () (M2 ()
Mr. Xu Kaiying el L 598 1,431 = 2,029 — 2,029
Mr. Pang Haoguan BEREE 338 — — 338 = 338
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. He Darong MEREE 130 = = 130 — 130
Independent non-executive EIFHITEE

directors
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei ERELE 130 = = 130 = 130
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur BRIFEE 130 = = 130 — 130
Mr. Xu Yan HERE 130 = = 130 — 130
Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang BNIEE 130 = = 130 = 130
Total st 3,499 6,292 50 9,841 58 9,899
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

Notes

(i)

(i)

(il

Ms. Fu Jie resigned as an executive director and Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 18 May 2018. Mr. Hung
Hoi Ming Raymond resigned as an executive director with
effect from 20 September 2018. Ms. Dai Jing was appointed
as Chief Operation Officer and executive director with
effect from 18 May 2018. Mr. Li Bin was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 18 May 2018.

Share-based payments

These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the director under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
based payment transactions as set out in note 1(p)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under
the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the note 27.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Byt

(ii)

(i)

BRELTBE-ZF-/N\FHA
TNBERERNTESRITH
BE - HBRAXTEEZE-N
FRhAZTHEEREHITE
E-HELTHZZ-N\FH
BTN\BEEZERELHE
REYTES - THALEA-ZE
—N\FREATNBEEZER
ITHARE -

LARRAD B ERE VK

ZENRERBEAR QA BRE
SRR TESNBRENMGS
BE - ZSBRENEETIR
5 MY 1 (o) (i) Fr e A SR 1 B8
RERD AERN SRS
BURETE -

ZEBURANNFRE B85
EREBRENEERRR
HE  RMEE27 0 BB RS
&) |—EBRPEE -
BE-Z-N\FR-ZT—tF
TZA=T—HLEFE  #fiE
ESHRRE SRR
K2 o

FERE
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Of the five individuals with highest emolument, four (2017: three) hEReHFMALTH  EOE(=F
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The —tF ZR)RES - HHEMRNK
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other one (2017: T7HEE - FEEM—B(ZZ—t
two) individual is as follows: F WA ALTHEMARENT :
2018 2017
—E-)\& —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARKT T ARBT
Salaries and other emoluments e & H g 1,077 2,209
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan ERER RET B 49 61
Share-based payments LR AD AE BT 13 28
Total #st 1,139 2,298
The emoluments of the one (2017: two) individual with the highest —H(ZE—tF WA &5 M
emoluments are within the following bands: ATHFHMNF T EE -
2018 2017
“E-N\E —E—tF
Nil-HKD1,000,000 2% 1,000,00078 7T — —
HKD1,000,000-HKD2,000,000 1,000,000 T &E
2,000,000 T 1 2
HKD2,000,000-HKD3,000,000 2,000,0008TE

3,000,000 % 7T — —

There were no amounts paid during the years ended 31 December BE-—E-—-N\HErR=-ZF—+tFE+=A
2018 and 2017 to the individuals in connection with their =+ —HLEFEEAEFBTA@ZE AL
retirement from employment or compensation for loss of office SRR BB E S R g R -

with the Group, or inducement to join.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB5,662,000 (2017: RMB16,301,000)
and the weighted average of 528,212,000 ordinary shares
(2017: 530,805,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(a)

BREXRRZR

BREXREANTIREFAR
RAIEBERBREMLZRA
R #5662,000 (=% — t
F£: AR #16,301,000 7T )
REeBTEBRMNEFIIE
528,212,000k (= & — +
% : 530,805,000% ) 5t & -
WMTEIR -

EERINEFIHE

Note 2018 2017
By aE —E-)N\F —E—+tF
000 000
T TR
Issued ordinary shares at K—A—H®
1 January ERTEBER 530,805 530,805
Effect of shares issued by BATEERETET
share option exercised RO HEE 28(c) (i) — —
Effect of shares repurchase BN E 28(c) (iii) (2,593) —
Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—H
ordinary shares at 31 December ~ HYZ @R INEFIEH 528,212 530,805
Diluted earnings per share (b) BRESER

The Group has convertible bonds as dilutive potential
ordinary shares during the year ended 31 December 2018.

As the Group’s convertible bonds have an anti-dilutive effect
to the basic earnings per share calculation for the year
ended 31 December 2018, and, therefore, diluted earnings
per share are the same as the basic earnings per share.

REERBE-Z-N\Ft+=
A=t—HLEFENTRRE
ZRBEEEEER -

HRAKETRRESHEE
—E-N\F+=A=t+-AlL
FENSREARBIHERR
mErE SREERNES
REFBAER -

FERE
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(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(@ BERBREEZEVEE:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017
RIE—-\& R-E—tF
+-A=+—-HB +t=ZA=+—-H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMTT AR¥T T
Demand deposits and term deposits SERERKREEIEA
with banks with original maturity DR=EANERER
less than three months 235,609 39,234
Restricted customer pledged deposits TRHETFERRES 61 62
Restricted third-party pledged deposits ZREE=FERRES 308,960 —
Other restricted funds HittZRHEES 174,390 =
Cash in hand e 52 86
Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated ~ 4R& BT RANRE
statement of financial position KMERTTER 719,072 39,382
Restricted customer pledged deposits ZREZEFERRES (61) 62)
Restricted third-party pledged deposits ZRAZ=FERRES (308,960) —
Other restricted funds HttZREES (174,390) —
Cash and cash equivalents in the FERBRERERANES
consolidated cash flow statement RELZEY 235,661 39,320

Pursuant to the Implementing Rules for the Administration
of Financial Guarantee Companies promulgated by the
People’s Government of the Guangdong Province on
27 September 2010 and the Notice on Regulating the
Management of Customer Pledged Deposits of Financial
Guarantee Institutions announced by the Joint Committee
for the Regulation of the Financial Guarantee Industry
on 15 April 2012, the Group is required to set up certain
arrangements to manage the customers’ pledged deposits

by 31 March 2011.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

RERERE ARBRR -2 —
ZE B =1+ A B (R
FIMERDDERETIHE)
BB R B R R TS B
EHRBEEER B
A+ 5 A TR ACBR R
RAMEREEEFERRE
SEBIEN)  AEEAR
—®——F=A=+-AH%
TETRENERERSRRE
Be .
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Cont’d)

These arrangements include: (i) enter into tripartite custodian
agreement among lending bank, customer or the third party
and the Group, for ensuring the entrustment of lending bank
to manage the deposits; (ii) deposit the pledged deposit
received from the customer/third party into a designated
custodian bank account; and (iii) such deposit is not
available for use by the Group.

In order to comply with the aforesaid rules and regulations,
the Group had set up internal guidelines which were
adopted by the Group in May 2012. However, the aforesaid
rules and regulations are not enforceable to banks and the
Group could not enter into tripartite custodian arrangement
with certain lending banks. As at 31 December 2018,
restricted customer pledged deposits of RMB56,000 (2017:
RMB57,000) were deposited into a designated bank account
under tripartite custodian arrangements. For those guarantee
services without setting up tripartite custodian arrangements,
the Group has maintained the restricted customer pledged
deposits received in the Group’s bank accounts.

(@)

RERBESHERERE @)

ERZHEE  ()ERERT
BERFEAKERBT L =A7E
& BRZTERRITER
RES (NEEFPWENE
RIRFESFEABELERTIR
F . R)VxEBEAAERE
BRED -

RETERBARER - A%
EEHEXR-—F-—FHA
BRANABRIES| o A - E3AR
B 2 5K A8 AN B 4R 17 58 i
17 MARBEAREREETER
RITBIT=AEERH - R
T-N\F+ZA=+t—-H 'R
B=AAERHFAEERT
RFWZREAFTFERRES
BAR®S56,000T(=ZF—+
F: AR¥57,0007T) ° Fh&x
EWHER I = HEELHIE
REBMS  AREERAE
BR 17 AR P B AT ULELAY Z R
FIEFREREES -

FERE

211



212

B RS ERAR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Cont’a) (a) BERBREERERE &)

Pursuant to the agreements in relation to the online financial
guarantee business, the Group set up certain arrangements
to manage the third parties’ pledged deposits.

These arrangements include: (i) enter into tripartite custodian
agreement among lending bank, the third party and the
Group, for ensuring the entrustment of lending bank to
manage the deposits; (ii) deposit the pledged deposit
received from the third party into a designated custodian
bank account; and (jiii) such deposit is not available for use
by the Group. As at 31 December 2018, restricted third-
party pledged deposits of RMB308,960,000 (2017: 0) were
deposited into a designated bank account under tripartite

custodian arrangements.

As at 31 December, the restricted pledged deposits received

were maintained as follows:

RIBEER LREMERER
Htheg - AEERYE T ZHE
LERE=SRRRES -

BEBEZHBEE  ()EFRT -
F=RHEAEEBF =A%
EE BRZIERRTE
BRES (\VRE=ZF KR
WIERRESTFAIEELER
TRE  R(iVNEERAE
BEBRRES HN-E-N\F
+=ZB=+—8  RE=A
ERHEAEERITRENZ
REFE=ZFERRESAAR
#£308,960,000 T(= & — +
F:0)-

R+=ZBA=+—8 - #iFamk
IS REERRFSOT ¢

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RIE-N\E HRIZ—+F

+=H=+-B t=A=t+-A

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARYET T AR¥T T

Restricted third-party pledged deposits ~ ZR&EIE=FERRES 308,960 —
Restricted customer pledged deposits:  ZREFFERRES :

- designated custodian bank accounts ~ —IEEAXERITIRE 56 57

- the Group’s bank accounts - REEWRITRF 5 5

Total st 309,021 62
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(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

(b) MEFBFELEEBNY

activities iR
Obligations Liability
Interest- under  component
bearing finance of convertible
borrowings leases bond Total
R RS
HEEN MEHEaRK afEHs Mt
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FTR ARBTR ARETR
At 1 January 2018 WZE-\E—F—H 5,231 506 — 5,137
Changes from financing
cash flows: MEREREES
Net proceeds from issuance of ~ B{TAARESXFE
convertible bonds BT — — 92,422 92,422
Repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings BEFELER (5,000) — — (5,000)
Interest element of finance EAmERERS
lease rentals paid FEZA = (171) = (171)
Interest paid BAFE (335) — (4,015) (4,350)
Total changes from financing
cash flows HMEREREL AL (5,335) (171) 88,407 82,901
Exchange adjustments BE 51 il — (70) 8,898 8,828
Other changes: Hip#s)
Interest expenses FERX 104 = 16,224 16,328
Finance charges on obligations
under finance leases HEREEENMEERR — 124 — 124
Increase in other payables HAnETFIEEm = = (3,001) (3,001)
Decrease in other receivables Hir IR D — = 112 112
Total other changes Hih @l 104 124 13,335 13,563
RIF-)\§
At 31 December 2018 +ZA=+-H — 389 110,640 111,029
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Pledged bank deposits represent the deposits pledged to banks CERRITERECERTZXRR

for the financial guarantees that the Group provides to the THER AEAEEREFOZ

customers for their borrowings from banks. FIBITHERMEOZRENRER
R o

31 December 31 December

Note 2018 2017
Bt EE RZF-N\&E RIZT—LF
+-—A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®ETT ARETT

Receivables from guarantee payments  FEUE LN IERATR @)() 247,083 259,685
Less: allowances for doubtful debts W REREBE (@) (14,432) (12,818)
232,651 246,867
Trade debtors from guarantees REEREWRERR 22,801 858
Trade debtors from consultancy services 2 E a5 AR 7% 19 FE Uk BR 7K 13,344 19,233
Interest arising from receivables FEBUE R
from guarantee payments EENFE — 8,500
36,145 28,591
Trade receivables g S ERRIE @) 268,796 275,458
Down payments for investments SEHTR (b) 74,850 74,850
Deposit and other receivables, HRBERENZER
net of impairment allowances HAth FEUFRIR (©) 210,378 155,599
Amounts due from related parties FEUR B R 5 FRIE 31(d) 27,568 2,734
581,592 508,641
Deferred expenses EER X 98,075 1,357
Mortgage assets KHEE 3,380 3,561
Others Hit 42,172 5,011
Total Hab 725,219 518,570
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(a) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (a)

B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

B 5 BRI R IR 57 4

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables (net of allowances for doubtful debts),
based on the guarantee income recognition date or advance

BERSHKR - BEREARE
RAPRBRIRBHEAE
B 5 BUGKIE R RAREE)

payment date, is as follows: HERER DT :
31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017
FiEE RIFE—-/N\&E R-ZT—tHF
+=-A=+—RA +t=A=+—-A
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®F ARBT T
Within 1 month 18 B R 14,563 1,458
Over 1 month but less 1R L EEFEBIEA
than 3 months — 1,455
Over 3 months but less than 1 year 3188 A E{ERBB1F 7,381 78,125
More than 1 year 1FEBE 261,284 207,238
Total HEt 283,228 288,276
Less: allowances for doubtful debts j& : BRI (ii) (14,432) (12,818)
Total FaH 268,796 275,458
(i)  Receivables from guarantee payments () EWELTIERIT 5

Receivables from guarantee payments represented
payments made by the Group to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurred because the customers fail to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of
the corresponding debt instruments. Receivables from
guarantee payments were interest-bearing and the
Group holds certain collaterals over certain customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group did not dispose of receivables from guarantee
payments.

FEWUEZ SRR RIS A
AEBELHMAR KU
mEERNZEA(E
BADREF ReERE
MHEEER T ENKRRE
NERERmEENE
% BUWENERGR
AEIERE . BXEH
HHHETEFHFEET
I o

BEZE-_Z—-\H+=A
=E+-BLEFEE K&
B EEBEQE
RIS ©

FERE
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(@) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Cont’d)

(i)

(a) B 5 B X IE BR i o

(#&)
Trade receivables that are impaired (i) EEENEZEWE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other B RHEMEWKIEN
receivables are recorded using an allowance account WEEBEBRARERA
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the R BRIEEAEEEHT
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is AAgeln el BREAFKIE -
written off against debtors directly (see note 1(j)). EZBRT » ZBEE
BHEZRREERRS
e (B2 BAMEE 1)) ©
At 31 December 2018, the Group’s debtors of R=ZZE-NE+=H
RMB42,122,000 (2017: RMB35,560,000) of receivables =+-R xEEHE
from guarantee payments were determined to be WERARARK
stage 3 lifetime ECL credit-impaired. These related 42,122,000 t(Z&—+
to customers or other parties that were in financial F: AR 35,560,000
difficulties and management assessed that the TEEAFE=RER
receivables are not expected to be fully recovered. EEERENEEFE
Consequently, allowances for the doubtful debts were HEREERFE 2%
recognised as follows: JE Wi R T8 B 3R B I
H#NEFPREMERE
B mEEENGERE
EWRIERRELEH
WeE o Bt RIEEE
BROT :
2018 2017
—E-)\& —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT
At 1 January nW—B—H 12,818 11,511
Charged IR 1,614 1,307
Written off 1% 3H — —
Disposal HE — —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 14,432 12,818
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(@) Ageing analysis of trade receivables (Cont’d)

(i) Trade receivables that are not impaired

(a)

B S5 EWSKIERRE ST
(%)
(i) ARBAEHFFE 5 ER

I

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RE-F-N\FE RZZF—+tHF

+=-A=+—-B8 t=A=+—AH

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®F T ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired BE A HA TN R (B 26,170 4,226

Less than 3 months past due BHTZE3EA — 2,013
More than 3 months but less mHAEIE3EA

than 1 year past due BRE1F — 73,056

More than 1 year HBid1E 214,936 173,421

Total st 241,106 252,716

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent default records.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers of whom the
Group has continuously monitored their credit status.
Based on the credit assessment, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and these balances are pledged
by certain assets of these customers. Therefore, the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

(b) Down payments for investments

Down payments for investments represented the down
payments for the acquisition projects that the Group is
conducting.

(b)

Bt 42360 SR 7 S R Y PR WARR TR
RN ETENCENE
FEE -

3B HA B 30 SR Y FE UK TR
HAKE-EREEEHERFE
RRNBZBUIEFERE - R
BEENE  HRNMEEERYL
EEANE - BERBESHREZ
EEFHNETEEFERER
HEEERRBANZEGEH
EHERERE - Bt - &
BARDRAERT2EYE -

REBNRK
REBNREAKEIERET
HWIBTEE B -
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(c) Deposit and other receivables, net of impairment (c) HIRRBERENZERA
allowances fth FE W SR I8

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RE-F-/N\E R-ZF—+tHF

+=A=+-B +t=A=t+-~

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARET T

Deposit and other receivables ek EMEWFIE 216,478 161,699
Less: allowances for other receivables & : EfEURFIBEE (6,100) (6,100)
210,378 155,599

As at 31 December 2018, management adopted a lifetime
ECL credit impaired assessment on the Group’s debtor’s
amounting to RMB6,100,000, for which a full impairment
allowance had been provided.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s other receivables of
RMB6,100,000 were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to debtors
that were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivables are not expected to be recovered.
Consequently, full specific allowances for the doubtful debts
were recognised.

Based on the management’s assessment as at 31 December
2018, there were no changes in the allowances for other
receivables as at 31 December 2018.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

RZEB-NF+ZA=+—
B EEEHAEEERRIE
A B #6,100,000 7T £ FA 2 (@
FEREREEERETEE
WERE - MR TR B
BRHE -

R-F-—tHF+=-HA=1-—
B AEBRBARY
6,100,000 7T B9 H i & W 5K 18
WEEE R ERIRE - B5RE
Wk TR B ER B B PR Y £
BARE - MERETMZE
W RS ERNRE - B
I RREZEEDAER
-
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31 December 2018
R-ZE—-N\E+ZA=+—H

Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
BRERREE GEGEEHR
128 R HEHBEH B %
EHEE EHEE& BHATERA
18 BiE EEEBE st
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MeE AR®BTFRT AR¥ETFT AR®TRT AR®TT
Factoring receivable {RIZEWFRIE 62,000 — 26,950 88,950
Interest receivable from {RIZFE N FRIE
factoring receivable PR R 196 — 4,896 5,092
Less: allowances for W REEWR
factoring receivable RIEEE  (@/b) (1,569) — (1,474) (3,043)
Carrying amount of TRIEFE R TR IR
factoring receivable BRMEE 60,627 — 30,372 90,999
31 December 2017
R-_FE—t&+"HA=+—H
Factoring
receivable
for which
allowances
are collectively
assessed Total
mETEREZ
RIE B FRIE s
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
MIEE ARBT T ARBT T
Factoring receivable TR I FE TR IR 91,950 91,950
Interest receivable from fRIE W FRIE FE IR FI 2.
factoring receivable 4,035 4,035
Less: allowances for W RERER R IER S
factoring receivable (@)/(b) (1,136) (1,136)
94,849 94,849
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(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDHT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of BERSHR > REPHANEH
factoring receivable, based on the maturity date in contracts, HHEIGHE - RIEBEWFIEMER
is as follows: BT :

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RIE-N\E R-ZT—LHF
+-—A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARETT

Within 1 month 1EAA 105 320
Over 1 month but less than 3 months 1B A E{BEFEB3EA — 22,332
Over 3 months but less than 1 year S3EBLLETRER1E 65,116 72,188
More than 1 year 1EE 28,821 1,145
Total wst 94,042 95,985
Less: allowances for factoring receivable i : {RIEFEUL TR IE B4 (3,043) (1,136)
Total HEt 90,999 94,849
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Impairment of factoring receivable

Impairment losses in respect of factoring receivable are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against debtors
directly (see note 1())).

(b) RIEERWRIERE

RIZEWRIR AR E R 1B ER A
BIBIRARR - BRIEAEEER
TRAEREBBENRE @ 5%
BAT  ZREBRSEER
JE U2 B K o i 5 (R 2 B BfY &E

1() e
Consequently, an allowance of impairment losses for E it - FRBRERKFETR
factoring receivable during the year was recognised as RREESEREOT ¢
follows:
2018
—E-)N\f
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
BRERREE TEEE
1288 WEHEH FENES
EHEE TEHEE EES
K518 B EEEE it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#FRT AR®TT AR%®TRT AR®TT
NIE—tfF
Balance at 31 December +-A=+—H
2017 ZHEER 865 = 271 1,136
Impact on initial application & XFERE B IR E
of HKFRS 9 ERIFEIF o HE 852 — 268 1,120
RIE—/)\&F
Balance at 1 January 2018 —H—HZ &% 1,717 = 539 2,256
R 128 B A
Transfer to 12-month ECL FEE 8 (123) — 123 —
EREECSEREN
Transfer to lifetime ECL not 4B HFEHREE
credit-impaired &8 — N — N
EREFEEEREN
Transfer to lifetime ECL 4B REREE
credit-impaired K518 — — = —
Net remeasurement BT EEERE
of loss allowance HEE (25) = 812 787
New financial assets
originated FEEzEREE _— — o —
Recoveries of amounts
previously written off Y Is] e i il 8 2 FRIE = — — =
A—E—N\F
Balance at 31 December F=H=—H
2018 ZEERR 1,569 - 1,474 3,043
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13 FACTORING RECEIVABLE (cont'q) 13 RIBFEWSIA (@)
(b) RIEBEWRIERE

(b) Impairment of factoring receivable (Cont’d)

2017

—E—+tF
Collective Total
mE St
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AR¥T T
Balance at 1 January W— B —H 2%k 1,075 1,075
Charged B 61 61
Balance at 31 December Rt+ZA=+—Hz&& 1,136 1,136
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31 December 2018
R-ZE—-N\E+ZA=+—H

Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

RERAEE FEGER
1287 MEGEY HEMES
BHER EHRFR ANES
| BERE FRER At
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR®TFR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Net amount of finance BEHERW
lease receivable FRIEFEE 47,919 — 144,567 192,486
Less: allowances for finance i : BiEHERE
lease receivable WFIEEE  (a)/(b) (1,389) — (4,191) (5,580)

Carrying amount of finance  FEHEEWTIE
lease receivable BRTEI{E 46,530 — 140,376 186,906

As at 31 December 2017
R-_E—t&+"HA=+—H

Finance lease

receivables
for which
allowances
are collectively
assessed Total
mEThEEZ
{RIE FEULFRIE FoH
Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BiEE ARET T ARETT
Amounts due from lessees FEWEFE A 5018 203,039 203,039
Less: unearned finance income W RERBERA (24,665) (24,665)
Less: allowances for A mEEEER
finance lease receivable RIERHME (a)/(b) (2,191) (2,191)
176,183 176,183
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(a) The table below analyses the Group’s finance (@) FROWMHABEHRIEZME
lease receivable by relevant maturity grouping at BAEIHAB S 2 WA KB
the end of the reporting period: MEREENFE :

2018 2017
—E-\% —F—tF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments
RkEE HRHEE FEEE SEEES
RERE HEAE ERE UERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARBTRT AR¥®TR AR®BTRT

Overdue B 28,179 28,179 466 466
Within 1 year —FRK 109,774 116,640 57,212 60,233
— &%

After 1 year but within 5 years REER 54,533 58,357 120,696 142,340
Total Wt 192,486 203,176 178,374 203,039
Less: allowances for finance W mEHRE

lease receivable PR SR IE (5,580) (5,580) (2,191) (2,191)
Total =t 186,906 197,596 176,183 200,848
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Impairment allowances charged for finance lease (b) FAELEHEREWFIEHR
receivable AERE
2018
—E—-)\fF
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
BRERREE GEEE
1288 WEHBH FEMNES
EHEE TEHEE AHRES
i) BiE EEER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFRT AR®BTT AR®TRT AR®TT
NZE—tH
Balance at 31 December +=ZRA=+—H
2017 ZHEER 589 — 1,602 2,191
Impact on initial application BEXERAEBIT KRS
of HKFRS 9 ERAIF IRz HE 419 — 1,143 1,562
R-ZE—-/\&E—H—H
Balance at 1 January 2018 Z i 1,008 — 2,745 3,753
ERZ12@BFESE
Transfer to 12-month ECL ~ E&5i8 — — — —
EREEEEREN
Transfer to lifetime ECL SiBREREE
not credit-impaired BB — m - —
EREFEEEREN
Transfer to lifetime ECL mAMEREE
credit-impaired K518 — = — —
Net remeasurement
of loss allowance BETtEEERETE 381 — 1,446 1,827
New financial assets
originated FEECZSREE — . — o
Recoveries of amounts
previously written off YR B1 55 AT i 84 =2 7R 18 — — — _
RIE—/\&F
Balance at 31 December +=ZRA=+—H
2018 Z & 1,389 — 4,191 5,580
FEHRSE
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14 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (cont’a) 14 FBEHEREWEIE @)
(b) Impairment allowances charged for finance lease (b) FEERERKKENR
receivable (Cont’d) RAERE#)
2017
—E—tF
Collective Total
mE st
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETT
Balance at 1 January R—A—Hz#&& 1,957 1,957
Charged ER 234 234
Balance at 31 December RT+ZRA=+—Bz&&% 2,191 2,191
(c) An analysis of the overdue finance lease (c) EamEHERKFIENS
receivable is as follows: AT -
2018 2017
25-\% ZE-tF
Overdue Overdue
over over
Overdue 3 months Overdue 3months
within but within within 3 but within
3 months 1year  Over{year Total months fyear  Overl year Total
AH=EA kil
HHTR IR RETR WER
ZER TE-f —ERE @t =R FR-£ —Fit szt

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Finance lease receivable RERERKTE = 2,113 466 28,179 = = 466 466
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The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries of the UTHRSEEAREENE A RMF
Group. 15 o
Proportion of ownership interest
Place and date Group’s
of incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company establishment Fully paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
gLl
AL/ AEEH  mRNE AKELR
NAER BRI R A CHREx EMER 8 #E IERE
Double Chance Developments Limited BvI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(“Double Chance”) 8 February 2012 USD1 each REER
ABRLHE 1REREE
“E-Z#-ANR 1E TR
Yes Success Limited (“Yes Success’) BvI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
3 June 2015 USD1 each REER
ARELHE 1REREE
“2-1%5RA=H 1ETMRA
China Success Capital Limited BVI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(“Success Capital”) 29 June 2016 USD1 each REER
ABRLHE 1REREE
“E-~EABZTRA 1E2nHRA
China Success Finance Holdings Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(“Success Finance”) 18 November 2011 HKD1 each REER
PESKERERERAR( £RER]) £ 10,000 RERER
ZE-—£+-B1NE 1B fRG
China Success Capital (HK) Limited Hong Kong - 100% - 100%  Provision of asset
(“Success Capital (HK)") 1 August 2016 management and
HESRBR(ER)ERLT ¥ merger services
(heHR(FE)]) “E-"ENE-R outside the PRC
RAERMRHEEER
RAHHHRA
Guangdong Success Asset Management The PRC RMB170,270,000 99.27% = 99.27%  Provision of asset
Company Limited (“Success Asset’) 23 June 2004 NG management and
ERENEEERARLA(EREE)) e 170,270,000 7 financial consultancy
“ZEZMERA-T=ZA services in the PRC
ArERHEEERRE
BRI
Guangdong Success Finance Guarantee The PRC RMB430,000,000 99.27% - 100%  Provision of financial
Company Limited (“Success Guarantee”) 26 December 1996 ARE guarantee services
RREHMERRARAA(EAER) GilE] 430,000,007 in the PRC
—NAARE ERERMRERREY
TZA=+5H
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Proportion of ownership interest

Place and date Group's
of incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company establishment Fully paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
PR bl
AL/ AREM  mANE AKELF
NRER HARE R A CHEES ERER 2] BE  IEXH
Shenzhen Success Financial Leasing Company Limited The PRC USD28,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of financial
(“Success Financial Leasing”) 6 June 2014 28,000,000% 7 leasing services
MmERREREERAR e in the PRC
(EARARE) ZF-BEAARE EHERERARERS
Shenzhen Success Equity Investment Fund The PRC RMB15,000,000 100% — 100%  Equity investment
Management Limited (“Success Equity Fund’) 6 September 2014 ARE in the PRC
R RHREREESERERAR GilE] 15,000,0007 EHEETRERE
([ERREES)) “E2-MENAA
Shenzhen Success Number One Equity Investment The PRC RMB194,000,000 100% - 100%  Equity investment
Fund Limited Partnership (“Success Fund”) 14 January 2015 ARE inthe PRC
MInRH-SREREESPO(BREY) e 194,000,000 EPEETRERE
(( $:2-53) “E-RF-F1MA
Shenzhen Qianhai Success Housing Wealth Management The PRC RMBG61,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of real estate
Company Limited (“Qianhai Success Housing”) 8 July 2015 ARE financial services
M EERERNEERARAR GilE] 61,000,000 in the PRC
(En=23%=E]) “Z-E%tENR TrERMRELE
BHERH
Foshan Success Financial Services Outsouring Limited The PRC RMB30,000,000 60% - 60%  Provision of real estate
(“Success Financial Services”) 15 October 2015 ARE financial services
RUTEREREBNIERAR GilE] 30,000,000 in the PRC
(%) “Z-1f+ATEA EHERMAENE
Bt
Guangzhou Hengyue Number Six Investment Limited The PRC RMB45,070,027 99.34% e 100%  Equity investment
Partnership (Hengyue Number Six") 23 February 2017 AR¥ in the PRC
BNEE EREABLE(BRAY) ([EERS]) el 45,070,027 7t EHEETRERE
—2-tEZB=+=f
Foshan Guangda Asset Management Company Limited The PRC RMB25,000,000 99.27% - 100%  Provision of asset
(“Guangda Asset”) 27 April 2017 NG management services
BLTEEEEERERAR(EEEE)) GilE] 25,000,000 7C in the PRC
“E-tEMA=t+A EPERMEEER RS
Foshan Zaisheng Number One Enterprise The PRC RMB23,000,000 99.27% - 100%  Provision of enterprise
Management Counsultancy Limited Partnership 12 June 2017 ARY management
(“Zaisheng Number One”) i 23,000,000 consultancy
BUmEE-RAEEETATL (BRER) (BE-%) —3-tERAT2H services in the PRC
ERERMEEER
BRRA
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Proportion of ownership interest

Place and date Group's
of incorporation/ effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company establishment Fully paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
PR bl
AL/ ASEM  mANE AKELF
NAER RARIE R A CHEESs ERER ] BE  IEXH
T. M. Management Limited (‘T. M. Management’) Hong Kong HKD 10,000 100% - 100%  Provision of portfolio
(Note) 4 March 1986 10,000%7 management services
(hi) B such as stocks, funds,
-ANREZATA bonds and so on
outside the PRC
ERERMRMIAS
EREE RE
S B5REM
Guangzhou Hengyue Number Ten Investment Limited The PRC - 99.22% - 99.95%  Equity investment
Partnership (‘Hengyue Number Ten”) 9 August 2016 inthe PRC
ENEETHREABLE(BRAY) [BETH]) e EPEETRERE
“E-~ENAAR
Success Fund Management Limited Cayman slands - 100% 100% —  Fund management
(“Success Fund Management”) 15 June 2018 outside the PRC
HOESERARAR(HHESEE]) HENE APERMETESER
“E-N\ERATHA
China Success Investment Funds Segregated Portfolio Cayman Islands - 100% 100% —  Fund investment
Gompany (“Success Investment Funds’) 15 June 2018 outside the PRC
PERDREESARREAS DR HIREES)) HENE ERERMETESRE
“E-\ExATEA
Note On 14 February 2018, the Group purchased 100% share of KizE R-E-NE-_A+MAE &

T. M. Management Limited (“T. M. Management”). The total
consideration of the transaction was HKD6,897,000. On the
acquisition date, since the main assets and liabilities of T. M.
Management were cash equivalents, miscellaneous receivables
and payables, the book value of assets and liabilities were
considered as the fair value. On the acquisition date, T.M.
Management had net assets of HKD397,000. The Group has
recognised a goodwill of HKD6,500,000.

Since the acquisition date, the Group has consolidated the total
revenue of HKD1,191,000 and net profit of HKD39,800 from T.M.
Management in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
OCI for the reporting period.

£ @ Uk B T. M. Management
Limited ([ T. M. Management ])
H100% R 17 - X 5 B K E
#56,897,0007% 7T ° FA K B
. B ®T. M. Management
NETEEEREBERREEE
Y - H fth FE UL R IE K BE S K
B EEREBNEREER
RBAAEEBE - RIEBEHE
T. M. Management (V& ZFE
#397,0008 T - NEBE
%2 6,500,000 57T °

BEWEAESRE REEEH
& BHT.M. Management # #2
g %1,191,00078 Tt & & F
39,800 B THMEHANNGES
BEaRkHEME2ERRRAGRE
N

FERE
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The following list contains the particulars of the associates, which LATEH%%EEE? N E’J%ﬂi
are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not ZHE N A LT ATIERSE
available: &'EHBLH\ miZHRIE :

Proportion of

ownership interest
Form of Place of Group’s
business incorporation Fully paid effective Heldbya Principal

Name of associate structure and operation up capital interest subsidiary  activity

PR

MR AEEN  BWELR

o NCE [FEEY 3 SEME WRER BEWED #BE IEXH

Foshan Chancheng Success  Incorporated The PRC RMB250,000,000 27.08% 27.28%  Micro credit
Micro Credit Co., Ltd. Eaiiza A ARH financing
(“Success Credit”) 250,000,000 7T NEEERE

LB ER N EEN
BRAR(T&RER])

Guangzhou Hengsheng Incorporated The PRC RMB23,900,000 40% 40%  Equity fund
Fund Management Co., Ltd. AL H AR (Note 1) management
(“Guangzhou Hengsheng’”) 23,900,000 7t (BfaE1) REESER

ENESESERERAR"

(MEMERD

Guangzhou Rongdacheng Incorporated The PRC RMB8,000,000 30% 30%  Information
Information Technology AL H PN (Note 2) technology
Service Co., Ltd. 8,000,000 7T (KHEE2) EEHRM
(“Guangzhou
Rongdacheng”)

BINRE RS SRR
BARAR(TEMEEA )

Foshan Fozhiying Incorporated The PRC - 30% 30% Investment
Industrial Investment EEai e R (Note 3) consultancy
Co.Ltd. (“Fozhiying”) (HizE3) RE®ET

HUTHER

EXRE

BRAR(THER]

PESHER

(ZR) ERAF
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The English translation of the names is for reference only. The

official names of the entities are in Chinese.

Note 1

Note 2

Note 3

Note 4

Together with two entities, Success Fund established Guangzhou
Hengsheng on 23 November 2015. Success Fund had fully paid
up its subscribed capital of RMB20,000,000, which accounted
for 40% of the total subscribed capital. In 2017, Xizang
Xuekunfushen Investment Co.Ltd., one of its shareholders, has
paid up RMB3,900,000 of its subscribed capital.

Together with two entities and two individuals, Success Fund
established Guangzhou Rongdacheng on 20 July 2016. Success
Fund had fully paid up its subscribed capital of RMB3,000,000,
which accounted for 30% of the total subscribed capital.

Together with two entities, Success Fund established Fozhiying
on 25 August 2016. Success Fund had subscribed capital of
RMB2,400,000, which accounted for 30% of the total subscribed
capital.

On 15 January 2018, the Group withdrew its injected capital
of RMB3,200,000 from Guangzhou Chenghuijin Investment
Management Partnership(“Guangzhou Chenghuijin”), one of its
associates as at 31 December 2017 and no longer have any
equity interest in Guangzhou Chenghuijin as at 31 December
2018.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

*

FfEE 1

MizE2

Mzt 4

LR E

EXBEERSE - BEATY
EHEBBPX -

al

—E-HF+—A=+=H8H"
EXRESEMREEKILEM
BR - ERESCHEIEIH
B A E# 20,000,000 7T @ 1542
RERAER40% c R=F—+t
F > HPF-—ERRABISHE
HIREERATESEHMBRAEA
E2#5 3,900,000 7T °

—E-RELtAZ+RH &K
ESHMREBREWAEARK
VEMBER - ERESEH
EHRHH A K ¥ 3,000,000
JC 0 LERAAZERY 30% -

—E-ANENAZ+HB &
RESHEMREBERLHE
BE-ERESCRAABARY
2,400,0007T > {HRBAEN
30% °

RZE-N\E—A+HHB &
EEOEMNKESREEES
BEE(EMNKES DR=
E—tHF+ZA=+—BAH
BENTZ—)RMETEA
E#3,200,000T ' BR=F
—N\E+ZA=+—HBTBER
BMNRESHEE TR -

DA EAREER

REVBRERAR -

FERE
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(@ Summarised financial information of the Success Credit (@ TXHBEEEHELAAERE
as a material associate, adjusted for any differences in MHBMBERSE  HEemg
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts FTBCRE 2R BEAR
in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed SR E R AREEL R ¢
below:

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RIE-N\E R=ZZT—tHF
+Z—A=+—H t=B=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETFT ARET T

Gross amounts of the associate’s BE LR
Current assets RBEE 286,873 313,984
Non-current assets FRBEE 41,195 42,353
Current liabilities mEEE (68,455) (72,227)
Equity T 250,613 284,110
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+tF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Revenue U 7,216 23,965
Expenses M (17,227) (23,243)
Total comprehensive income EHEUWALEEE (10,011) 722
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Summarised financial information of the Success Credit
as a material associate, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and reconciled to the carrying amounts

TXREEERLEAAERE
RNV BERHE - HEHE
SR AV = B AF H 2 B B4R

in the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed EUHMEMBRIREELER
below: (Cont’d) (#&)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E-tF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Reconciled to the Group’s interests B2 S BRI & 2\ &)
in the associate By fEZ TR
Gross amounts of net assets of HBENTEE
the associate EEAE 259,613 284,110
Group’s effective interest AEENERER 27.08% 27.08%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEEHE AT
the associate EEFE 70,305 76,939
Non-controlling interests in the net REE N FEEFEHR
assets of the associate HIFEIE AR R 2 517 566
Goodwill GRS 4,232 4,232
Impairment on cost BRARE (5,855) (5,855)
Carrying amount in the mEMBERE
consolidated financial statements  FrE{BREE 69,199 75,882

As at 31 December 2018, the proportion of ownership
interest in Success Credit held by Success Guarantee was
27.08%. Success Guarantee has significant influence in
Success Credit by appointing 3 of 9 representatives in the
board of directors.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s interest in Success
Credit estimated using the value in use method was lower
than the total carrying amount of the Group’s interest in
Success Credit. As a result, an impairment of RMB5,855,000
was recognised for interest in Success Credit as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB5,855,000). The
value in use was determined using dividend discount model
under income approach based on cash flow projections of
Success Credit. A terminal growth rate of 3% was applied.
A cost of equity of 15.80% was used as the discount rate in
the value in use calculations.

RZZE-NE+=ZRA=+—
B ERERSENEXER
Fre REREZ L 5] B2 27.08% ©
ERERBBEZEEIF(H
ZIRRMAEESEMHER
HEAEASTE -

REBFFERERERH T
W RAERBER AN
i BRAEEFFERER
FERMIRMAE - FHit - BR=
Z-N\F+ZA=+—HHR
ERERNEREIBEA
EE # 5,855,000 t(= & — +
F+ZHA=+—H: AR#
5,855,0007T ) ° £ AEE TS
BRAWASEIET #98% 2 BEIR 8
B, BRERERNRERE
FEREE - KALRERI%E
BEERA - BREMRA15.80%E
BEStEFRAEBEMNBIRE -

FERE
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(b) Aggregate information of associates that are not individually (b) ERIFEKRBEARNGFEEE
material Bl

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RIE—-N\E R=-ZT—LHF
+-—A=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARBTT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually #r& BF#53RR - {E Bl

immaterial associates in the FEREE QT
consolidated financial statements HERE 4 {E 22,403 25,584
2018 2017
—F-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEBE DS
share of those associates ZEME N TR
Gain/(loss) from operations L (EE) 19 (395)
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 EUA — —
Total comprehensive income ZHEURAEZE 19 (395)
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Office
Motor and other Total
vehicles equipment equipment
/N4
RE H g REEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥TT AR®TT
Cost R
At 1 January 2017 R=—ZE—+F—A—A 4,221 2,887 7,108
Exchange adjustments (R (94) (36) (130)
At 31 December 2017 and R=-Z—+tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—HBRK
—E-NF—-F—H 4,127 2,851 6,978
Additions nNE — 48 48
Disposals EE (81) (566) (647)
Exchange adjustments P 5. 5% 64 27 91
At 31 December 2018 RIE—N\F
+=A=+—H 4,110 2,360 6,470
Accumulated depreciation Hitin g
At 1 January 2017 R-—Z—+&—F—8 (2,820) (1,398) (4,218)
Charge for the year FRITE (370) (487) (857)
Written back on disposal SR = 9 9
At 31 December 2017 and R-ZE—+tF
1 January 2018 +=-—B=+—H
R=E—N\F—H—H (3,190) (1,876) (5,066)
Charge for the year FRITE (239) (325) (564)
Written back on disposal HERE 77 538 615
Exchange adjustments BE 5 AR (20) (15) (35)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z—-N\F
+=-A=+-H (3,372) (1,678) (5,050
Net book value BREFEE
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=A=+—H 738 682 1,420
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—+tF
+=A=+—8H 937 975 1,912

FERE
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31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
RIBE—N\E R=ZBE-NF RKRZZE—+tHF
+Z-RA=+—H —HBA—H t=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBT T AR®T T
Financial assets measured RN REEFNER
at FVPL BRI SR E E
-Unlisted equity investment —FEHRERE 23,951 8,066 —
Available-for-sale AEHEEMEE
financial assets
-Unlisted equity investment - LEmRERE = — 8,066

On 6 April 2012, Success Guarantee entered into an agreement
with Foshan Success Finance Group Co., Ltd. (“Foshan Finance”).
On 12 October 2012, Guangdong Success Asset Management
Company Limited (“Success Asset”) entered into a tripartite
agreement with Foshan Finance and a third party, who is a
constructor. These agreements are related to acquisition of
properties from Foshan Finance by Success Guarantee and
Success Asset at a total consideration of RMB54,300,000. The
properties are floors of a commercial building located in Foshan,
the PRC, and will be held for own use by the Group. According
to the agreements, Foshan Finance acts as the representative
to lead the whole tender and development process, while the
construction of the commercial building is subcontracted to
the constructor by Foshan Finance. The properties will be
transferred to the Group upon the expected date of completion
of the construction in 2016. On 21 October 2013, Success
Guarantee entered into a supplementary agreement with Foshan
Finance, and Success Asset entered into a supplementary
tripartite agreement with Foshan Finance and the constructor.
On 23 October 2013, the prepayments of RMB20,893,000
and RMB27,300,000 was refunded to Success Guarantee and
Success Asset, respectively. Prepayments of RMB6,107,000 from
Success Guarantee was 3.5% of the costs of the land use rights
of RMB174,480,000, which were paid by Foshan Finance to the
relevant governmental bureau for and on behalf of and attributable
to Success Guarantee.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

MRZFB-—-FMANE EXERER
W EREBREEBER2TA(H LS
BT —ftE - R=E—=F1+A
+TZH BREREEEEERAA
(EREEEBLERE—BE=

(BBERTL—MW=FHE - ZZ5H
RHEERERREREEUAAREAR
#£54,300,000 7T &) 13 1L & &b UL BE 4 %
EB - EEWEE - EBURPEHEGBLT
WEEEFHNEELEE  BHAEEEF
EER - RBZEHZE BLESRBIE
FREx ASEERERMAZEBRE B
HLEHEKEAEEFTNERIRESE
FiEER BEREYESNR T EHE
HEREIEHEXFAER - R=F
—=F+A=+—HB EREREGRL
SR —MEREHE MEKREER
BLUESRMNREEF I L —HBREE=F1%
Z R-TZE—=F+A=-+=RH#
T3R8 A R %20,893,0007T & A R #
27,300,000 T E D BIREFERIERK
EREE - REERERVFBSRIEA
R#6,107,000 Tt 5 T fFAERERAR
®5174,480,000 T HI3.5% » Ji A ILE
71X 3% 52 BRI 1R [0 A8 B BT 448 S A
FREBREKIER -
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On 25 January 2017, to increase the efficiency of the construction
and development of the properties, Success Guarantee entered
into an agreement with seven entities, which are related parties
to the Group. Pursuant to the agreement, the eight parties agreed
to establish a company in the PRC and transfer their respective
interests in the above properties to the newly set up company. On
9 February 2017, the eight parties established Foshan Shengshi
Junen Enterprise Management Company Limited (“Shengshi
Junen Enterprise Management”). Pursuant to the Article of
Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management, Success Guarantee
holds 3.5% shares of Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management,
and contributed a 3.5% interest in the properties as the registered
capital of Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management. The value of
the properties assessed in January 2017 was RMB225,917,000
(including value of land use rights of RMB195,465,000 and
value of construction in process of RMB30,452,000). Success
Guarantee initially recognised an available-for-sale financial
asset at an amount of RMB7,907,000, 3.5% of the value of the
properties. The difference between the 3.5% shares of land use
rights and the prepayment of RMB6,107,000 was recognised as
gain from disposal of non-current assets for RMB734,000. The
3.5% of the value of construction in process was recognised
as capital reserve and non-controlling interests amounting to
RMB1,054,000 and RMB11,000, respectively, as waiver of debts
from related parties. On 14 November 2017, all shareholders
of Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management paid up capital of
RMB4,536,000 by cash. Success Guarantee contributed a 3.5%
interest and paid up RMB159,000.

On 1 January 2018, available-for-sale financial asset was
reclassified to financial asset measured at fair value through profit
or loss upon the initial application of HKFRS9. At 31 December
2018, the carrying amount was RMB23,951,000 (2017: 8,066,000),
3.5% of the value of Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management.

RZZE—tF—A=-+HHB " AR
SEEMENEREARNE &
RERELRERBIALTEEN
B )R] LR o RIBZIHE
NFRETHNFRBEFERL—FRD
7 BEESER MY ERE
BREBEHAINDATE  R=2=
—tFEZANB  NRFTHARL
BT RHERSCEEEERAR
((REERLEERE ) - RIFRH
ERLXEENATNER  EXIE
REERTERPEEEILSNY
B BEBEYWE35% WERE
BEARUTERMXEENIME
e EAMER-_ZT—+tE—A
KRR EA AR 225,917,000 7T
(BELHFEAENEERBARYE
195,465,000 t R EER T ENEE
B AR 130,452,0007T ) © EEKIE
RIEERIHEECREESRE
B AR®7907,000T ' HERAE
BAEEEMN3.5% ° T FEREN
3.5% E2 78 4 7 1B A R #56,107,000
TENERRRAREFRBE
ERWE AR 734,000 7T - AR
BES RRER  TERIEZEEN
35N ERBENFERIFIZRE
= 2Bl A AR ¥1,054,000 T &
AR#11,000t s R=ZZFE—+&F
+—A+HmE > RitEBRSEER
HEFERRUBSHEBRRARE
4,536,000 7T ° 5 R ISR AT {5 #E &=
£3.5% » R AR AR 159,000
7_1: °

RZE-N\E—F—H EANSE
AEBMBEREEFEIREAH
HESREERENI2PERRAN
BEFAEZNEREE - K==
—-NE+=ZA=+—H ' KREE
A AR#23951,000 (=& —+t
& AR#8,066,0007T) @ ARt
ERLEEEEEBEM3.5% °
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19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

19

g A

B INA RS H

7 N = |
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) #HRE KA RTAEAB
financial position represents: IHE ¢
Note 2018 2017
Bt EE —E-N\F —E—+tF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
At 1 January W—HB—H 12,902 10,063
Provision for PRC income tax FRPEERERE
for the year 6(a) 20,690 20,130
PRC income tax paid 2P E SR (15,725) (17,291)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 17,867 12,902
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (b) ERIAELEHEBEERE
&
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RER » NGRS IR R RTE
recognised in the consolidated statements of financial RYELEHBEE (B84
position and the movements during the year are as follows: MEPDREEUT :
Impairment
Provision  allowances Fair value
offinancial ~fortrade Share of Long-term change Re-
Deferred  quarantee  andother  Accrued  profitofan  Government Interest unamortised  gainsand  guarantee
income losses receivables  expenses  associate grants  receivables  expenses losses fee Total
E5REH
HEER  EMGE Hele R DAEE
BbN  BERE  HERE  BEBR QEEF ORER BRAE  ABERY SOMARGR OERE gt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETn  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARETR
At1 January 2017 NoE-tE
=fi=E 1992 (4062 5161 633 2,739 (4.5%) (140) - = (56) (3,746)
Credited{charged) to A/ (18)
proftorloss Bt U [ 0 2 % - - - 3
At 31 December 2017 AoE-tE
+2f=1-8 2016 BN T B oy (1% m - - %) (308
Impact on nta ERERES
applcation of HKFRSY  BffkéRi2d]
ELp = 1992 670 = 207 = = = = = 47%
A1 January 2018 HoE-NE
-B-H 2060 pMY 76 5% m (%) ! - - B 44
Creditedcharged] to itA/(f8)
proft or loss Eit 2259 3 1058 in» W) 14 i) @2 peTy) - 279
At 31 December 2018 HoB-NE
+2R=1-A 30,295 (2672) 8,753 939 (1,118) (489) (151) (24279) (397) (56) 1215
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(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of

(d)

financial position

(c) HREBBAMRKRAE IR

31 December 1January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
RZF—/N\E RIZE-N\F RIE—LtHF
+-RA=+—H —HA—H +t=ZA=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETFT ARBTF T ARBT T
Net deferred tax assets FREBBEARR KA
recognised in the R AIELER IR
consolidated statement of &&EE{E
financial position 7,215 4,425 1,105
Net deferred tax liabilities %R & BI AR R &R
recognised in the HRAELERIE
consolidated statement BEFE
of financial position — — (1,413)
7,215 4,425 (308)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(q), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
of RMB7,955,000 (2017: RMB5,540,000) in respect
of cumulative tax losses of RMB 42,225,000 (2017:
RMB28,901,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
remaining unused tax losses were mainly from Success
Capital (HK), Success Equity Fund and Success Financial
Services and do not expire under current tax legislation.

(d) RERHVELEHRREE

RIBMEE1(q) FTE & 5T BUR -
AEEFREFHEBBEAR
#42,225000 (= & — +
% AR%28,901,0007T) K&
BRNELHEEERBARY
7,955,000 T(= & — £ F :
A R #5540,0007T) © &
AR EHEREETIAT
BERE ] A LUK 88 B 18 O R 2R
FERBUEF - AT HIAREBH
BEEFEREFESEHR(F
B) ERBREEESRERD
R IRIBRITBIELZELERE
o

FERE

239



240

B RS ERAR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounted to
RMB241,622,000 (2017: RMB218,895,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of RMB24,162,000 (2017: RMB21,890,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and it has been determined that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future (note 6(b)(iv)).

(e)

AEINELEREAER

RZEB-NE+ZB=+—
H EFAERBATINRD
FRFEENEREREAA
R#241,622,000 T (=&
—+t & AK¥218,895,000
TT) o MABMR D IRZERE
e A B FE 2 A OB IR R R AR A
HIE 8B A K#24,162,000
T(ZZE—-—ttF: ARH
21,890,0007T) * JIHAAXR LA
TEHZENB D TR RS
RRZEEFNAER KRS
TE2RIVRE S M (M
6(b)(iv)) °

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

REF-/N\FE R-Z—tHF

+ZA=+—8 t=A=1t—H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
Acquisition of T. M. Management Y& T. M. Management 5,695 —

On 14 February 2018, the Group acquired 100% ordinary
shares of T. M. Management Limited, which is licensed to carry
out business of Type 9 Regulated activities as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The total consideration of
the transaction was HKD6,897,000 which was paid in cash, of
which HKD1,290,000 has been prepaid as at 31 December 2017.
This has resulted in goodwill arising on a business combination
amounted to HKD6,500,000.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

A=

Z-N\FZATHEA ' A&H

Ue88 T. M. Management Limited 2 %
HEER > HERENBEIRTR
EEH(ERRFH RGN
% - XS {E#%H6,897,0008 TE
RESXM BE-ZT—tHF+=

A=

+— B HH1,290,000/% T

BN - MRBEHELEZEHESR
6,500,00038 7T °
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31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Note HRIFE—/N\E RIZE—+LF
Mz +-A=+—H t=—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARET T

Deferred income EIEWA 121,021 8,037
Provision of guarantee losses EREBERE (@) 7,166 768
128,187 8,805

(a) Provision of guarantee losses

(a) ERERREE

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Note WRIFE—-/N\&E RIZT—+F
M= +-A=+—H t=—B=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARETT

At 31 December of previous year REF+=ZA=+—H 768 1,209

Impact on initial application BAERBBMKRE

of HKFRS 9 ERE R o E 7,965 .

At 1 January ®n—B—H 8,733 1,209
Written back for the year FREE 5(a) (1,567) (441)

At 31 December W+=A=+-—-8 7,166 768
FERE
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Pledged deposits received represent deposits received from
customers or third parties as collateral security for the financial
guarantees issued by the Group. These deposits will be refunded
to the customers or third parties upon expiry of the corresponding
guarantee contracts. According to the contract, these deposits

are expected to be settled within one year.

ERERRESEOTEFHE=H
WA REE  FRANEEE LR
EREANERR - ZERIZTHERN
HEERENERRRETEFY
B=H - REEH ZEREBELHE
SR —FREE -

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RIE-)N\&E RZZT—LtHF
+-A=+—H +t=B=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETFT ARET T

Borrowings from RETHIALHERK

— Third parties - T — 5,000
Interest payable to FERTHIALHFER

— Third parties —%= — 231
Total et — 5,231

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF



B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

On 1 February 2018, the Company issued the convertible bonds
(“CBs”) with a principal amount of HKD154,000,000 at face value.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement on 25
January 2018. Major terms of the CBs are as below:

(i

The CBs carry 6% coupon interest per annum payable semi-
annually in arrears on 1 February and 1 August in each year.
The Company shall pay each bondholder administrative fee
equal to one (1) percent of the aggregate principal amount of
the outstanding bonds held by each bondholder on each of
the issue date and each anniversary thereof.

The Company may redeem the CBs in full, but not in part, at
any time the first anniversary of the issue date at an amount
equal to the aggregate of; (i) the aggregate principal amount
of all the outstanding CBs; (ii) any accrued but unpaid
interest (including any default Interest) and outstanding
administrative fees on such outstanding CBs; and (iii) an
amount that would yield an internal rate of return of ten
(10) per cent on the aggregate principal amount of such
outstanding CBs from the issue date until the date on which
the entire outstanding amount of such redemption price has
been fully paid by the Company.

Subject to and upon compliance with those conditions in
contract, the conversion right in respect of the CBs may be
exercised, at the option of the bondholder thereof, at any
time in full or in part after twelve (12) months from the issue
date up to the close of business on one (1) business day
prior to the maturity date (both days inclusive) by giving a
notice to the issuer of not less than ten (10) business days.
The conversion price will initially be HKD2.20 per share.

RZE—-NEFEZF—H A&QTE
1% H {8 2 17 2~ © %8 A& 154,000,000
B aBgrBREs(UBRRKE
%) - BEFHE  BHZEEARQITRN
—E-N\F—-AZ+HBZAE -
ARRESFNEEGERETINOT -

iy TUTBRREHERFEEERG6%
B B¥FEXF—k BEEF
WZBA—BRNBE—H &R
AARSESFEEAINER
B SHEERNRBNESISE
ARZBITEHHREBERE
BEENWRERESASHERE
BEDZ—(1%)

(i) ARBARBTEHENEEE
F RS ERHER TR
B (BXLFHD) » €EEE
REUAT B IBAM () iERE
BUMRESNHARSHEE S (i)
ZEREEABRRESVEMR
ST BARAF 2 (BFEEHE
RMB)REARENERE
K (i) B2EREEATRRE
FBRTAPEEEEEEEN
ERREZSHCHARLTE
H Y B HRZS TR RES
RERBEANBERETY 2
T (10%) 5T E 2 EHREHE -

@iy SENKRGERRBEEETSE
HIRGHERT » BEETERR
BEHEEATEEBLERAQT
BHFADRT(10)ELEEHN
BAH > RBITHHEHE+TZ=(12)
BREEZEHBER—1)E
EEOEELERB(EREER
MB)BEREHET S 1ITER
B - mRESNTES
FIR2.208TT °

FERE
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The CBs contain two components, the liability and equity
components. The initial fair value of the two components was
determined based on gross proceeds at issuance. The initial fair
value less allocated transaction costs of the liability component
was estimated to be approximately RMB 93,660,000 as at the
issuance date by using the Binomial Tree Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions of the CBs. In subsequent
periods, the liability component is measured at amortized cost
using effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of CBs is 17.8% per annum. The residual
amount less allocated transaction costs representing the value
of the equity component of approximately RMB 29,695,000, was
presented in equity under the heading ‘capital reserve’.

Fair value of the liability component was determined using the
Binomial Tree Model and the major inputs into the model are as
follows:

ARRESHMERSAR > B8
ERDRERED - ZMEI DB
B A REEDIRBITRERIER
BT MR AREERAEGSSND
ME DR S KA TR E 1T B HK
AZEHER . Wtk aBRRES
HHRRRIGREEREE  A5tBOA
£ #5 93,660,000 7T ° RBEZHAR -
BEIND NERAERFIR LR HE
BAGTE - JRESFNEEHD
NEBFEESFE17.8% - Fihxs
BREPERS A AREEREITSH
BEY AR 29,695,0007T * JTIH
ERAEINAERFEE] -

EESHS A AEBETIFAZIER
EBREERERPNEEEH AZE
HHMT -

At issue date

RETHHE

Stock price RE HKD1.60
1.60%& T

Exercise price TEE HKD2.20
2.20% T

Expected volatility FEHRR IR 64%
Dividend yield g B = 0%
Option life B i #E S 2R 12 months
1218 A

Risk free rate I 3 P Al 2= 1.43%

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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The movements of components of the CBs during the period are
set out below:

RREFARS 2N RNE B
EIMT :

Liability Equity

component component

At amortised Residual

cost amount

=8¢0y =D

R AR Figh %8

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBTF T ARET T

At the date of issue RETHE 93,660 29,695

Interest charge AMEZH 16,224 —

Net increase in interest payable PRI B3 hnH 48 (3,001) —
Net increase in administrative fee FETEEEIE INFAE

paid in advance 112 —

Interest paid 2FE (4,015) —

Administrative fee paid ENEEE (1,238) —

Exchange adjustment bE 5 A% 8,898 —

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\FE+ZHA=+—H 110,640 29,695

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RIE—N\E RIZE2E—tHF

M= +=-A=+—H t=A=+—8H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#&ET T AR¥TF T

Accruals and other payables EErB R R EERIE 393,937 48,217
Total st 393,937 48,217

(i) Accruals and other payables are expected to be settled within one
year or time dependent but both of them are repayable on demand.

() EAERREMEMNKERS
BR—FREE  WREREA
BNASFEIE -

FERE
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At 31 December 2018, the Group had obligations under finance R=Z2—N\E+=A=+—H &
leases repayable as follows: SEEEENHREREEENT !
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
RIE—/\&F RZZE—tHF
+-H=+—H +=—A=+—H
Present Present
value of value of
the Total the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments
RkEE HREE FEEE HEEES
MIRB{E SEEE FORRE  FRRE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFRT AR®TR ARBTRT AR®ETR

Within 1 year —FR 166 171 164 170
After 1 year but within 2 years —FZERWER 156 171 154 170
After 2 years but within 5 years RFZERAFER 67 86 188 254
389 428 506 594

Less: total future
interest expenses W RRF BRI R B (39) (88)
Present value of lease obligations HE&FERE 389 506
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The Company adopted a share option scheme on 18 October
2013 (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby one director and 49
employees in the Group are invited, to take up options at HKD1
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

ARTAR=ZZB—=FE+A+N\BEK
MEBRRRE T EI([RE AR MERTED) » 1B
It REBW—REER49BES
BRI BTEMNBERENZEAR
ANENRH - BSHERERTEE
ARBEARQ T —REERAEFR I
IR EEEE -

(a) RHEBRKRRIKHEMDT -

follows:
Number of_ share options granted Contractual
RUBREHE life of options
Date granted Vesting date Expiry date Director Employees Total EERRHER
RHAM BB B Il = 3= B RHHR
6 November 2013 30 June 2014 5 November 2023 500,000 4,500,000 5,000,000 10 years
—E-=F —E-mE —EC-=E 105
+—A~A ~A=TH +—AEH
30 June 2016 5 November 2023 300,000 2,700,000 3,000,000 10 years
—E-RE —EC-=E 106
~A=TH +—REH
30 June 2018 5 November 2023 200,000 1,800,000 2,000,000 10 years
—E-N\E —E-=E 106
~AZ=TH +-AEA
1,000,000 9,000,000 10,000,000
FERE
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(b) The number and weighted average exercise (b) BEREMNHE RNEFS
prices of share options are as follows: TEEWNT :
2018 2017
e AY: 2 —F—tF
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
TEE BEREHE TEE BREHE
Granted and outstanding at £ ¥ 2 #% H1{8 HKD1.90 6,501 HKD1.90 7,488
the beginning of the year [ A& 21T 1.90i& T 1.9078 7T
Forfeited during the year FRER UK HKD1.90 (13) HKD1.90 (987)
1.90# T 1.9078 7T
Exercised during the year FRBITE HKD1.90 —  HKD1.90 —
1.90# T 1.90%8 T
Granted and outstanding FAREEHE HKD1.90 6,488 HKD1.90 6,501
at the end of the year i AR BT 1.90# T 1.9078 7T
Exercisable at the end of FEFRAJIT{E HKD1.90 5,638 HKD1.90 5,640
the year 1.90i& T 1.908 T
Note: The options outstanding at 31 December 2018 had an Mizx: HR=ZZFE-—NE+=A8

exercise price of HKD1.90 and a weighted average remaining

contractual life of 4.8 years (2017: 5.8 years).

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

=t - BHRITENE
RENITEER1.9078
TREMEFIRGE
HER B48FE(Z Z

—tF:

5.8%) o
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(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice
model. The contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are
incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

Fair value (weighted average) per share option

(c)

RITERBOBRENQIAER

at measurement date (hNFEFST)
Share price IRE
Exercise price 1TEE
Expected volatility rate TR IR
Option life BB IR HE R
Expected dividends FRHIRE
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange A bR =
MFund Notes) (ERNEESES)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatilities
of the share prices of the comparable companies in recent
years around the date of valuation. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

The risk-free rate of interest with expected term shown
above was taken to be the linearly interpolated yields of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes as at the grant date.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no other market conditions associated with the share
options.

BRENAIABERR
B

X AR T W E Y AR IS B9
REERSRAREBREN
RABEE - IRHBRE
MAREBEELAERRE RN
EEEXGE - BRENSY
FHEEAEZEX AR
B —IEAEREACBER
SHRERATRATE -

BRI R ABERER

HKD1.60
1.608 7T
HKD2.68
2.687& T
HKD1.90
1.90& T
64.861%
10 years
105

0%
1.874%

TR R =K IE LB B AT L
FETLBQBAROERE
EREMESH - BEANEBR
REMANSEUREBRELEMN
AN R EE -

= 32 P 7 TR H HA PR A 4 L B
RERBNEE B BEBINE
ESESRMEMIEE -

BRERRE —BRBIRMAFR
e FTEATWEBRBER H A
A R EERIEE EERE
o I EAD ISR LI AR
FEAER -

FERE
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(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated

(a)

EEER T NS B

FEBGEEEE D
BHR AR 2 B BRE A 47

equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in ERFZEHRAN - REIREF
equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s individual Ko ANQEME BRI N
components of equity between the beginning and the end of BFEEHINT
the year are set out below:
The Company
LG
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
Rx  ROEE  EXGG  HMERGE  ZAEB st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR¥TR ARBTR ARETR  ARETn  AR¥TR
Note28(c)  Note28(d)  Note28(e)  Note28(h)
Wios)  Miosd  Miose  Mosh)
Balance at 1 January 2017 R-E-tF
-B-Bfhgs 4 U7 8467 45558 (65250) 440,488
Changes in equity for 2017: “ER-tENERED
Gain for the year s = = = — 11533 11533
Exchange differences on translation 18 EE A
of financial statement EENERER - - - (27,962) = (27,962)
Total comprehensive income 2ANAER — = = (27,962) 11,533 (16,429)
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BtEN LERE
the previous year - - - - (9,381) (9,381)
Equity settled share-based NREEEIRGA
transactions ERNHRS = — 393 — = 393
Balance at 31 December 2017 ~ RM=F-t#
TZA=T-ANEs 4241 447 472 8,860 17,596 (63,098) 415,071
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (Br 35 E1EH + ZBILA BHEF)F)

(@) Movements in components of equity (Cont’d) (a) B HBE (&)
The Company
N
Share Share Capital  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
A RARE BAiHE NERE ZitFR it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  AR®TR ARETR AR%fR ARETR ARETR
Note 28(c)  Note28(d)  Note28(e)  Note 28(h)
Mitslc)  MEFos(d)  MEF8(e)  MiEt2s(h)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R=Z—+F&
+-A=t-BNEH 44 T2 8,860 1759 (63098 415,074
Impact on initial application BREREBHBES
of HKFRS 9 ERES e - - - - - -
Adjusted balance on R=B-NE
1 January 2018 - B-ANEERER 4,241 447,472 8,860 17,596 (63,098) 415,071
Changes in equity for 2018: “E-\ENEREE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (49,261) (49,261)
Fxchange differences on translation Bif&REMELRN
of financial statement ERER = = = 20,184 = 20,184
Total comprehensive income 2ANAER = = = 20,184 (49,261) (29,077)
Purchase of own shares BERGRE (54) (5,300) = = - (5,354)
Shares issued under share BERRET
option scheme B{THRA - = 29,694 = = 29,694
Equity settled share-based DREEEURDA
transactions ERNRS - = 174 = — 174
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z-N\E
+-A=t-BNEH 4187 44272 38728 780 (12359 410,508
Dividends (b) K=
The Company did not declare dividend through the year of ADRAR=—F—\FALEEIK
2018. Thus, there is no balance for dividend payable at 31 RS- Rt R=F-N\F

December 2018.

T-A=T—HAEEERMRE
REER
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(c) Share capital (c) B’=
() Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZETRA
2018 2017
—F-)0\% “E-tF
No. of Share Share No. of Share Share
Note shares capital capital shares capital capital
M 0 & BE  ROEE B BA
000 HKD'000 RMB’000 000 HKD'000 RMB'000
Tk  FET ARETR Th  TEr ARETR
Authorised: EE.
Ordinary shares of BRAEEOAT
HKDO0.01 each VEER 800,000 8,000 6,512 800,000 8,000 6,512

Ordinary shares, BRTRMRLER
issued and fully paid:

At 1 January ®W-A-H 530,805 5,308 4241 530,805 5,308 4,241
Shares issued under  RIBIEIRER EB 1T

share option scheme  fIRR 4 28(c)(ii — — — — — —
Shares repurchased ~ EIEBHIIRL 28(c)(ii (6,170) (62) (54) — — —
At 31 December R+ZA=1-H 524,635 5,246 4,187 530,805 5,308 4,241
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREA A GREIE
dividends as declared from time to time and are FTHEERNEKRE  ITE
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the MNAEAATRKRE LERT
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard B—E. frEZEERR
to the Company’s residual assets. RATHNREGREEES

EES:AvA
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Share capital (Cont’d)

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

No share option were exercised during 2018 and 2017.
Further details of these options are set in note 27 to the
financial statement.

(i) Shares repurchased

From 18 July 2018 to 7 November 2018, the Company
repurchased 6.17 million shares at HKDO0.01 per share.
The repurchase of shares resulted in a reduction
of share capital and share premium by HKD61,700
(equivalent to RMB53,327) and HKD®6,108,300
(equivalent to RMB5,297,736), respectively.

(d) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds
in the Company’s share premium account are distributable
to the shareholders provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The increase of share premium is due to the issuance of
additional shares and the exercise of share options.

(c) BRa(#&)

(i) RIEHERE ZRITH
BH

RZB-NER=ZF
—t & WEBREE
TE- EEZSERE
HE— SHEBERUS
WMRMIEE27 ©

(i) FEEIRIR 17

R=ZB-NFEtA+N
BHE=ZZ-N\F+—AH
+tH AQ2FRER
0.0178 T g E6.17H
BERkRM - BERAOE
HRARRBRMDEESD 5
B 2 61,70058 T(HE &
MARYS33277) &
6,108,3007%8 st (10 & M
ARHE5,297,736 ) °

(d) KRip=E

RIEREHREQRE  AAF
RIVBERNES T DK TR
R MEE&HIIKRE BB
% ARTREEENRAEE
B EIHAVETS o

IRADIRE IR 0= A BT HRS
R RATREAB IR EL o
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(e) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the following:

the difference between the nominal value of share
capital of the Company and the paid-up capital of
Success Guarantee, plus the net assets acquired
from the inserting companies (holding companies of
Success Guarantee, including the Company, Double
Chance, Success Finance and Success Asset) pursuant
to a group reorganisation completed on 17 September
2012;

the portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payment in
note 1(p)(ii);

the amount allocated to the unexercised equity
component of convertible notes issued by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for convertible notes in note 1(0).

the waiver of debts from related parties.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

Surplus reserve

Surplus reserve comprises statutory surplus reserve and
discretionary surplus reserve.

The entities established in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit, as determined under the
China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises (2006)
and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC (“MOF”), to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the entities
established in the PRC, statutory surplus reserves may be
used to net off with accumulated losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital, provided that the balance of statutory
surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not less than 25%
of the registered capital.

After making the appropriation to the statutory surplus
reserve, the Group may also appropriate its net profit to the
discretionary surplus reserve upon approval by shareholders.
Subject to the approval of shareholders, discretionary
surplus reserves may be used to make good previous years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into capital.

Regulatory reserve

According to the Interim Measures for the Administration of
Financial Guarantee Companies (“Interim Measures”) issued
at 8 March 2010 by the relevant government authorities
in the PRC, financial guarantee companies shall establish
unearned premium reserve equal to 50% of guarantee
premium recognised during the year, and indemnification
reserve of no less than 1% of the outstanding guarantee
balances undertaken by the entities established in the PRC.
The Group started to accrue the required amounts set by
relevant government authorities less the provision of financial
guarantee losses as regulatory reserve from 2011. According
to the details implementation guidance No. 149 issued by the
People’s Government of Guangdong Province on the Interim
Measures, the use of the aforementioned regulatory reserve
is subject to further guidance from the Financial Work Office
of People’s Government of Guangdong Province.

(f)

(9)
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(h) Exchange reserve

(i)

()

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations with functional currency other
than RMB. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(v).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB406,320,000 (2017: RMB410,830,000).
Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company refer to note 28(b).

The directors had not proposed any dividends distribution
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure, monitors the returns on capital, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

During 2018, there were no changes in the Group’s approach
to capital management from 2017.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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Exposure to credit, market and liquidity risks arises in the normal
course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and practice
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. Credit risk primarily arises from the possibility
that a customer or counterparty in the transaction may
default, leading to losses. Credit risk is primarily attributable
to outstanding guarantees issued by the Group, financial
leasing service, factoring receivable, down payments for
investments and other receivables. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts in
which it has guaranteed the financial institutions (including
the banks) the repayment of loans entered into by customers
of the Group. The Group has the obligation to compensate
the financial institutions for the losses they would suffer if
customers fail to repay.

Risk management committees of Success Guarantee,
Success Financial Leasing and Success Asset under
the leadership of the executive directors are tasked with
organising and coordinating the risk management and
internal control for guarantee business, financial leasing
business and factoring business, respectively. The
committees comprised of the Group’s internal personnel.
The committees are responsible for (i) designing and
implementation of overall risk management internal control
policies and procedures and establishing appropriate risk
appetite; (ii) designing and execution of due diligence
procedures; (jii) reviewing the creditworthiness of customers
before submitting to the executive directors for final
approval.
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks
arising from guarantees issued, finance lease receivable
and factoring receivable. The Group manages credit risk
at every stage along the approval process, including pre-
transaction, in-transaction and post-transaction monitoring
processes. The Group conducts due diligence and evaluates
customers by internal credit assessment system during the
pre-approval process.

Guarantees issuance, finance leases issuance and factoring
issuance are subject to approval of the risk management
committees and the executive Directors.

The project managers assigned to each case monitor the
post-transaction status of the customers. Each manager
is responsible for a number of customers. They visit the
customers regularly to understand their operation and
financial status by checking their financial reports, sale
contracts, sale invoices, value added tax filing documents,
utility bills and bank statements and other relevant
documents.

The Group has established guidelines on the acceptability
of various classes of collateral and determined the
corresponding valuation parameters. The guidelines and
collateral valuation parameters are subject to regular reviews
to ensure their effectiveness over credit risk management.
The extent of collateral coverage over the Group’s
outstanding guarantees depends on the type of customers
and the product offered. Types of collateral mainly include
land use rights, machineries and equipment, properties and
vehicles, etc. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying value
of outstanding guarantees of RMB5,431,857,000 (2017:
RMB1,578,345,000) is fully or partially covered by collateral.
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

(@) EEREGE)

() Risk concentration () [EEERIES
When a certain number of clients undertake the same fWETEFEMERLE
business activities, stay in the same geographical REMEEXEKEE X =
locations, or bear similar economic features for their ETEFEBHUNEK
industries, their ability to fulfil contracts will be affected ERSH HETEHOM
by the same economic changes. Concentration EIEZIERKLES
of credit risk reflects the sensitivity of the Group’s BHTE - EERKN
operating results to specific industries or geographical EPRMAEFLE
locations. As the Group mainly operates its businesses BEEARTERMIEN
in Guangdong Province of the PRC, there exists a BN - HRAE
certain level of geographical concentration risk for its BXERPEHEREL
guarantee portfolios in that it might be affected by EEK HEmEERA
changes in the local economic conditions. ERE—ERENHE
SHPEE TREZEE
U ASEARR S B FE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of R+=-—A=+—HEH#
these guarantees as at 31 December is as follows: ZEERNESEER
PREEEAT ¢
2018 2017
—5-\f ZE-tF
RMB’ 000 % RMB’000 %
ARETT % AR¥TR %
Traditional financial services 147 & il BR 7% 11,823 0% 11,167 1%
Online financial services ~ #R E & @hARTE 4,523,416 83% = —
Construction and installation Z Kk Z4 747,970 14% 1,349,819 86%
Wholesale and retailing HEREE 115,441 2% 86,254 5%
Manufacturing SIERMT
and processing 16,498 0% 59,561 4%
Transportation Eiy — + 6,000 0%
Others Hitb 16,709 1% 65,544 4%
Total Hab 5,431,857 100% 1,578,345 100%
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(@) EERRE@E)

()  Risk concentration (Cont’d) () [EfERES ()
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of R+=-—A=+—HE#H
financial leasing service, factoring receivable, down MERERE  RIERE
payments for investments and other receivables as at WFE - REEBNRK
31 December is as follows: HttEWRENRSE
ERBEENT
2018 2017
—F-N\f —E—tHF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARBT T % AR®TT %
Construction BERZHE
and installation 341,287 71% 280,566 65%
Business service IR 54,534 11% 49,254 11%
Wholesale HBERTE
and retailing 44,100 9% 42,000 10%
Financial services & BpRTE 38,848 8% 38,858 9%
Tourism and hie 3% &2 AR 7% 3£
service sector — —— 17 0%
Others Hity 3,365 1% 19,264 5%
Total et 482,134 100% 429,959 100%
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)

(i)

Measurement of ECL

Based on whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk and whether the asset has incurred credit
impairment, the Group measures allowances for loss
of different assets with 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL,
respectively.

The Group measures loss provision of the financial
instruments that meet the following conditions
according to the amount of expected credit
losses within the next 12 months, and measures
loss allowances for other financial instruments in
accordance with the amount of lifetime expected credit
losses.

- The financial instruments that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date; or

= The financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

When one or more quantitative, qualitative standards
or upper limits are triggered, the Group assumes that
credit risk on financial instruments has increased
significantly.

(@) EEREGE)
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Cont’d)

If the counterparty is listed in the watch list and one or
more of the following criteria are met:

The credit spread increases significantly;

Significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the counterparty’s business,
financial and economic status;

Application of a grace period or debt-restructuring;

Significant changes with an adverse effect in the
counterparty’s operating conditions;

Less value of the collaterals;

Early indicators of problems of cash flow/liquidity,
such as late payment of accounts payable/
repayment of guarantees;

The payment is more than 30 days past due.

The standards used in determining whether credit risk
increases significantly are regularly monitored and
reviewed by the management for the appropriateness.

As at 31 December, 2018, the Group has not
considered that any of its financial instruments has
lower credit risk and no longer compared the credit
risk at the balance sheet date with that at the initial
recognition to identify whether there was a significant
increase in credit risk.
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Cont’d)

Definition of “default” and “credit-impaired assets”

When a financial instrument meets one or more of the
following conditions, the Group considers the financial
asset to be in default, and the criteria are consistent
with the definition of credit-impaired assets.

The financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The counterparty meets the criterion of “having
difficulty in repayment”, which indicates that the
counterparty has significant financial difficulty,
including:

the counterparty has been in the grace period for
a long time;

the death of the counterparty;
the counterparty enters bankruptcy;

the counterparty breaches (one or more) terms of
the contract that the debtor shall be subject to;

the disappearance of an active market for the
related financial asset because of financial
difficulties faced by the counterparty;

the creditor make concessions due to the financial
difficulties faced by the counterparty;

it becomes probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy;

(i)
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Cont’d)

- a higher discount was obtained during the
acquisition of assets, and the assets has incurred
credit loss when they are acquired.

The above criteria apply to all financial instruments of
the Group and they are consistent with the definition of
“default” adopted by the internal management of credit

risk.

Notes to the parameters, assumptions and valuation

techniques

The ECL is the result of the discounted product of
probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD)
and loss given default (LGD). The definitions of these
terms are as follows:

- PD refers to the likelihood that a counterparty will
be unable to meet his repayment obligations over
the next 12 months or the remaining lifetime of
the guarantee;

- EAD is the amount that the Group should be
reimbursed upon default of an obligor over the
next 12 months or the remaining lifetime of the
guarantee;
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(@) Credit risk (Cont’a)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Cont’d)

- LGD refers to the expected degree of loss arising
from the exposure at default which is predicted
by the Group. LGD varies according to different
types of counterparties, methods and priority of
recovering debts, and the availability of collaterals
or other credit support.

The Group determines the expected credit losses
by estimating the PD, LGD and EAD of individual
exposure or asset portfolios in the future months. The
Group multiplies these three parameters and makes
adjustments according to the probability of their
continuance (i.e. there is no prepayment or default at
an earlier period). By adopting this approach, the Group
can calculate the expected credit losses for the future
months. The results of calculation for each month are
then discounted to the balance sheet date and added
up. The discount rate used in the calculation of ECL
is the initial effective interest rate or its approximate
value.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Cont’d)

The lifetime PD is deduced from using the maturity
model or 12-month probability of default. The maturity
model describes the development rule of the defaults
of the asset portfolio over its lifetime. The model is
developed based on historical observational data and
applicable to all assets in the same portfolio with the
same credit rating. The above method is supported by
empirical analysis.

The 12-month EAD and lifetime EAD are determined
based on expected repayment arrangements, which
are different according to different types of products.

- In respect of the guarantees with instalment
repayments and bullet repayment, the Group
determines 12-month or lifetime EAD according
to the repayment schedule agreed in the contract,
and makes adjustment based on prediction of
over-limit repayment and prepayments/refinancing
made by the counterparty.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(a) Credit risk (Cont'd) (a) EERKE)

(i) Measurement of ECL (Cont’d) (i) TEEIEEEENIE
(&

In respect of the products of revolving credit - HREREEE

agreement, the Group estimates the remaining m AEEREAE

withdrawal within the limits by using the RENEMEREEMN L

balance of the loan after previous withdrawals [EEERAZ G

and the “credit conversion factor”, so as to STRIBARERR R

predict the exposure at default. Based on the
Group’s analysis on recent default data, these

o RIEAEQE
PO o ERARE

assumptions vary based on differences in product I ERE B

type and utilization rate of the limits. oA BEB/RERE
ERBERKRRER
AENERMAB AR
NE

The Group determines the 12-month LGD and - FEBRBHEE

lifetime LGD based on the factors that affects ENREIWHEZE

post-default recovery. LGD for different product
types are different.

REE12ME A K
REFEPNED
BAE- TEEM

BHRANENBLE
BEAE -
As to guarantees, the Group determines the - HRER KAKE
LGD according to the types of collaterals and RBEFRERER

their expected value, the discount rate at the
compulsory sale, the recovery time and the
estimated recovery cost.

Forward-looking economic information should be
considered when determining the 12-month and
lifetime PD, EAD and LGD.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(@) Credit risk (Cont’d)
(i)  Measurement of ECL (Cont’d)

The Group quarterly monitors and reviews assumptions
related to the calculation of expected credit losses,
including the changes in PD and the value of collaterals
under the different time limits.

Both the assessment of the significant increase in
credit risk and the measurement of expected credit
losses involve forward-looking information. Based on
the analysis on historical data, the Group identified
critical economic indicators that affect the credit risk
and expected credit losses of all asset portfolios,
including GDP, increase in RMB loans, PPI, etc.

There has been no significant changes in the valuation
techniques and key assumptions during the reporting
period.

The Group’s other credit risk is attributable to bank
deposits and security deposits. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The bank deposits and security deposits of the Group
are mainly held with well-known financial institutions.
Management does not foresee any significant credit
risks from these deposits and does not expect that
these financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(b) Market risk

Market risk arises when the adverse changes in market
prices (interest rates, exchange rates, as well as equity
prices and other prices) lead to losses from the Group’s
on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet businesses. The
Group’s market risk mainly arises from currency risk and
interest rate risk.

()

Currency risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted
in RMB, while most of the Group’s monetary assets
and liabilities are denominated in HKD and RMB. At
the end of the reporting period, the recognised assets
or liabilities are mainly denominated in the functional
currency of the Group entity to which they relate.
Accordingly, the directors considered the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk is not significant
during the year.

On the other hand, RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the PRC government may at its discretion
restrict to foreign currencies for current account
transactions in the future.

Changes in the foreign exchange control system may
prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign
currency demands and the Group may not be able
to pay dividend in foreign currencies to its equity
shareholders.

(b)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(b) Market risk (Cont’a)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group
is principally engaged in the provision of guarantee
service, finance lease service, factoring service and
related consulting services to SME enterprises in
the PRC. Its interest rate risk arises primarily from
deposits with banks, factoring receivable, finance lease
receivable and obligations under finance leases.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rate. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on its cash flow risks.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(b) Market risk (Cont'a) (b) WIEEEE)
(iii)  Interest rate profile (i) FIFEAML
The following tables detail the interest rate profile of the THRALEAEBEZEF
Group’s assets and liabilities as of the end of the years: REERBBEHRZEMR
e

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RIE-N\E R=-ZT—LtHF
+ZRA=+—-H t=A=t—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE  ARETT

Fixed interest rate & E F) =

Financial assets EHMEE
- Cash and bank deposits - BeRIBITFR 74 990
- Pledged bank deposits —BEHRITER 84,581 82,144
- Factoring receivable —REBEWFRIE 88,950 91,950
— Finance lease receivable —AEHERERE 192,487 178,374
366,092 353,458

Financial liabilities eRas
- Obligations under finance leases -HMEHESE (389) (506)
— Interest-bearing borrowings — T EER e (5,000)
(389) (5,506)
Net FE 365,703 347,952

Variable interest rate FENRI=

Financial assets EHMEE
— Cash and bank deposits - RERBITER 235,535 38,244
- Pledged bank deposits —BEHRITER 1,607 13,355
237,142 51,599

Net fixed rate financial assets EENZEMEE FEE
as a percentage of total LR EMEREFHE

net financial assets B 61% 87%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (RIS EIEH + ZRIKUA BEES)TF)

(b) Market risk (Cont’a)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits for the
next 12 months by approximately RMB889,000 (2017:
RMB193,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period. The impact on the Group’s
retained profit after tax is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a change
in interest rates.

The analysis is performed on the same basis as 2017.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(c) Liquidity risk

Management regularly monitors the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period
of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date
the Group can be required to pay:

(c)

REE SR

EEEENERAEENRE
BEE2FER  BREESEEN
REffE  WnREHRER
HHRBEEER - TRIIR
REEHRTEESHEEN
BT ENEMER - IRER
BRENRERBERAKET
RENEREENRT HHE

= .

E

Contractual undiscounted cash outflows as at 31 December 2018
RIE-NE+ZR=+-BAMRANREN

Contractual Oneyearor Two yearsor  Five years or
Carrying undiscounted ~ Repayable ~ Withinsix less but over less but over less but over
amount cash outflows  on demand months  six months oneyear  twoyears
FERAH ~EAME  -EME WERLE
REE  RERY  WEEE  ABALA -k g gk
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETT  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  AREfR

Non-derivatives financial liabilites {74 2B&E
Accruals and other payables EHERRABENFE 393,937 303,997 284,331 105,997 3,609 = =
Customer pledged deposits received ~ CHEFERRES 300,021 300,021 300,018 3 = = =
Obiigations under finance leases HEHEER 389 428 = 8 8 17 %
Liability component of convertible bonds W& %418 &% 110,640 157873 = 5,397 4,048 9,445 138,083
Total s 813,087 861,259 593,349 111,483 1,142 9,616 139,069

Guarantees ER

Financial guarantee BEER 111,661 111,661 - 44100 53,037 9,494 4,130
Online financial services BHEREH 453416 4523416 4523416 = = = =
Performance quarantee BOER 721,925 721,925 = 39,317 136,074 149,013 66,621
Litigation quarantee FAER 74,855 74,855 25,000 = 49,855 = =
Maximum quarantees exposre REEREE SASISST  BASISST 458416 413417 240,766 158,507 70,751
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MEEREBEEREMTE
NRlEEm®E)

REVE & EbE(#7)

29 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 29
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'a)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d) (c)

274

Contractual undiscounted cash outflows as at 31 December 2017

REB-tETZA=T-RARRAKRER

Contractual Oneyearor  Twoyearsor  Five yearsor
Carrying undiscounted ~ Repayable Within -~ lessbut over ~ lessbut over  less but over
amount cashoutfows ~ ondemand  sixmonths  sixmonths oneyear  twoyears
FHR ~ERRE  -EME WERLE
RiE cument  UERE  ABEAMR -5 Wk Eif
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTT  ARBTR  ARBfn  ARRTR  ARMTR  ARETR

Non-derivatives financial liabilites {74 2H&fE
Accruals and other payables EHERREBENFE 4817 48017 40,762 7,255 200 = =
Customer pledged deposits received ~ EHEFERRHEE [ 62 62 = = = =
Interest-bearing borrowings HEER 5231 5,231 5231 - - - -
Obiigations under finance leases HEHEER 506 504 - 8 8 170 254
Total Eh) 54,016 54,104 46,055 7,340 285 170 254

Guarantees iR

Tradtional guarantee BRER 188943 188,943 - 65,320 52470 56,814 14,339
Performance guarantee BOER 1214982 1274982 - 265,966 325,29 537,176 146,548
Litigation guarantee HAER 114,420 14420 1144120 - - - -
Maximum guarantees exposure FREREE 1,578,345 1,578,345 114,420 331,286 371,762 593,990 160,887

FESEBERE (&) BBR2AF China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited



(d) Fair value measurement
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B ISR AR B AL

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 » ZEIUNA REFT)

(d AREEEE

Financial assets measured at fair value () BAALEBEIGTENLH
BE
Fair value hierarchy NAREBEER
The following table presents the fair value of the TREINAEERKS
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end of HARBREEEHETEN
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised EMIENQAAREE
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined ZETANEREBY
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level BREZDEIZFELR
into which a fair value measurement is classified BEEFEMREN=1E
is determined with reference to the observability AABEER . —HEA
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation REEFERBEERE
technique as follows: B T32Z T S E H T
Fr R A BB AT ER SR
MREEMMEE :

Level 1 valuations:

FA1RME

Level 2 valuations:

F2 R EE -

Level 3 valuations:

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

BEAZE 1A AYE(RGEREERMIZHHREEREBENR
BORKERARE))TTEQAREE -

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

EAE2RM AR (NTAFEE 1 RN TBRREALE B~ EA
EAFTABERBAYB)GAEQAABE  FABREBHARBRTSH
BRAE 2@ ARE -

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

SEIMMAEME - EHEATAEHERARBEANEE -
As at 31 December 2018, the Group held only one R—ZZEBE-N\NE+=A4
other financial asset, which was an equity investment =+—H ' KEEEHE
in an unlisted company (note 18), with fair value E—HEMESHEE
measurement categorised into level 3. mMEBEEARNIELT
DEREREME
18) » AAEEEDE
S kT
FEHRSE
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(d) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value (Cont’d)

(d)

DIREEFEE)

(@

BAREESENE M
BE (/)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BRAEIH L REES
The fair value of unlisted equity investment is FLETRERENAR
determined using the sales comparison approach BEDEAYWE L I
for the land element of the property and depreciated DHHELLBUER W
replacement cost approach for the improvement of the HENITEEERNE
property. BE -
The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 EIW/AREBEAES
fair value measurements is as follows: BRI A EWT -
31 December
2018
—E—)\f
+=-—RA=+—H
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
Other financial assets Hihem&EE
At 1 January m—B—H 8,066
Changes in fair value recognised in FARBRERN
profit or loss during the year NAREEED 15,885
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H 23,951
31 December
2017
—ZT—+tF
+ZHA=+—H
RMB’ 000
ARBT T
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHEEMEE
At 1 January Hn—A—H e
Payment for purchases XTBER 8,066
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 8,066
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(d) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

(i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018 and as at 31 December 2017.

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair value of
financial instruments.

(i)

Trade and other receivables, factoring receivable
and finance lease receivable

Trade and other receivables, factoring receivable
and finance lease receivable are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowances for impairment of
doubtful debts. Fair value is calculated based on
the present value of future principal and interest
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the balance sheet date.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based
on management’s best estimates and the
discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

D AEETEE)

(i) I HF D AEE SR
ETHEERBEBHIIAL
1Bfe
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+=ZA=+—R8' X&
B %2 A A S 12 8 AR AR 5
RN TENIREE
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=H o

TR fEr €M T A
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ERBR
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8~ REEWKIR
kB HEERWR
|
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BEIR DRE
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BT 5 A RBEER)
R
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(d) Fair value measurement (Cont’d)

(i) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value (Cont'd)

(i

(ii)

Guarantees issued

The fair value of guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not
been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made.

Interest rates used for determining fair value

The market interest rates adopted for determining
the fair value of trade and other receivables are
ranging from 2.45% to 3.05% as at 31 December
2018 (2017: 3.27% to 3.74%).

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

(d) AREEFEGE)
(i) IR AEE SR
ETHEERBEBHIIAL
1E1E (&)

(ii)

(i)
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Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2018 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

RZIE-—NEF+ZA=+—
B AREMBRRPEBEE 2K

NEAEFENT :

2018 2017
—F-N\F e
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBF T ARBTT

Contracted for EHEY

ol 4,355

At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

RZBE-NEFE+=ZA=+—
B RETOHECEHEERE
AR BEB S TREZEM
T :

2018 2017

—F-N\F —E2—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARBTT ARBTT

Within 1 year —F LA 2,407 3,070
After 1 year but less than 5 years —F L BFURA 116 2,821
Total st 2,523 5,891

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties
held under operating leases. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

FEEAZRRBEEHENRE
BYENEBEA - HEEOS
HEHEE

FERE
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TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

(@) Name and relationship with related parties () BB EBREBAHLSH
A&

During the year, transactions with the following parties are RER BEUTERTNRZH
considered as related parties: RAEBHAZS
Name of related party Relationship
BBLRE R BiF
Mr. Zhang Tiewei A substantial shareholder, chairman and executive director
REERE FTERR  IERUTES
Mr. Xu Kaiying A substantial shareholder and executive director
- i TERRRHUTES
Mr. Pang Haoquan A substantial shareholder and executive director
AR R TERRRUTES
Mr. Li Bin Chief executive officer and executive director
FHEE THARRITES
Ms. Dai Jing Chief operation officer and executive director
gEut BERERNTES
Mr. He Darong A substantial shareholder and non-executive director
EREE IERRRFYTES
Mr. Tsang Hung Kei Independent non-executive director
BREEL BYFHTES
Mr. Au Tien Chee Arthur Independent non-executive director
EXIFEE BUFHTES
Mr. Xu Yan Independent non-executive director
FERE BUFHITES
Mr. Zhou Xiaojiang Independent non-executive director
BNIEE BYFHTES
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(a) Name and relationship with related parties (Cont’d) (@) HH& BEKEBEL N
BIR (&)

Name of related party Relationship

BBEI#E EF BF

Foshan Finance

HLEaE

Success Credit
EREN

Guangzhou Chenghuijin
ENKES

China Success Credit Rating Co., Ltd.*
(“Success Credit Rating”)

BT ERERFEERLD(RRERFE)

Shengshi Junen Enterprise Management
RUtERLEER

Guangdong Success Data Co., Ltd. (“Success Data”)

ERERBEERAA(KREE))

*

official name of the entity is in Chinese.

A company of which 100% interest is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,

Mr. Xu Kaiying and Mr. Pang Haoquan
REELE  REAALERBEEREERBH100% BEN AT

Associate of the Group since 18 December 2012

B-E-ZFtZAt\BEAREENHE AR

Associate of the Group until 15 January 2018
HE-Z-\FE-A+tRALAREENHEL AT

A company of which 100% interest is held by Foshan Finance

HLERIFEE100% BEN DT

A company of which 35% interest is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,
Mr. Xu Kaiying and Mr. Pang Haoquan
REELE  RAREERBEEREESEH % RENAT

A company of which 30% interest is held by Mr. Zhang Tiewei,
Mr. Xu Kaiying and Mr. Pang Haoquan
REELE RAREEREEREERTHI0% REN AT

The English translation of the name is for reference only. The * ZATINER BIBAHR -

RNEEEHBZ -

FERE
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(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) EEEEASEHM

REENETEEEASHINE
FENAEEESHEME
REDNRENETESH
B {2 & 7R IR (3K TR FIEE8) -

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Group’s directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

LI N

2018 2017

—E-)\f —E—tF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥ETT AR®T T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 2R EiEF] 10,568 15,885
Contributions to defined

contribution retirement plan o] E R FGR IRET B R 128 153

Equity compensation benefits % 3R B 1= R 87 67

Total et 10,783 16,105

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 5(b)).

F R ATE TR J(F

At 5(b)) °
(c) Related parties transactions (c) BHAERS

2018 2017
—F-)\F —E—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT ARETTT
Services fee income RIS BULA — 7,547
Services fee expense R ER X (1,030) -
Net interest income FE U HEE 1,860 —
Settlement of advance HEEBR 4 —
Entrusting payment R NE 2,205 —
Loan B 20,480 —
23,519 7,547

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF
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(d) Balances with other related parties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following balances with related parties:

(d) EEHEMhEARETS A& ER

REMEIR - AEE LR
FHUT&ER

Amounts due from related parties FEU BT 5 5 E
31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+tF
Mz +=-A=+—H t—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ETF T ARET T
Success Credit EREX () 25,363 2,730

Shengshi Junen BRttERPETE

Enterprise Management 2,205 —
Guangzhou Chenghuijin BN ES = 4
Success Data SREE 1,400 —
Total et 28,968 2,734

() On 20 March 2014, the shareholders of Success
Credit approved to make a dividend with an amount
of RMB15,000,000 to its shareholders. Success
Guarantee was entitled to receive the dividend with
an amount of RMB2,730,000. On 31 December 2018,
the balance on borrowings from Success Guarantee
to Success Credit is RMB22,633,000, which includes
a principal of RMB20,480,000 and an interest of
RMB2,153,000. The interest rate of this borrowing is
12%. Both the principal and the interest are expected
to be collected within one year.

() HRZZE-—NE=A=+
H: ERERRRE
MEBRRKEARE
15,000,000 7T 9 IR B. -
ERERBEEBBAR
#&2 730,000 TTHYAR S, ©
RZZE-NFE+=H
=+—H8 &RERD
SR EFE L W E R
2B A R #22,633,000
T HhBEERAEAR
#£ 20,480,000 7t & A &
AE#2,153,000 7T ° 3%
HERPRNEE12% °
K& RABTBHIIER
—FRYE -

FERE
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31 December

31 December

Note 2018 2017
FisE RIE-\E RZZT—LF
+ZB=+—-B +ZA=+-—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT AR¥T T
Assets BE
Cash and bank deposits BERBITER 15,126 2,244
Trade and other receivables B R EMEWFIE 520,108 400,703
Investment in subsidiaries RHTB AR RIIRE 12,681 12,507
Equipment B 152 231
Intangible assets BEEE 6 8
Total assets BEHE 548,073 415,693
Liability afg
Liability component of convertible bonds AR EH WA B D 110,640 —
Accruals and other payables FEET & AR B A B FIE 26,925 622
Total liability =ik 137,565 622
NET ASSETS EEFE 410,508 415,071
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAREE
Share capital i 28(c) 4,187 4,241
Reserves (] 406,321 410,830
TOTAL EQUITY B 410,508 415,071

EEZERERRER-Z-NAF=A

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2019. —t+hBFE-
SREE Z= 3,

Zhang Tiewei Li Bin
Director Director

EE EE
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Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2018 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 16, Leases
BENEREERE 165 HE

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

BE(ERMBRERBRES)RBENN  EHEEN TS

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
“E-RFECER-tFRNERUBREEANFERE

Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures

BRSTRAE 8RB R REEL RS ELEP R RL

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the HKFRS 16 which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the Group, and
further impacts may be identified before the standard is initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six months
ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the standard
is initially applied in that financial report.

BEAGKBRERTEEH 58
STEAEEEMZIEEE - FHER
N2 255 EAIREE
REBEZE-E—-N\E+=-A=+—H
IEFEEREN » BRABFEIHRE
WARERA - UT A gEEAEEE
BHNERER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT RES 2%
Ealalitl=Rpil ke

1 January 2019

“E2-NE-A-H
1 January 2019
—Z-N%F-A-H
1 January 2019
~%-7E-A-R
1 January 2019
—Z-N1%-A-H

AEBEETEZEBET - FEA
RREBYEAEANBNESRY
Z. i AEECERIABTBHE
REEAIE16FMNEL S E AR
HREUERREREAFE-F
BIETENFERIRENTX - BE
EBPHREEDE16FEMNTMEE
REBEAK - ERRES TR BTG
DERAEEBRESNESR
HIE BRI NEENER T ET
BETE - EEENTERARAER
BE-Z—-—NAFEAA=1+HILAHE
BB KR ER > ABE—F
BEHE AEBTARENEES
FBRRE . BREBEAR EZRE
ZEEL LB AN ZI SRS -

FERE
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HKFRS 16, Leases

Currently the Group classifies leases into finance leases and
operating leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-
of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of the
lease.

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

ERMKREERE165E 0 A
=
AEFIREBES)EARSHE
RR&HEE  YRBEASHNSEY
HERHETTRNSHRE - &
EEEAEBEATIEFHEY  H
fBFRABIEB AR A o

BB BRELERF 16578
SHHBAARBEOSREHLERNR
EXENATRNELEERTE - A -
RABBYBREEF1655RE
FEARTBEIMEEEREE
HE - BR - REATEESEM
T AAASZREURRERER
BEERENSEREREREN
ENRELFE B AEARER
REBEEENRNRERIRTE
HESE  WAAEDARNIER
BIEE ROSTBIAZEERE
B% - FAASEIEERELR
FEENFERXREREEEN
B MERBRABERNRAHRER
FREAERIARBEEROREE
MEEMX - FR—ETTERES
% REATBERKLETER
FERREHEE (BEMA+=@EA
FUT)REEEEENES - R
ZRERT  HERBEENEY
NIRRT -

EBUBRELEAE16 /B EER
EXREEFEAENOEREARDE
BERRBHEEIEHEERE)
REMETRER L - RPEAL
HEEASEREERAESSR
Frigin - W EFERNMBENESR
RN AR -
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HKFRS 16, Leases (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of
which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group
will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only
to contracts that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting model to short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019 and will not
restate the comparative information. At 31 December 2018 the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amount to RMB2,523,000. Upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities
and the corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted to
RMB2,407,000, after taking account the effects of discounting, as
at 1 January 2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be material.
However, the expected changes in accounting policies as
described above could have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statement from 2019 onwards.

EEPKREENE 1655 0 A
&)

EBNBRELENFI6RN-F
—hEF-B-—BHZEBABNFE
HEER - BB BRELERE
16 SR LET - AEEETBIER AT
BESEREBAAZHER(IES)
HENBENML - Bt AEEE
EHBEREABHRN RTINS
HEREBMBHRELRE 16555
MHEEES - I NEEGE
BNMATRERE  UR&Hast
EXRARNERHEERKEEEEM
5.

AEEEFREAET BT HREE
AlZE 16 9% M EALERTBMEL » I
BEREANRTEERRE=S
—hWE— B —-—BWESENLEET
B, TAEEHHHEER - R=F
—NE+=ZA=+—8  XEER
RO HEEEHEETNRREKR
HENRB ARY2,523,0007T °
RZBE-NFE-A—HERERE
BEEREEDE1655% - HES
BERBEFEAEEENFEDNEER (K
SRR EE) o RFARZEA
R# 2,407,000 T °

BREZHEAERERAEEED
REEFEY - BRRAE BB R
HEAE16R RS TIEHNBEE
AEASAEKR - A - LAEETH
ENRBEZHAIESULIEE -F
—WFUBRNMBRRELEEAS
@,

FERE
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After the end of the reporting period, the Group amended the
terms of and conditions of the Convertible Bonds, which were
issued on 1 February 2018. The Group repurchased 70,000,000
Conversion Shares at a principal amount of HKD10,000,000
and issued HKD60,000,000 Note at an interest rate of 6% to the
Purchaser. The outstanding 77,064,200 Conversion Shares of the
Convertible bonds with a principal amount of HKD84,000,000 are
subject to a downward revision of Conversion Price from HKD2.20
to HKD1.09.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 at 1
January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen, comparative
information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(c).

TEEmEBER (BR) ARAF

RIPEHRE  AEEBITR ==
—NEZA—HBBRITHITBREKRES
IR RGY - AEBZRASEHE
10,000,000 & 7t 8= 70,000,000 f%
BB WEEEEE6% N
£ %%1760,000,000 8 T EE - Al
JR & 3% 1 77,064,200 B} R E i A i
B% 3% 13 (A= < %8 A 84,000,000 %8 7T )
WIRREKETH  H2.208BTT
FAE1.098 T °

AEER=-Z-N\F-—F—-HBEKX
ERERBUBEHRELENEISHER
BRMBREEREIN - RIBAT
EENBERN  EREHTTE
5l SR BRBBNE -THBER
BRMEE1(C) °
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